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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GUN BUY-BACK EVENT
Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 12:02:34 PM

Attachments: 12.10.20 Gun Buy-back Event.pdf

Jonas P Ionin

Director of Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 at 11:37 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GUN
BUY-BACK EVENT

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, December 10, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GUN BUY-BACK

EVENT
Mayor Breed, San Francisco Police Department, and United Playaz will host a gun buy-back

event in SoMa, this Saturday, December 1 2th from 8:00am until 12:00pm

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Police Department
(SFPD), United Playaz, George Floyd’s family member and friend, and anti-gun violence
advocates today held a press conference to promote the United Playaz Gun Buy-back event

this Saturday, December 12, The gun buy-back event provides a place for people to turn in
their weapons, no questions asked, and get guns off the streets and out of communities.

Gun Buy-Back Event

United Playaz

1038 Howard St., San Francisco, CA
Saturday, December 12, 2020
8:00am — 12:00pm

The gun buy-back event will be set-up to comply with COVID-19 health requirements.
Participants will remain in their personal vehicles as they drop-off the guns, and United Playaz
will ensure there is adequate space for walk-up participants to maintain at least six feet of
distance from others. Face coverings will be required, and United Playaz will have personal
protective equipment and hand sanitizer available for participants and volunteers.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, December 10, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GUN BUY-BACK
EVENT

Mayor Breed, San Francisco Police Department, and United Playaz will host a gun buy-back
event in SoMa, this Saturday, December 12" from 8:00am until 12:00pm

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD),
United Playaz, George Floyd’s family member and friend, and anti-gun violence advocates today
held a press conference to promote the United Playaz Gun Buy-back event this Saturday,
December 12™". The gun buy-back event provides a place for people to turn in their weapons, no
questions asked, and get guns off the streets and out of communities.

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

“Getting weapons off the street is essential, and events like this Gun Buy-Back provide a place
for people to get guns out of their homes safely and legally,” said Mayor Breed. “As we’ve been
dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic, we’ve also been seeing an increase in gun-related
incidents throughout the United States. Here in San Francisco, we saw an increase in firearm-
related incidents during the first seven months of the year. The loss of life from gun violence has
to stop, and we all have to work together to save lives and keep our communities safe.”

The San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) and United Playaz typically host gun buyback
events twice per year. Following collection of the firearms, they are melted down and the parts
are recycled to create jewelry and other goods that are sold to finance future gun buy-back
events. United Playaz is a violence prevention and youth development organization that has
worked in San Francisco for over 20 years.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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“Gun buyback programs are a proven and effective strategy to stop deadly firearms from getting
into the wrong hands,” said SFPD Chief William Scott. “I’m thankful for Mayor Breed's
leadership on public safety initiatives like this one, and grateful to United Playaz for their
continued partnership with us to help to make San Francisco safer for everyone — particularly
our families and youth.”

“United Playaz hosts these gun buy backs to show the relevance of our mission statement: ‘It
takes the hood to save the hood,”” said Rudy Corpuz, Jr., Founder and Executive Director of
United Playaz.

The Gun Buy-Back program has operated since 2014 and has collected nearly 2,000 guns.
People can turn in their guns in exchange for $100 for a handgun and $200 for assault weapons.
Funding for the gun buy-back was provided by philanthropic donations and a grant from the
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development.
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“Getting weapons off the street is essential, and events like this Gun Buy-Back provide a place
for people to get guns out of their homes safely and legally,” said Mayor Breed. “As we’ve
been dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic, we’ve also been seeing an increase in gun-related
incidents throughout the United States. Here in San Francisco, we saw an increase in firearm-
related incidents during the first seven months of the year. The loss of life from gun violence
has to stop, and we all have to work together to save lives and keep our communities safe.”

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

“Gun buyback programs are a proven and effective strategy to stop deadly firearms from
getting into the wrong hands,” said SFPD Chief William Scott. “I’m thankful for Mayor
Breed's leadership on public safety initiatives like this one, and grateful to United Playaz for
their continued partnership with us to help to make San Francisco safer for everyone —
particularly our families and youth.”

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
People can turn in their guns in exchange for $100 for a handgun and $200 for assault
weapons. Funding for the gun buy-back was provided by philanthropic donations and a grant
from the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)

Subject: FW: Request for operating limits and early removal of the Observation Wheel in the Music Concourse in Golden
Gate Park

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 12:03:25 PM

Attachments: San Franciscans for Urban Nature 12-09-20 -date revised.pdf

image013.png
image014.png
image015.png
image016.png
image017.png
image018.png

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning Department

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

H v 0 o =&

®

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our

services here.

From: SFPaRC <sfparc@earthlink.net>

Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 11:15 AM

To: Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; 'Kathrin Moore' <mooreurban@aol.com>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner,
Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>

Subject: Request for operating limits and early removal of the Observation Wheel in the Music
Concourse in Golden Gate Park

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Planning Commissioners,

San Franciscans for Urban Nature (SFUN) is a new group of residents from all over San Francisco who
support Golden Gate Park as San Francisco's major landscape park, a historic gem that is a unique
and vital resource for plants and wildlife as well as a place for people to experience nature within
our urban environment. As such, we are very concerned about the installation and operation of the
Observation Wheel in the Music Concourse.
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December 9, 2020

San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission
c/o San Francisco Planning Department

49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400,

San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: Request for operating limits and early removal of the Observation Wheel in the Music Concourse in
Golden Gate Park

Dear Commissioners:

San Franciscans for Urban Nature (SFUN) is a new group of residents from all over San Francisco who
support Golden Gate Park as San Francisco's major landscape park, a historic gem that is a unique and
vital resource for plants and wildlife as well as a place for people to experience nature within our urban
environment. As such, we are very concerned about the installation and operation of the Observation
Wheel in the Music Concourse.

The National Register designation describes Golden Gate Park as a "green oasis in a sea of
urbanization."* The Register further states that,

"Golden Gate Park was conceived as a naturalistic pleasure ground park to provide a sylvan
retreat from urban pressures for all citizens, rich and poor. . . With development spurred on by
the park, the city grew up around the park and it is now a green oasis in a sea of urbanization.” >

This is especially true during the COVID pandemic, when San Francisco residents have been flocking to
our parks in record numbers for the sustenance provided by nature.

But Golden Gate Park is more than a historic retreat for its human residents; it is also a historic home for
wildlife. The wildlife have been an intrinsic part of the Park's history. Early in the Park's development,
various animal species were introduced and were popular with visitors.> As the Park evolved and the
trees and shrubs developed into valuable habitat, the Park became populated with many native wildlife

! "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National
Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification. Section 7, page 1.

% "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National
Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification. Section 7, page 1.

* "Golden Gate Park at Your Feet," Doss, Margot Patterson, 1978. '..Elk, bears, beavers, ... kangaroos, sheep and
moose also have roamed in park meadows . .." page 154.
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species that have turned to our urban parks for shelter, both as a daytime habitat and also a nighttime
refuge. The Park also became a place that people visit to view wildlife in their own habitat.

n

City policy supports protecting biodiversity in our parks, "...The City should employ appropriate
management practices to maintain a healthy and resilient ecosystem which preserves and protects plant
and wildlife habitat. (ROSE, Policy 4.1). *

The 2020-2024 Strategic Plan for the Department of Recreation and Park states as one of five goals for
the Department, to "Inspire stewardship - protect and enhance San Francisco’s precious natural

resources through conservation, education, and sustainable land/facility management practices." °

However, the Observation Wheel threatens wildlife habitat in Golden Gate Park:

e Dark skies and quiet night-time areas are important for wildlife health, providing rest and cover
from predators.®

e Golden Gate Park is on the path of the Pacific Flyway, and as such, thousands of birds pass over
at night during the bird migration seasons.’ Birds can be drawn off course due to night time
artificial lighting, resulting in disorientation and collisions during bird migration.

e Too much artificial lighting can have an impact on their lifecycles and nesting patterns. °

® Not only birds but also insects are impacted by the presence of artificial nighttime lighting,
resulting in clustering around the lights until they are exhausted; this has contributed to the
decline of the insect population.’® Insects are vital to the health of the food chain.™

e The bright lights impact the skies over the Park, providing a glow on foggy nights that
contributes to blocking out the night sky. According to the Dark Sky Association, "The
inappropriate or excessive use of artificial light — known as light pollution — can have serious
environmental consequences for humans, wildlife, and our climate." 12

e Bats can be impacted by high frequency and ultra-frequency sound pollution from equipment
that is run at night when they are hunting, resulting in failed feedings and potential collisions
and mortality.

® Generator noise has already been recorded in a complaint to the Recreation and Park
Department; in addition to the impact on Park users, what is the impact on the wildlife that
have to live with this noise 24/7?

"Recreation and Open Space Elements (ROSE), OBJECTIVE 4, PROTECT AND ENHANCE THE BIODIVERSITY,
HABITAT VALUE, AND ECOLOGICAL INTEGRITY OF OPEN SPACES AND ENCOURAGE SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES IN THE
DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT OF OUR OPEN SPACE SYSTEM"
https://generalplan.sfplanning.org/Recreation OpenSpace Element ADOPTED.pdf
> "2020-2024 Update - Strategic Plan," Recreation and Park Department,
https://www.darksky.org/light-pollution/wildlife/
https://www.sfbayjv.org/about-san-francisco-bay.php
https://www.pnas.org/content/114/42/11175
https://www.darksky.org/light-pollution/wildlife/ and https://phys.org/news/2020-11-artificial-night-
widespread-impacts-nature.html
1 https://www.nature.com/articles/d41586-018-00665-7
https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2020/11/201102120053.htm
https://www.darksky.org/light-pollution/
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e Generator fumes have also been recorded in a complaint. What is the impact on both wildlife
and the people who visit the Concourse? What City regulations should be applied to this use of
a diesel generator?

e Security lights are left on all night and are overly bright, even compared to the other facilities in
the Concourse. The Music Concourse is not a crime center, and we assume that any funds are
removed from the area at end of the business day.

According to the National Register listing,

"Although the park contains the individual resources listed here, it is important to view Golden
Gate Park as a whole. Golden Gate Park was developed over many years, but it was conceived as
a single creation that we now consider an historic designed landscape."

Unfortunately, by promoting the Observation Wheel as a symbol of Golden Gate Park, the Recreation
and Park Department has made a symbolic statement that Golden Gate Park is meant to be seen as a
series of artificial attractions, not as a landscape. This will change how the public sees and uses the

Park. Since its inception, there have been innumerable proposals to add built attractions to Golden Gate
Park. The Wheel sets a bad precedent that can lead to further cannibalization of the Park by even more
attractions, buildings, and other built elements and the eventual loss of its historic character and
significance. This is what happened to the Beach Chalet Soccer Fields in the western end of the Park.
Paving over a natural meadow with artificial turf, adding various built elements, and introducing various
sports stadium lighting , caused that section of the park to lose its listing in the National Register.

San Francisco has a great many artificial, lighted attractions. Putting the value of artificial attractions
over the value of the natural world deprives children of the opportunity to learn about and to enjoy the
natural world outside of books or museum exhibits. ** Well-off San Franciscans can afford to drive to
the Sierras or travel to our national parks and resorts that highlight nature; however, members of
sensitive communities do not have that privilege. Nature in Golden Gate Park must be preserved to
allow for these communities to enjoy locally and for children to develop a love of and appreciation for
the natural world.

Given the inappropriateness of both the Observation Wheel and its lighting for this historic setting, the
potential damage to wildlife, and the message that artificial attractions are more important than
parkland, we recommend the following:

e The Observation Wheel should be removed from the Music Concourse by February 15, 2021, the
beginning of the spring bird migration season.

e The lighting on the Observation Wheel should be modified between now and February 15, 2021.
All exterior lighting on the Observation Wheel (spokes, ring, and outside gondola lights) should
be shut off at dusk each day. Only lighting that is necessary for personal safety should remain
on.

e There is concern that even as the City moves into the Purple Tier of COVID restrictions, the
generator would be left on 24/7. Whatever the end result of the COVID restrictions, the

1 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National
Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification. Section 7, page2..

1% L ast Child in the Wood, Saving our Children from Nature-Deficit Disorder," Louv, Richard. 2008. ". . . the child
in nature is an endangered species, and the health of children and the health of the Earth are inseparable.”
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generator should be shut down each night and only turned on when the Wheel is open to the
public.

e Aless intrusive security lighting system should be used for this facility.
We thank you for your consideration and look forward to discussing this further with you.

Sincerely,
Natalie Downe

Corresponding Secretary

cc:
Board of Supervisors
Department of Recreation and Park
Department of the Environment
Planning Commission
Recreation and Park Commission

% %k %k 3k %k %k k

San Franciscans for Urban Nature (c) 2020 Page 4 of 4 sfparc@earthlink.net






























Given the inappropriateness of both the Observation Wheel and its lighting for this historic setting,
the potential damage to wildlife, and the message that artificial attractions are more important than
parkland, we recommend the following:

The Observation Wheel should be removed from the Music Concourse by February 15, 2021,
the beginning of the spring bird migration season.

The lighting on the Observation Wheel should be modified between now and February 15,
2021. All exterior lighting on the Observation Wheel (spokes, ring, and outside gondola
lights) should be shut off at dusk each day. Only lighting that is necessary for personal safety
should remain on.

There is concern that even as the City moves into the Purple Tier of COVID restrictions, the
generator would be left on 24/7. Whatever the end result of the COVID restrictions, the
generator should be shut down each night and only turned on when the Wheel is open to the
public.

A less intrusive security lighting system should be used for this facility.

Our full letter giving reasons for these requests is attached.

San Franciscans for Urban Nature (SFUN)



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: Continuances and a Withdrawal.
Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 10:08:45 AM

Commissioners,
| am pleased to inform you that our DR Whisperer continues to work his magic and has successfully
resolved the 1151 Washington Street DR’s. Both have been withdrawn.

Also, we will be requesting that you continue the Planning Code Amendment and 550 O’Farrell
Street. The requests come from the Supervisorial offices and project sponsor.

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

Subject: FW:I*** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SAN FRANCISCO SUPERIOR COURT, AND TREASURER
JOSE CISNEROS ANNOUNCE ONLINE TOOL FOR PEOPLE STRUGGLING WITH TRAFFIC COURT DEBT

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 10:00:11 AM

Attachments: 12.10.20 MyCitations Launch.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 at 9:01 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SAN FRANCISCO
SUPERIOR COURT, AND TREASURER JOSE CISNEROS ANNOUNCE ONLINE TOOL
FOR PEOPLE STRUGGLING WITH TRAFFIC COURT DEBT

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, December 10, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED, SAN FRANCISCO SUPERIOR
COURT, AND TREASURER JOSE CISNEROS ANNOUNCE
ONLINE TOOL FOR PEOPLE STRUGGLING WITH TRAFFIC
COURT DEBT

People with financial hardships may use MyCitations to request 80% discount or more for
traffic citations

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Superior Court, and
Treasurer José Cisneros today announced the launch of MyCitations—a new online tool for
people struggling with traffic court debt. The launch of the tool is part of a citywide effort to
alleviate the disproportionate adverse impact of fines and fees on people with low incomes and
communities of color.

Traffic citations in California can exceed $400. If people cannot pay, a civil assessment of
$300 can be added to people’s citations. Research from the Federal Reserve shows that about
half of Americans are unable to pay an unexpected emergency expense of $400. The
MyCitations tool allows people to look up their traffic citations online, answer a series of
simple questions, and submit a request for a possible reduction on the amount owed based on
their financial need. In addition to requesting a fine reduction, people can also use
MyCitations to request a payment plan, more time to pay, or community service. Using
MyCitations can also save people an in-person trip to San Francisco Traffic Court.
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

People with financial hardships may use MyCitations to request 80% discount or more for traffic
citations

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Superior Court, and
Treasurer Jose Cisneros today announced the launch of MyCitations—a new online tool for
people struggling with traffic court debt. The launch of the tool is part of a citywide effort to
alleviate the disproportionate adverse impact of fines and fees on people with low incomes and
communities of color.

Traffic citations in California can exceed $400. If people cannot pay, a civil assessment of $300
can be added to people’s citations. Research from the Federal Reserve shows that about half of
Americans are unable to pay an unexpected emergency expense of $400. The MyCitations tool
allows people to look up their traffic citations online, answer a series of simple questions, and
submit a request for a possible reduction on the amount owed based on their financial need. In
addition to requesting a fine reduction, people can also use MyCitations to request a payment
plan, more time to pay, or community service. Using MyCitations can also save people an in-
person trip to San Francisco Traffic Court.

“No one should have to choose between paying their traffic ticket and paying their rent,” said
Mayor Breed. “Traffic tickets in California are the most expensive in the country and our
citations should not put people in financial distress. With so many people struggling to make
ends meet right now due to COVID-19, we need this tool more than ever.”

The discounts that people receive from MyCitations will be based on their financial need and
their ability to pay. When people use the tool, they can provide information about their financial
circumstances by showing proof that they receive public benefits—such as Medi-Cal or CalFresh
(food stamps)—and answer a few questions about their monthly income and expenses.
Approximately 250,000 San Franciscans receive these public benefits. People can also explain a
financial hardship they are experiencing. After someone submits their request, they can expect to
hear back from the court within 30 days. MyCitations is also available in Spanish. A video
demonstration of the tool is here.

“The court is proud to be part of this pilot project that gives expanded access to justice 24/7 to
our court users,"” said Mark Culkins, Chief Operations Officer of the Criminal and Traffic

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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divisions of the San Francisco Superior Court. “It is an especially useful tool to have available
during the current pandemic as a person does not need to come to court to physically to address
their citation. The court encourages folks to take advantage of this new, online program.”

The Financial Justice Project, led by the Office of San Francisco Treasurer Cisneros, works with
City departments and the courts to assess and reforms fines and fees that have an adverse and
disproportionate impact on people with low incomes and communities of color. For example,
The Financial Justice Project helped lead the City’s efforts to eliminate administrative fees in the
criminal justice system, stop the suspensions of driver’s licenses for people who missed traffic
court dates, and was a partner in the City’s recent work to eliminate overdue library fines.

“A $300 or $400 traffic tickets hits a daycare worker harder than it hits a dentist,” said San
Francisco Treasurer José Cisneros. “Fines deter people from speeding or running a stop sign, but
they should not put people in financial distress. MyCitations moves us toward that goal.”

MyCitations is being offered in five courts throughout California. In addition to San Francisco,
MyCitations is available in Santa Clara, Shasta, Tulare, and Ventura Counties. The California
Judicial Council worked with county courts to develop and pilot the tool. The San Francisco
MyCitations tool offers the most extensive services—allowing people to request reductions for
nonmoving or moving violations, as well as for current or past due citations.

For people who are unable to pay their traffic tickets, they can also visit the San Francisco
Superior Court’s Can’t Afford to Pay webpage. Here is a guide from the San Francisco Financial
Justice Project of fine, fee, and ticket discounts available for San Franciscans with low incomes.
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
their ability to pay. When people use the tool, they can provide information about their
financial circumstances by showing proof that they receive public benefits—such as Medi-Cal
or CalFresh (food stamps)—and answer a few questions about their monthly income and
expenses. Approximately 250,000 San Franciscans receive these public benefits. People can
also explain a financial hardship they are experiencing. After someone submits their request,
they can expect to hear back from the court within 30 days. MyCitations is also available in
Spanish. A video demonstration of the tool is here.

“The court is proud to be part of this pilot project that gives expanded access to justice 24/7 to
our court users,” said Mark Culkins, Chief Operations Officer of the Criminal and Traffic
divisions of the San Francisco Superior Court. “It is an especially useful tool to have available
during the current pandemic as a person does not need to come to court to physically to
address their citation. The court encourages folks to take advantage of this new, online
program.”

The Financial Justice Project. led by the Office of San Francisco Treasurer Cisneros, works
with City departments and the courts to assess and reforms fines and fees that have an adverse
and disproportionate impact on people with low incomes and communities of color. For
example, The Financial Justice Project helped lead the City’s efforts to eliminate
administrative fees in the criminal justice system, stop the suspensions of driver’s licenses for
people who missed traffic court dates, and was a partner in the City’s recent work to eliminate
overdue library fines.

“A $300 or $400 traffic tickets hits a daycare worker harder than it hits a dentist,” said San
Francisco Treasurer José Cisneros. “Fines deter people from speeding or running a stop sign,
but they should not put people in financial distress. MyCitations moves us toward that goal.”

MyCitations is being offered in five courts throughout California. In addition to San
Francisco, MyCitations is available in Santa Clara, Shasta, Tulare, and Ventura Counties. The
California Judicial Council worked with county courts to develop and pilot the tool. The San
Francisco MyCitations tool offers the most extensive services—allowing people to request
reductions for nonmoving or moving violations, as well as for current or past due citations.

For people who are unable to pay their traffic tickets, they can also visit the San Francisco
Superior Court’s Can’t Afford to Pay webpage. Here is a guide from the San Francisco
Financial Justice Project of fine, fee, and ticket discounts available for San Franciscans with
low incomes.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: Faux tree tower proposal

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 9:27:48 AM
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

From: Adrienne Bolsega <abolsega@felton.org>

Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 9:27 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa
(CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Walton,
Shamann (BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Breed, Mayor London (MYR)
<mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>

Subject: Fw: Faux tree tower proposal

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

This message was sent securely using Zix®

From: Opal Essence <opalminded@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 9:23 AM
To: Adrienne Bolsega <abolsega@felton.org>
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Subject: Faux tree tower proposal

San Francisco Planning Commissioners,

It has just come to my attention that there is a proposal coming before the Commission today
about installing a faux cell phone tree and 3 eucalyptus trees around it at the intersection of
Alanna Way and Executive Park Boulevard.

Please do not place a faux tree surrounded by eucalyptus trees in the Southeast section on
San Francisco.

I implore you to reject this project. Our neighborhood, Visitacion Valley, has suffered from
City neglect and poor planning policies over the years and deserves better treatment. One
never hears about such projects in Pacific Heights.

Adrienne Bolsega

This message was secured by Zix®.


https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//www.zixcorp.com&g=NjliNWQxODAyYzY1NzRmNw==&h=OTBhMTliZWUxOWQ1ZGE2N2JhOGViMmE4YzMzZTU1M2M0YzYyOWNjZjZmZjAzN2Q1ZjE5NzAwNWFhMjlmMjQ4Nw==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvZmZpY2UzNjVfZW1haWxzX2VtYWlsOjI3MzNhZWE2NjVhNDEyN2YwOWMyNzg2ZmI5OGMxYTcwOnYx

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW:

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 9:27:37 AM
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

From: Fran Martin <fma6764860@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 9:15 AM

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

Subject:

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

It is absurd to even consider installing a 70 feet high faux tree tower at the main entry to San
Francisco. Visitors from all over the world entering the City will be greeted by something that
looks ridiculous. What will that say about our much vaunted reputation as a sophisticated city?
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To have such an eyesore in our neighborhood is a social, environmental and aesthetic justice
affront. In addition, it is egregious that it would be near the Bay waterfront and in the view
line of the proposed new housing at Executive Park.

To disguise it with the invasive, highly flammable Eucalyptus is a comment on how seriously
the City takes its own biodiversity policy.

I implore you to reject this project. Our neighborhood, Visitacion Valley, has suffered from
City neglect and poor planning policies over the years and deserves better treatment. One
never hears about such projects in Pacific Heights.

Thank you.

Fran Martin

Visitacion Valley Greenway
Visitacion Valley Planning Alliance
186 Arleta Avenue,

San Francisco, CA 94134
415-216-8560



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)

Subject: FW: Commentary re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower on Blanken and Executive Park
Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 8:31:58 AM

Attachments: image007.png

image008.png
image009.png
image010.png
image011.png
image012.png

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning Department

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

B v 0O ¢ & X

o

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

From: Alissa Bermudez <alissabermudez@hotmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 7:33 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Lindsay, Ashley (CPC) <ashley.lindsay@sfgov.org>; Waltonstaff (BOS) <waltonstaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Commentary re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower on Blanken and Executive Park

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

We, the people of the affected community, are sovereign. We do not consent to the
installation of the cell tower in our neighborhood.

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: AT&T installation in District 10

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 8:31:56 AM
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

From: Roee <evenro@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 4:50 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: AT&T installation in District 10

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioner Secretary:

| write regarding to an item on the December 10, 2020 meeting
agenda installing an AT&T pole near the Candlestick Cove
neighborhood.

While in general I'm supporting the idea of widening the cellular reception to
include this area, as a resident of candlestick cove | strongly recommend
repositioning the cell tower a bit south compared to where suggested (either at the
most south point in the chosen area, or near the 101 exit ramp.
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While | do not believe that in distance this equipment is dangerous, when it’s in a
very close proximity to residential areas, it probably is. On top of that, we should
remember that the executive park commercial area soon is expected to be
converted to residential (by towers that would replace the current office
structures), and for those who would choose to live there this equipment would be
just across the street and in front their windows.

These concerns can easily be resolved by moving these antennas a bit south.
Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners.

Roee Ebenstein
Districts 10 Resident



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Winslow, David (CPC)
Subject: FW: Construction

Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 8:31:46 AM
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From: Jaroslav Koudela <jaroslav.koudela689 @gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 4:33 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Construction

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

| am writing to express my concerns regarding proposed construction at 1151 Washington. | live at
1254 Taylor Street, about half a block from 1151 Washington Street. The attached pictured show the
results of construction in "my backyard", be it 1250 Taylor or 1255 Taylor. It is hard to describe the
noise, dust, congestion, and smell created by the constructions; pictures will not capture that.

| have following questions:

1) Does the Commission consider the impact to residents in the neighborhood?

2) If yes, does the Commission consider all constructions in the neighborhood collectively or only the
one seeking permit? (What | am after is whether or not the Commission attempts to determine
whether another construction may be one too many)

3) How long is the construction at 1151 Washington Street supposed to be? (Construction at 1250
Taylor has been going on for a year or so)
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| cannot express it more directly--the construction activity and its negative impact on our quality of
living will be the major reason | and my family will leave the neighborhood.

Sincerely,

Jaroslav Koudela

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Jaroslav Koudela <jaroslav.koudela689 @gmail.com>
Date: Wed, Dec 9, 2020 at 3:55 PM

Subject: Construction

To: Jaroslav Koudela <jaroslav.koudelab89 @gmail.com>
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: {Candlestick Cove} AT&T installation in District 10
Date: Thursday, December 10, 2020 8:29:32 AM
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

From: AS Mili M. <m2mori@outlook.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 4:31 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: {Candlestick Cove} AT&T installation in District 10

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioner Secretary:

| write in strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020
meeting agenda installing an AT&T pole near the
Candlestick Cove neighborhood.

When such an installation is proposed by a large corporation as
AT&T, local government agencies must take into account the health
and well-being of those residing near the equipment.

For many years, residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point
neighborhoods have been targeted as a location to place this type of
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equipment. The placements exposed residents to health hazards.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the
commissioners. They must take seriously the long term health
consequences in their decision on this matter.

Asti Te
Districts 10 Resident



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Feeney, Claire (CPC)

Subject: FW: Canna Club at 3407 Geary - Cannabis Storefront on Geary and Beaumont
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 4:21:42 PM
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From: Alex Ponce de Leon <alexpdl@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 3:20 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: Canna Club at 3407 Geary - Cannabis Storefront on Geary and Beaumont

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Canna Club at 3407 Geary
Block/Lot No.: 1085/031
Record No.: 2020-006608CUA

Dear Commissioners:
My name is Alex Ponce de Leon and | am an attorney and homeowner on Beaumont Avenue
representing the sentiments of the vast majority of homeowners and residents on Beaumont

Avenue. | am also the father of an 8 year old and 12 year old. My wife is a public school teacher.

The proposed location of the cannabis storefront is problematic for a wide-array of reasons. The
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#cannaclubsf
People are posting about this
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Dear North Beach & Telegraph Hill Neighbors

CannaClub

an equity owned cannabis boutique.




. Joe Konnex » Konnex Productions

June12-@

DJin tomorrow in SF at a new to be dispensary called Canna Club come blaze n dance with me
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Dear North Beach & Telegraph Hill Neighbors

CannaClub ie an eauity owned cannabis boutiaue seekina





proposed location is just TWO doors down from a built and opened Chinese Immersion School (The
Richmond Academy). The school has been here for several months now. Roosevelt Middle School
and the One Fifty Parker School are also nearby, although, admittedly (a few FEET) outside the 600
foot required by the current SF Regs.

The Richmond Academy has been operating in the previous space occupied by Sprint. We are elated
that a business FINALLY occupied the space vacated by Sprint. Here is a picture of the Richmond
Academy -- just TWO doors from the proposed pot retailer.

Also, the notice stated that Thai Cafe occupied the space "until approximately 2019." That is
inaccurate and Thai Cafe has operated continuously and is still open today. Here is a picture taken
on December 4, 2020.
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CannaClub already has a location being built at 899 Columbus. And an initial analysis of their
approach has been to create a loud and social space for their customers. This would be an
incongruous and incompatible use of the Thai Cafe space at Geary. This is a small and compact
space with a relatively narrow sidewalk adjacent to a quiet family neighborhood.

These are advertisements from the Canna Club DJ advertising loud events at the site.



#cannaclubsf
People are posting about this

F Konnex
June 12 -8

IM BACKI A rve missed playang musss. b If you are in San Fransasoo () tomorrow Near the
Pier ill be DJjn come check out a soon 1o be new dispensary called #cannaclubsf for herb n tunes
DM for more details

Cannalla

Dear North Beach & Telegraph Hill Neighbors

CannaClub is an equity owned cannabis boutique seeking

YA & L a8 = - afel

Joe Konnex p Konnex Productions
Jume 12 - QY

Dlin tomarrow in SF at a new to be dispensary called Canna Club come blaze n dance with me

Dear North Beach & Telegraph Hill Neighbors

There are approximately 30 households that live on this portion of Beaumont Avenue. It is a pocket
of families and most of us have children under the age of 18. We have seen the neighborhood get
transformed over the last decade -- some for the better and some for the worse. We finally have
100% occupancy on all the retail spaced in this portion of Geary. Shutting down Thai Cafe and
replacing it with a loud and potentially problematic pot retail storefront with a party atmosphere will
drive the character of the residential neighborhood in the wrong direction.

The residents of Beaumont Avenue implore the commission to not permit the opening of another
CannaClub location at 3407 Geary.

Thanks,
Alex Ponce de Leon, JD



Alex Ponce de Leon



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)

Subject: FW: Dec 10 Planning Dept hearing re AT&T cell phone tower
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 3:08:04 PM
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

From: Imckay@pobox.com <Imckay@ pobox.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 2:53 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: Dec 10 Planning Dept hearing re AT&T cell phone tower

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Correction to previous email:

The mural & “sense of entrance” seem incompatible with a cell phone tower at the same location

From: Imckay@pobox.com <Imcka obox.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 9, 2020 2:39 PM

To: 'commissions.secretary@sfgov.org' <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Dec 10 Planning Dept hearing re AT&T cell phone tower

I’'m a neighbor of the proposed AT&T cell phone tower at Blanken and Executive Park Blvd. |
understand there is a hearing on December 10t regarding the proposed tower. | would really like
other locations to be considered for the tower that aren’t so close to housing, and at one of the
entrances to my neighborhood.

We're very proud of Little Hollywood and have been working closely with the planning department
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on all the surrounding developments, and on a beautiful mural in the Blanken Tunnel that we hope
will create an sense of entrance. The mural & “sense of entrance” seem incompatible with a cell
phone tower at the same location. There are other sites that we think should be considered for the
tower — either near the existing tower on Bayview Hill, or further south toward a more industrial
area (SF Recology).

Please delay approval until these sites are seriously considered. | wasn’t aware of the proposed
tower or would have reached out sooner.

Regards

Linda McKay



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)

Subject: FW: Dec 10 Planning Dept hearing re AT&T cell phone tower
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 3:07:37 PM
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

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 2:39 PM

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
all the surrounding developments, and on a beautiful mural in the Blanken Tunnel that we hope will
create an sense of entrance. The mural & “sense of entrance” seem compatible with a cell phone
tower at the same location. There are other sites that we think should be considered for the tower —
either near the existing tower on Bayview Hill, or further south toward a more industrial area (SF
Recology).

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

Subject: FW: Opposition to Caltrans PROW-AT&T Mobility Macro WTS Facility
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 3:07:25 PM

Attachments: petition signatures jobs 26216590 20201209213429.pdf

Petition - San Francisco Planning Commission Change at&t cell tower.pdf
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

From: Ted Rusli <trusli@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 1:44 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Cc: Lindsay, Ashley (CPC) <ashley.lindsay@sfgov.org>; Waltonstaff (BOS) <waltonstaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Opposition to Caltrans PROW-AT&T Mobility Macro WTS Facility

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioner Secretary:

My name is Teddy Rusli and | am a board member of Candlestick Cove Homeowner Association. On
behalf of the board, | write in strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020

meeting: Caltrans PROW-AT&T Mobility Macro WTS Facility (1-91 Executive Park Blvd) 2018-
009545CUA

Candlestick Cove HOA has 150 units with 450+ residents. We all have to live with this cell tower for
as long as we live here and we are concerned with 3 things:

1. Lack of at&t concern for community feedback
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change.org

Recipient: San Francisco Planning Commission

Letter: Greetings,

Change at&amp;t cell tower installation near your home
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Name

Teddy Rusli
Corinne Chen
Helen Howlett
Ruixin Ding
Svetlana Day
Claire Anne Dilag
Winnie Low
Harsha Kabra

Ankit Maroo

Yekaterina Stepanova

Payal Mehra

Yuka Reichle
Rebecca Low
Bowie Chau
Alisha Roeder

Asti Te

Veronica Guerrero
Kar Chau

Emily Chau

Chun Chau

Location
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San Francisco, CA
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Jinshan Mao
Diana Witonsky
Kristin Bousquet
David Bousquet

Jing Lin-warren

Avinash Valsarajan

Kristine Qiu
Min-Lin Fang
Julian Eison
Christina Eison
Jason Wen
Monica Wu
Lorna Montes
Shawn Wen
Ellen Yang
Prashant Gangwal
Luis Miguel Soria
David Laney
Sharon Johnson
Jose Rodriguez
Eileen Lee

Shaqib Shaikh

Location
Dublin, CA

San Francisco, CA

South San Francisco, CA
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San Francisco, CA
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Name

Steven Ng

Yu Liang
Marlene Tang
Diaa Aldahleh
Linda McKay
Alissa Bermudez
Pranjal Mahna
hinfung Yu
Cynthia Lennox

Amanda Lennox

Location

San Francisco, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Francisco, CA
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Date
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Change at&t cell tower installation near your home

5 58 have signed. Let's get to 100!
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Commission: Change at&t cell...

Ed1 Share on Facebook

g Teddy Rusli started this petition to San Francisco Planning Commission & Copy link

This petition calls for at&t to change the cell tower installation
location further away from the residential area (Candlestick Show this petition to more potential
Point, San Francisco, California). supporters

Background: Promote this petition

One community meeting in 2018 and then silence...

In 2018, at&t was planning to install a cell tower on Blanken Way
and Executive Park Boulevard, San Francisco. Many residents
around the area have expressed opposition through the
community meeting and email. It is clear now that it was simply
to satisfy a checklist. There was no further reach out until a Dec
10, 2020 public hearing notice. It is mind boggling why another
location was not chosen. Our area has other suitable sites where
the cell tower can be installed away from residential areas (see
map).

Health Concern:

Anything can become a poison given enough high doses over
a long period.

at&t along with other cell providers will likely cite that there is no
proof that cell phone radiation causes cancer. The fair statement
is that it is inconclusive as there isn't enough data. (see
reference - American Cancer Society).

Technology history is full of “oops’ moments. What was once
originally thought as a breakthrough and harmless innovation

ended up as harmful. Examples:

o Lead in pipe
o Lead in paint
o BPA in plastic bottles for babies

o Asbestos

The key here is we don't want to find out when it's too late. There
is a preventative measure that can be taken now.

Property Values Impact:

o It is definitely not positive.
o Neutral at best.
o Negative most likely.
Cell towers have a similar impact on properties near high voltage

power lines. (see reference)

Please help make at&t change their plan by signing this petition.
We are hopeful that, with your advocacy, we can push the San
Francisco Planning Commission to reject at&t’s application.
Regards,

Board of Directors - Candlestick Cove Homeowners Association

San Francisco, CA 94134

Contacts:

Ashley Lindsay

San Francisco Planning Department Staff
628-652-7360

Ashley.Lindsay@sfgov.org

Shamann Walton
San Francisco District 10 Supervisor

(415) 554-7670

waltonstaff@sfgov.org

David Chiu

California Assembly Member District 17
(415) 557-3013

Contact Form:

https:/lcmspubcontact.lc.ca.gov/PublicLCMS/ContactPopup.php
2district=AD17

References:
San Francisco Planning Commission
Public Notice for Project Application

https://sfplanning.org/page/public-notices-project-applications

Caltrans PROW-AT&T Mobility Macro WTS Facility (1-91
Executive Park Blvd) 2018-009545CUA

Public Notice Document

https://citypln-m-extnl.sfgov.org/SharedLinks.aspx?
accesskey=78651b30d5338920db07089¢c31e3450f6ee471d974fa
1663a4e21a8dedcac29f&VaultGUID=A4A7DACD-BODC-4322-
BD29-F6F07103C6EQ

at&t Cell Tower Installation Plan Documents

https://citypln-m-extnl.sfgov.org/SharedLinks.aspx?
accesskey=78651b30d5338920db07089c31e3450f6ee471d9741a
1663a4e21a8dedcac29f&\VaultGUID=A4ATDACD-BODC-4322-
BD29-F6F07103C6EQ

American Cancer Society - Cell Phone Towers Safety

https://www.cancer.org/cancer/cancer-causes/radiation-

exposure/cellular-phone-towers.html

National Association of Realtors - Cell Phone Towers Impact on
Property Values

https:/www.nar.realtor/cell-phone-towers#section-165807

Mayo Clinic - What is BPA, and what are the concerns about
BPA?

https:/www.mayoclinic.org/healthy-lifestyle/nutrition-and-
healthy-eating/expert-answers/bpa/faqg-
20058331#:~:text=BPA%20stands%20for%20bisphenol%20A,and
%20resins%20since%20the%201960s.&text=Polycarbonate?%20p
lastics%20are%20o0ften%20used,used%20in%200other%20consu
mer%20goods

Asbestos

https://fen.wikipedia.org/wiki/Asbestos#cite note-4

Updates

Kesp your supporters engaged with a news update. Every
update you post will be sent as a separate email to signers of
your petition.

Post an update

50 supporters 3 hours ago

Teddy Rusli started this petition 2 days ago

Reasons for signing

&

& Lorna Montes - 13 hours ago |

This is not ok! We do not want this tower in our community. This is a
health hazard. We already live near a freeway.

Do

View all reasons for signing )

Report a policy violation
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‘s> Promoted by 1 supporter “s* Promoted by 23 supporters ‘s> Promoted by 1 supporter
£ oA . oo
DO YOU HAVE A LOVED ONE IN o
RIVERSIDE OR SAN BERNARDINO , \\‘ e
COUNTY CUSTODY? \ [, v/
i &

When was the last time you saw them in person?
Starting Over, Inc. is asking our County leadars
to reinstate safe and responsible in-person
jail visitation - and we need your help.

L &
LEFT DEAD LEFT  DEAD

REMASTERED REMASTERED

Reinstate responsible in- Left 4 Dead Remastered on Wave MCAS requirements
person visitation in Riverside PS4 & Xbox One (With Mod for next 3 Years

and San Bernardino 'C'|:|'|-"'|‘|:‘1r SUPPDT'-') Many students have been struggling to learn
iE“S Over the years the Left 4 Dead Community has and take in the information needed to pass

T . become a very big community, people have MCAS due to remote learning. Mot... Read more

Sign the petition | | Sign the petition | | Sign the petition

‘+> Promoted by 1 supporter s+ Promoted by 11 supporters s+ Promoted by 126 supporters

o S T =
- -} ; e
ELMHURST a i A
*"""""';"5 .-';:.,r’
.l:-' ' }'—
UNITED
’ -
-

Sl

Protect our neighborhood The Impeachment of New Justicia para Sota! Justice
from Roberto's parking lot Jersey Governor Phill for Sota!

plan! Murphy NO ES SEGURO TENER A AGENTES DE
Hello Neighbors! We formed ELMHURST In light of the recent actions taken by MNew POLICIA EN LAS CALLES DE BARCELONA
MEIGHBORS UNITED to protect the safety of Jersey Governor phill Murphy infringing on QUE TIENEN MIEDO A LOS... Read more

| Sign the petition | | Sign the petition | | Sign the petition

‘. Promoted by 11 supporters ::+ Promoted by 40 supporters @i Trending on Change.org

.-
SAY NO TO SUPER WAWA
SUPPORT SMALL BUSINESSES
DECEMBER 16th @ .00 PM...........
SAY NO to Proposed Super We need a library in Lake Demand Justice for Casey
Wawa Construction in Mt. Nona! Christian Goodson Jr
Laurel on Route 38 The residents in the Lake Mona area On Friday, December 4th, 23 year-old Casey
We oppose Super Wawa #ZB20-D-09 site desperately need a library! As the fastest Christian Goodson Jr, was shot three times in
proposed to be built immediately next door to growing area of Crlando, the Lake... Read more the back and murdered by... Read more
Sign the petition Sign the petition Sign the petition
COMPANY COMMUNITY SUPPORT CONNECT
About Blog Help Twitter
Impact Press Guides Facebook
Careers Privacy
Team Policies
Cookies
© 2020, Change.org, PBC Certified B Corporation English (United States) b

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.




https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy8=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9zdGFydC1hLXBldGl0aW9uP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1oZWFkZXI=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy91L21l

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wZXRpdGlvbnM=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9tZW1iZXI/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPW1lbWJlcl9saW5rX2hlYWRlcg==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9zZWFyY2g=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS9kYXNoYm9hcmQ=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy91LzExNjc1MjU4OTE=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9kZWNpc2lvbi1tYWtlcnMvc2FuLWZyYW5jaXNjby1wbGFubmluZy1jb21taXNzaW9uLTI=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS9zcG9uc29ycy9uZXc/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uc19zaG93X2NvbXBvbmVudHNfYWN0aW9uX3BhbmVsX3dyYXBwZXI=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9sY21zcHViY29udGFjdC5sYy5jYS5nb3YvUHVibGljTENNUy9Db250YWN0UG9wdXAucGhwP2Rpc3RyaWN0PUFEMTc=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9sY21zcHViY29udGFjdC5sYy5jYS5nb3YvUHVibGljTENNUy9Db250YWN0UG9wdXAucGhwP2Rpc3RyaWN0PUFEMTc=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9zZnBsYW5uaW5nLm9yZy9wYWdlL3B1YmxpYy1ub3RpY2VzLXByb2plY3QtYXBwbGljYXRpb25z

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9jaXR5cGxuLW0tZXh0bmwuc2Znb3Yub3JnL1NoYXJlZExpbmtzLmFzcHg/YWNjZXNza2V5PTc4NjUxYjMwZDUzMzg5MjBkYjA3MDg5YzMxZTM0NTBmNmVlNDcxZDk3NGZhMTY2M2E0ZTIxYThkZWRjYWMyOWYmVmF1bHRHVUlEPUE0QTdEQUNELUIwREMtNDMyMi1CRDI5LUY2RjA3MTAzQzZFMA==

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

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2FuY2VyLm9yZy9jYW5jZXIvY2FuY2VyLWNhdXNlcy9yYWRpYXRpb24tZXhwb3N1cmUvY2VsbHVsYXItcGhvbmUtdG93ZXJzLmh0bWw=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2FuY2VyLm9yZy9jYW5jZXIvY2FuY2VyLWNhdXNlcy9yYWRpYXRpb24tZXhwb3N1cmUvY2VsbHVsYXItcGhvbmUtdG93ZXJzLmh0bWw=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cubmFyLnJlYWx0b3IvY2VsbC1waG9uZS10b3dlcnMjc2VjdGlvbi0xNjU4MDc=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cubWF5b2NsaW5pYy5vcmcvaGVhbHRoeS1saWZlc3R5bGUvbnV0cml0aW9uLWFuZC1oZWFsdGh5LWVhdGluZy9leHBlcnQtYW5zd2Vycy9icGEvZmFxLTIwMDU4MzMxIzp+OnRleHQ9QlBBJTIwc3RhbmRzJTIwZm9yJTIwYmlzcGhlbm9sJTIwQSxhbmQlMjByZXNpbnMlMjBzaW5jZSUyMHRoZSUyMDE5NjBzLiZ0ZXh0PVBvbHljYXJib25hdGUlMjBwbGFzdGljcyUyMGFyZSUyMG9mdGVuJTIwdXNlZCx1c2VkJTIwaW4lMjBvdGhlciUyMGNvbnN1bWVyJTIwZ29vZHM=

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

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9lbi53aWtpcGVkaWEub3JnL3dpa2kvQXNiZXN0b3MjY2l0ZV9ub3RlLTQ=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS91L25ldw==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS9jLzgxMDMwNDYxNQ==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS9jLzgxMDMwNDYxNQ==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Nhbi1mcmFuY2lzY28tcGxhbm5pbmctY29tbWlzc2lvbi1jaGFuZ2UtYXQtdC1jZWxsLXRvd2VyLWluc3RhbGxhdGlvbi1uZWFyLXlvdXItaG9tZS9jP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9zaG93

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2NoYWQtYmlhbmNvLXJpdmVyc2lkZS1jb3VudHktc2hlcmlmZi1yZWluc3RhdGUtcmVzcG9uc2libGUtaW4tcGVyc29uLXZpc2l0YXRpb24taW4tcml2ZXJzaWRlLWFuZC1zYW4tYmVybmFyZGluby1jb3VudHktamFpbHM/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249MSZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBRGtXandFQUFBQUFYOUZDS210TUY0UTFOemRpTW1Gak5BJTNEJTNE

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

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3ZhbHZlLWNvcnBvcmF0aW9uLWxlZnQtNC1kZWFkLXJlbWFzdGVyZWQtd2l0aC1tb2Qtc3VwcG9ydC1vbi1wczQteGJveC1vbmU/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249MiZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBRm5xeVFBQUFBQUFYOUZDS21vYSUyQjM5bVpUSTJOR1V4TWclM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3ZhbHZlLWNvcnBvcmF0aW9uLWxlZnQtNC1kZWFkLXJlbWFzdGVyZWQtd2l0aC1tb2Qtc3VwcG9ydC1vbi1wczQteGJveC1vbmU/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249MiZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBRm5xeVFBQUFBQUFYOUZDS21vYSUyQjM5bVpUSTJOR1V4TWclM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3ZhbHZlLWNvcnBvcmF0aW9uLWxlZnQtNC1kZWFkLXJlbWFzdGVyZWQtd2l0aC1tb2Qtc3VwcG9ydC1vbi1wczQteGJveC1vbmU/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249MiZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBRm5xeVFBQUFBQUFYOUZDS21vYSUyQjM5bVpUSTJOR1V4TWclM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3ZhbHZlLWNvcnBvcmF0aW9uLWxlZnQtNC1kZWFkLXJlbWFzdGVyZWQtd2l0aC1tb2Qtc3VwcG9ydC1vbi1wczQteGJveC1vbmU/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249MiZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBRm5xeVFBQUFBQUFYOUZDS21vYSUyQjM5bVpUSTJOR1V4TWclM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL21hc3NhY2h1c2V0dHMtZGVwYXJ0bWVudC1vZi1lbGVtZW50YXJ5LXNlY29uZGFyeS1lZHVjYXRpb24td2F2ZS1tY2FzLXJlcXVpcmVtZW50cy1mb3ItbmV4dC0zLXllYXJzP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTMmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUpaNmtBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0trQyUyQnMyczNOalExWkdReE9RJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL21hc3NhY2h1c2V0dHMtZGVwYXJ0bWVudC1vZi1lbGVtZW50YXJ5LXNlY29uZGFyeS1lZHVjYXRpb24td2F2ZS1tY2FzLXJlcXVpcmVtZW50cy1mb3ItbmV4dC0zLXllYXJzP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTMmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUpaNmtBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0trQyUyQnMyczNOalExWkdReE9RJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL21hc3NhY2h1c2V0dHMtZGVwYXJ0bWVudC1vZi1lbGVtZW50YXJ5LXNlY29uZGFyeS1lZHVjYXRpb24td2F2ZS1tY2FzLXJlcXVpcmVtZW50cy1mb3ItbmV4dC0zLXllYXJzP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTMmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUpaNmtBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0trQyUyQnMyczNOalExWkdReE9RJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2VsbWh1cnN0LWNpdHktY291bmNpbC1wcm90ZWN0LW91ci1uZWlnaGJvcmhvb2QtZnJvbS1yb2JlcnRvLXMtcGFya2luZy1sb3QtcGxhbj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj00JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFQR2xqZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLc0Z6YXZvMFlXVm1ZemhoWlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2VsbWh1cnN0LWNpdHktY291bmNpbC1wcm90ZWN0LW91ci1uZWlnaGJvcmhvb2QtZnJvbS1yb2JlcnRvLXMtcGFya2luZy1sb3QtcGxhbj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj00JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFQR2xqZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLc0Z6YXZvMFlXVm1ZemhoWlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2VsbWh1cnN0LWNpdHktY291bmNpbC1wcm90ZWN0LW91ci1uZWlnaGJvcmhvb2QtZnJvbS1yb2JlcnRvLXMtcGFya2luZy1sb3QtcGxhbj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj00JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFQR2xqZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLc0Z6YXZvMFlXVm1ZemhoWlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2VsbWh1cnN0LWNpdHktY291bmNpbC1wcm90ZWN0LW91ci1uZWlnaGJvcmhvb2QtZnJvbS1yb2JlcnRvLXMtcGFya2luZy1sb3QtcGxhbj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj00JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFQR2xqZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLc0Z6YXZvMFlXVm1ZemhoWlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Utcy1ob3VzZS1vZi1yZXByZXNlbnRhdGl2ZXMtdGhlLWltcGVhY2htZW50LW9mLW5ldy1qZXJzZXktZ292ZXJub3ItcGhpbGwtbXVycGh5P3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTUmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QVBZa1RBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0tsTWNHTVV3WVRoaFpETXpaZyUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Utcy1ob3VzZS1vZi1yZXByZXNlbnRhdGl2ZXMtdGhlLWltcGVhY2htZW50LW9mLW5ldy1qZXJzZXktZ292ZXJub3ItcGhpbGwtbXVycGh5P3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTUmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QVBZa1RBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0tsTWNHTVV3WVRoaFpETXpaZyUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Utcy1ob3VzZS1vZi1yZXByZXNlbnRhdGl2ZXMtdGhlLWltcGVhY2htZW50LW9mLW5ldy1qZXJzZXktZ292ZXJub3ItcGhpbGwtbXVycGh5P3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTUmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QVBZa1RBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0tsTWNHTVV3WVRoaFpETXpaZyUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3Utcy1ob3VzZS1vZi1yZXByZXNlbnRhdGl2ZXMtdGhlLWltcGVhY2htZW50LW9mLW5ldy1qZXJzZXktZ292ZXJub3ItcGhpbGwtbXVycGh5P3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTUmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QVBZa1RBRUFBQUFBWDlGQ0tsTWNHTVV3WVRoaFpETXpaZyUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2FkYS1jb2xhdS1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1zb3RhP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTYmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUlyRDFnQUFBQUFBWDlGQ0ttWVBFc1JsTXpRek4yWTRPQSUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2FkYS1jb2xhdS1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1zb3RhP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTYmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUlyRDFnQUFBQUFBWDlGQ0ttWVBFc1JsTXpRek4yWTRPQSUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2FkYS1jb2xhdS1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1zb3RhP3NvdXJjZV9sb2NhdGlvbj1wZXRpdGlvbl9mb290ZXImYWxnb3JpdGhtPXByb21vdGVkJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTYmcHQ9QVZCbGRHbDBhVzl1QUlyRDFnQUFBQUFBWDlGQ0ttWVBFc1JsTXpRek4yWTRPQSUzRCUzRA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3NheS1uby10by1wcm9wb3NlZC1zdXBlci13YXdhLWNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbi1pbi1tdC1sYXVyZWwtb24tcm91dGUtMzg/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249NyZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBSU5kandFQUFBQUFYOUZDS2dIMTR0SmxObU14TmpRMlpRJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3NheS1uby10by1wcm9wb3NlZC1zdXBlci13YXdhLWNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbi1pbi1tdC1sYXVyZWwtb24tcm91dGUtMzg/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249NyZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBSU5kandFQUFBQUFYOUZDS2dIMTR0SmxObU14TmpRMlpRJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3NheS1uby10by1wcm9wb3NlZC1zdXBlci13YXdhLWNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbi1pbi1tdC1sYXVyZWwtb24tcm91dGUtMzg/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249NyZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBSU5kandFQUFBQUFYOUZDS2dIMTR0SmxObU14TmpRMlpRJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3NheS1uby10by1wcm9wb3NlZC1zdXBlci13YXdhLWNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbi1pbi1tdC1sYXVyZWwtb24tcm91dGUtMzg/c291cmNlX2xvY2F0aW9uPXBldGl0aW9uX2Zvb3RlciZhbGdvcml0aG09cHJvbW90ZWQmb3JpZ2luYWxfZm9vdGVyX3BldGl0aW9uX2lkPTI2MjE2NTkwJmdyaWRfcG9zaXRpb249NyZwdD1BVkJsZEdsMGFXOXVBSU5kandFQUFBQUFYOUZDS2dIMTR0SmxObU14TmpRMlpRJTNEJTNE

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3dlLW5lZWQtYS1saWJyYXJ5LWluLXRoZS1sYWtlLW5vbmEtYXJlYT9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj04JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFGYmZnZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLdnNySmw4NU5XSTJNRGM0TlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3dlLW5lZWQtYS1saWJyYXJ5LWluLXRoZS1sYWtlLW5vbmEtYXJlYT9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj04JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFGYmZnZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLdnNySmw4NU5XSTJNRGM0TlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL3dlLW5lZWQtYS1saWJyYXJ5LWluLXRoZS1sYWtlLW5vbmEtYXJlYT9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1wcm9tb3RlZCZvcmlnaW5hbF9mb290ZXJfcGV0aXRpb25faWQ9MjYyMTY1OTAmZ3JpZF9wb3NpdGlvbj04JnB0PUFWQmxkR2wwYVc5dUFGYmZnZ0VBQUFBQVg5RkNLdnNySmw4NU5XSTJNRGM0TlElM0QlM0Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2RlbWFuZC1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1jYXNleS1jaHJpc3RpYW4tZ29vZHNvbi1qcj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1jdXJhdGVkX3RyZW5kaW5nJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTkmcHQ9

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2RlbWFuZC1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1jYXNleS1jaHJpc3RpYW4tZ29vZHNvbi1qcj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1jdXJhdGVkX3RyZW5kaW5nJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTkmcHQ9

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wL2RlbWFuZC1qdXN0aWNlLWZvci1jYXNleS1jaHJpc3RpYW4tZ29vZHNvbi1qcj9zb3VyY2VfbG9jYXRpb249cGV0aXRpb25fZm9vdGVyJmFsZ29yaXRobT1jdXJhdGVkX3RyZW5kaW5nJm9yaWdpbmFsX2Zvb3Rlcl9wZXRpdGlvbl9pZD0yNjIxNjU5MCZncmlkX3Bvc2l0aW9uPTkmcHQ9

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9hYm91dA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9pbXBhY3Q=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9jYXJlZXJz

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9hYm91dC90ZWFt

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9sL3Vz

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9sL3VzL3AvcHJlc3M=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9oZWxwLmNoYW5nZS5vcmcvcy8/bGFuZ3VhZ2U9ZW4=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9ndWlkZS5jaGFuZ2Uub3JnLw==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wb2xpY2llcy9wcml2YWN5

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wb2xpY2llcw==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9wb2xpY2llcy9jb29raWVz

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly90d2l0dGVyLmNvbS9DaGFuZ2U=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZmFjZWJvb2suY29tL2NoYW5nZS5vcmc=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuY2hhbmdlLm9yZy9hYm91dC9idXNpbmVzcy1tb2RlbA==

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9wb2xpY2llcy5nb29nbGUuY29tL3ByaXZhY3k=

https://getfireshot.com/pdf_aHR0cHM6Ly9wb2xpY2llcy5nb29nbGUuY29tL3Rlcm1z




























2. Health hazard

3. Negative impact on property value.
The details of our concern is listed in the petition: http://chng.it/S8BcjlLcgwC. It is signed not by our
HOA members but also by other neighborhoods nearby: Executive Park and Little Hollywood.
Attached are the petition and the 58 signatures as of Dec 9, 1:35 PM.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners. They must take seriously
the concerns of many residents here.

Regards,
Teddy Rusli

Board Member - Candlestick Cove HOA
District 10 resident.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: Submitting my comment for the public hearing
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 11:15:32 AM
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

From: Yu Liang <liangy01@hotmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 10:41 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Submitting my comment for the public hearing

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hi,

| was informed by Linda McKay that yesterday was the last day to submit comment to your
public hearing about the AT&T cell tower. As confused as it can possibly sound why the Little
Hollywood neighborhood is informed so late, | am sending my concern and disappointment
about this plan and want to know why AT&T does not propose several plans of possible sites
and present their assessment of each possibility and/or the justification of the decision. |
would like to hear these details from them in the hearing.

Yu Liang
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: AT&T cell tower installation

Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 10:00:24 AM
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

From: Jason Mao <jasonmao@singhaiyi.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 9:49 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: AT&T cell tower installation

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is in opposition to the AT&T cell tower installation on Blanken Way and Executive
Park.

My name is Jinshan Mao and | am the Managing Director of SingHaiyi Group US Operations. My
company owns the office building and land at 5 Thomas Mellon Circle in San Francisco. It is entitled
for a 585 residential unit development. We strongly oppose installation of the AT&T tower because
of the dramatic property value loss we will suffer if the cell tower is installed.

The impact of loss to our property value is extraordinary due to the close proximity of the proposed
tower to our property. If installed, the current office building tenants and future residential units will
be directly across from the proposed cell tower. Our residential tenant target market of high-end
owners will be significantly diminished as this target market will not purchase a home with an
obstructed view by a gigantic fake tree. In addition to the foregoing, fear of cell tower failures, fires,
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and health concerns will prohibit purchasers and tenants from considering our property if this cell
tower is built.

On behalf of SingHaiyi Group US Operations and myself, we respectfully request the planning
commission to require AT&T to consider other locations.

Sincerely,
Jinshan Mao

Managing Director

US Operations
SingHaiyi Group Limited
5 Thomas Mellon Circle
Suite 305,San Francisco
CA 94134, USA

Cell: (415) 307 4899
Tel:  (415) 881 4483
Fax: (415)814 0849



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: AT&T installation in District 10

Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 10:00:06 AM
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

From: Candlestick Resident <candlestickcoveresident@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 8:07 AM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
<ashley.lindsay@sfgov.org>; Waltonstaff (BOS) <waltonstaff@sfgov.org>

Subject: AT&T installation in District 10

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissions Secretary, Ashley, and Supervisor Walton,

| am writing to express my strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020 meeting agenda;
the installation of an AT&T pole near the Candlestick Cove neighborhood on Blanken Way and
Executive Park Boulevard.

When an installation like this occurs, | believe that the local government must help to take into
account the health and well-being of those residing near the equipment.

For many years, residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point neighborhoods have been targeted as a
location to place this type of equipment. The placement of this equipment exposes residents to
health hazards.
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Thank you!

-CCR
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

From: Winnie Low <winnielow@hotmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 11:02 PM

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

I write in strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020 meeting
agenda installing an AT&T pole near the Candlestick Cove
neighborhood.

When such an installation is proposed by a large corporation as AT&T, local
government agencies must take into account the health and well-being of those
residing near the equipment.
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For many years, residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point neighborhoods have
been targeted as a location to place this type of equipment. The placements

exposed residents to health hazards.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners. They
must take seriously the long-term health consequences in their decision on this

matter.

Winnie Low
Districts 10 Resident



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: AT&T installation in District 10

Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 9:58:30 AM
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

From: Ellen <ellenita@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 9:54 PM

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

As a member of the Bayview/Hunter's Point Community and resident of the
Candlestick Cove community, | vehemently oppose the installment of an

AT&T pole near the Candlestick Cove neighborhood. This is
an item on the upcoming December 10, 2020 meeting

agenda.

Local government agencies must prioritize the health and well-being of
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local residents over the interests of large corporations, such AT&T. We elected you
to do so and hold you to that expectation.

The residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point neighborhoods have had enough
exposure to health hazards and need local governments to stand up for them.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners. They
must take seriously the long term health consequences in their decision on this
matter.

Ellen Yang
District 10 Resident



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: AT&T installation in District 10
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 9:57:59 AM

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning Department

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
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Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here.

From: Ankit Maroo <ankitmaru@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 5:37 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: AT&T installation in District 10

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Commissioner Secretary:

I write in strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020 meeting agenda installing an AT&T pole near the
Candlestick Cove neighborhood.

When such an installation is proposed by a large corporation as AT&T, local government agencies must take into
account the health and well-being of those residing near the equipment.

For many years, residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point neighborhoods have been targeted as a location to place
this type of equipment. The placements exposed residents to health hazards.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners. They must take seriously the long term
health consequences in their decision on this matter.

thanks
Ankit Maroo


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:ashley.lindsay@sfgov.org

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

From: Julian Eison <jeison@eisonomics.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 5:08 PM

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

| write in strong opposition to an item on the December 10, 2020 meeting agenda installing an
AT&T pole near the Candlestick Cove neighborhood.

When such an installation is proposed by a large corporation as AT&T, local government agencies
must take into account the health and well-being of those residing near the equipment.

For many years, residents of the Bayview and Hunters Point neighborhoods have been targeted as a
location to place this type of equipment. The placements exposed residents to health hazards.

Commissioner Secretary, please forward this email to the commissioners. They must take seriously
the long term health consequences in their decision on this matter.
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Julian Eison
District 10 Resident

Julian Eison, Investor

julianeison.com
650.451.2888

Twitter | Medium
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Lindsay, Ashley (CPC)
Subject: FW: Re:Candlestick Cove ATT tower installation
Date: Wednesday, December 09, 2020 9:57:09 AM
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

From: Harsha Kabra <harsha.kabra28 @gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 4:22 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re:Candlestick Cove ATT tower installation

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
Hi,

This email is to offer public comment on the installation of a tower by AT&T in my neighbourhood,
Candlestick Cove. I'm a concerned resident requesting a change of location for this AT&T cell tower

to a location further away from the residential area (Candlestick Point, San
Francisco, California).

Background:
One community meeting in 2018 and then silence...

In 2018, at&t was planning to install a cell tower on Blanken Way and
Executive Park Boulevard, San Francisco. Many residents around the area
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have expressed opposition through the community meeting and email. It is
clear now that it was simply to satisfy a checklist. There was no further
reach out until a Dec 10, 2020 public hearing notice. It is mind boggling why
another location was not chosen. Our area has other suitable sites where
the cell tower can be installed away from residential areas (see map).

Health Concern:

Anything can become a poison given enough high doses over a long
period.

at&t along with other cell providers will likely cite that there is no proof that
cell phone radiation causes cancer. The fair statement is that it

is inconclusive as there isn’'t enough data. (see reference - American
Cancer Society).

Technology history is full of “oops’ moments. What was once originally
thought as a breakthrough and harmless innovation ended up as harmful.
Examples:

o Lead in pipe

o Lead in paint
o BPA in plastic bottles for babies
o Asbestos

The key here is we don’t want to find out when it’s too late. There is a
preventative measure that can be taken now.

Property Values Impact:
o It is definitely not positive.

o Neutral at best.
o Negative most likely.
Cell towers have a similar impact on properties near high voltage power

lines.

We are hopeful that, with your advocacy, we can push the San Francisco
Planning Commission to reject at&t’s application.

Best,
Harsha Kabra






From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC

Subject: FW: General Public Comment for December 10, 2020. CORRECTED VERSION
Date: Tuesday, December 08, 2020 8:32:47 AM

Attachments: Comments 1017 Stabilization.pdf

Presentation 5.pdf
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

0 v O « & =

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

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Monday, December 07, 2020 10:35 PM

To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; mooreurban@aol.com; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael
(CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>

Cc: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC)
<corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>; Rodgers, AnMarie
(CPC) <anmarie.rodgers@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; Chion, Miriam
(CPC) <miriam.chion@sfgov.org>; Nelson, Andrea (CPC) <andrea.nelson@sfgov.org>; Flores, Claudia
(CPC) <claudia.flores@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>; Merlone,
Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>

Subject: General Public Comment for December 10, 2020. CORRECTED VERSION

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.
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Comments on Community Stabilization. October 17, 2019
G. Schuttish

Just as the Master Plan encourages retention of housing
to meet this program the Master Plan encourages
retention of housing per Section 317.

Here are two examples that show the link between the
loss of multi unit housing due to displacement that
destabilizes communities and the extreme alterations,
most often horizontal and vertical expansion with removal
of the front and rear facade.

22-26 Day Street which is across from the extreme
alteration at 33 Day Street that originally sold for $1.4
million in 2014 and after the work sold for $4.7 in 2019.

33 Day Street sold first and received the site permit. Then
22-26 Day which is actually 6 units was sold above asking
$500K above asking for $2.425 in 2015 and was then
Ellis’ed by the new owners in 2016.

According to the complaints there was at least one
Spanish speaking tenant living in the property.

3544 Taraval Street which was saved by Supervisor Mar
and the tenants....seniors, Chinese as well as a Latino
and African American tenant was next door to 3534-3536
Taraval which became 3 deluxe condos after a horizontal





and vertical alteration and it is cited as putting the
pressure on 3544.,

| urge the Commission to see the linkage between these
four properties.

The point of Section 317 was to preserve housing and to
avoid the loss of relative affordability that happens when
there are Demolitions.

The two extreme alterations created a situation where the
adjacent buildings occupied by tenants were put into
jeopardy.

One was saved thanks to the Small Sites Program, but
the other was not and it was Ellis’ed and is still
undergoing extensive interior alterations.

Given normal human reactions and the highly speculative
climate, it would be prudent for the Commission to at
least consider adjusting the Demo Calcs based on what
happened on Day Street and Taraval Street because the
extreme alterations obviously had a direct impact on the
vulnerable rental housing nearby and the human beings
that occupied these units.






General Public Comment

December 10, 2020
Projects on Taraval Street and Day Street
Follow up to Comments on October 17, 2019 regarding Community Stanilization

Small Sites, Ellis Act, Alteration of Multi-Unit Buildings, Demo Calcs and Speculative Market
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I\/Iayor London Breed and Superwsor Gordon Mar on Friday announced the purchase of a Taraval Street property through The City’s Small Sites program.

The purchase preserved the home of tenants including Zhen Ying Lee, far left, and Ming Young Lee, second from left. (Caroline Ghisolfi/Special to the S.F.
Examiner)
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Dear Commissioners:

Good evening to everyone.

Attached above are two items.

Back on October 17, 2019 during a hearing on Community Stabilization | talked
about 3544 Taraval Street which had just been rescued from developers through
the Small Sites Program and 22-26 Day Street which had been Ellis’ed by
developers.

The first pdfis “Comments 10/17" and are basically what | said that day.

| showed some pictures on the overhead which are included and now amplified in

the second pdf "Presentation 5”.

Since Commissioners Chan, Diamond, Imperial and Tanner were not seated and
President Koppel was absent on October 17, 2019, | wanted to revisit this subject.

(Also Director Hillis had resigned by this time, so he was not there that day either.)

| will just add that the tenants from 3544 Taraval Street cited the three condos
developed next door at 3534-3536-3538 Taraval Street (sold in 2018 for $1.275;
$1.385 and $1.370 million) as putting speculative pressure on their homes, which |
mentioned on SFGOVTV.

My point is that | think these projects show another reason for adjusting the Demo
Calcs in order to deal with the speculative pressure on all housing, particularly now
as we try to recalibrate what kind of City we want to be post-Pandemic.

Both 33 Day Street and 3534-3536 Taraval Street were approved as Alterations.
They put direct speculative pressure on the neighboring properties....| guess you

could call it gentrification in action.
Please take a quick look at the attached pdfs.

One more postscript, the condos at 22-26 Day Street are now for sale with one of
them asking $995K and the other asking $1.195 million for these two bedroom
remodeled units.




Thank you and take good care.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
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

Sent: Monday, December 07, 2020 6:27 PM

To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Chan,
Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung,
Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner,
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

Subject: General Public Comment for December 10, 2020

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
Back on October 17, 2019 during a hearing on Community Stabilization | talked about 3544 Taraval

Street which had just been rescued from developers through the Small Sites Program and 22-26 Day
Street which had been Ellis’ed by developers.

The first pdf is “Comments 10/17" and are basically what | said that day.

| showed some pictures on the overhead which are included and now amplified in the second pdf
"Presentation 5”.

Since Commissioners Chan, Diamond, Imperial were not seated and President Koppel was absent on
October 17, 2019, | wanted to revisit this subject. (Also Director Hillis had resigned by this time, so
he was not there that day either.)

I will just add that the tenants from 3544 Taraval Street cited the three condos developed next door
at 3534-3536-3538 Taraval Street (sold in 2018 for $1.275; $1.385 and $1.370 million) as putting
speculative pressure on their homes, which | mentioned on SFGOVTV.

My point is that | think these projects show another reason for adjusting the Demo Calcs in order to
deal with the speculative pressure on all housing, particularly now as we try to recalibrate what kind
of City we want to be post-Pandemic.

Both 33 Day Street and 3534-3536 Taraval Street were approved as Alterations. They put direct
speculative pressure on the neighboring properties....| guess you could call it gentrification in action.

Please take a quick look at the attached pdfs.

One more postscript, the condos at 22-26 Day Street are now for sale with one of them asking
$995K and the other asking $1.195 million for these two bedroom remodeled units.

Thank you and take good care.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish



From: Updegrave, Samantha (CPC)

To: Koppel, Joel (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC);
Eung, Frank (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC)

Subject: Revised CPC Packet 550 O"Farrell St Correcting minor typos

Date: Monday, December 07, 2020 3:33:34 PM

Attachments: 2017-004557CUA Revl.pdf

Good afternoon Commissioners.

Please find a revised version of the staff report for 550 O'Farrell Street. This revision fixes
minor typographical errors in the draft CUA motion:

e Section 2 and Exhibit A: updated project description to remove duplicative language

e Section 6B: Proposed Rear Yard is 23% (not 24%) and 6C: Roof deck is 3,142 square feet
(not 3,153)

e 101 Findings corrected to read (B ) that the site does not include existing housing and
(H) the project does not cast shadow on any parks

I'll read into the record that minor fixes were made after the initial publishing.

Thank you and see you Thursday!

Samantha Updegrave, LEED AP, Senior Planner (she/her)
Northeast Team, Current Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS OF AUGUST 17:
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 628.652.7322 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map0

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
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
CEQA FINDINGS
CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION
VARIANGE

December 10,2020
Record No.: 2017-004557CUA
Project Address: 550 O’Farrell Street
Zoning: Residential-Commercial, High Density (RC-4) Zoning District

80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District
North of Market Residential Special Use District (Subarea No. 1)
Block/Lot: 0318/009
Project Sponsor:  Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC
1160 Battery Street, Suite 100
San Francisco, CA 94111
Property Owner: Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC
832 Southampton Drive
Palo Alto, CA 94303
Staff Contact: Samantha Updegrave - (628) 652-7322
samantha.updegrave@sfgov.org

Recommendation: Approval with Conditions

Project Description

The project would demolish all but the fagade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-
basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within the RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning
District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and the North of Market Residential Special Use District No. 1. Dwelling
unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units.

Required Commission Action

The Planning Commission certified the 550 O’Farrell Street Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) on December 10,
2020 under Motion No.[_____].In order for the Project to proceed, the Commission must now adopt CEQA findings, a
Statement of Overriding Considerations, and a Mitigation and Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP) related to the
Project’s FEIR under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
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Executive Summary RECORD NO. 2017-004557CUA
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The Planning Commission must also grant Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 253,
263.7,271,and 303 to allow a structure over 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of street frontage that
exceeds the 80-foot base height limit in the North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1) and Bulk Limit
Exceptions.

Although not a Planning Commission action, pursuant to Planning Code Section 305, the Project will also require the
Zoning Administrator to grant a Variance from Planning Code Sections 134 and 140 from the requirements for Rear
Yard and Exposure.

Issues and Other Considerations

e Dwelling Unit Density. The North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1) allows a density ratio of one unit per
125 square feet of lot area, for a maximum density of 94 units. An exception in the Planning Code allows Projects
that provide at least 20% of its units as on-site affordable units to exclude the affordable units from the density
calculation. With 111 dwelling units, the Project complies with the density by providing 20% of the units below-
market-rate. The 22 below-market-rate units also satisfy the on-site portion of the Inclusionary Affordable
Housing requirement for the Project.

e Inclusionary Housing. The Project Sponsor proposes to comply with the Inclusionary Affordable Housing
requirements through the combination of on-site units and payment of the Affordable Housing Fee. In total, 20%
of the units will be below-market-rate: 13 units at the low-income tier (55% AMI), four (4) units at the moderate-
income tier (80% AMI), and five (5) units at the middle-income tier (110% AMI), for a total of 22 BMR units on-site.
As this only satisfies a portion of the required 25% On-Site Affordable Housing obligation, the remainder of the
requirement shall be paid as the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Fee, at the applicable rate of 30%. Based on
current fee rates, it is estimated that the project will pay approximately $1,524,308.35 as the balance of the
Inclusionary Affordable Housing requirement, in addition to the 22 on-site units.

e Conditional Use and North of Market Residential Special Use District (SUD) Affordable Housing Fee. A Conditional
Use is required to go above the 80-foot base height limit in the 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District in this SUD. If
granted, this fee would apply to gross floor area located on floors above 80 feet. Fees collected under this
provision shall be used solely to stabilize, rehabilitate, and retain affordable housing in the North of Market
Residential SUD. It estimated that this Project would pay $315,184 for this fee.

e Building Design. The project has changed in the following significant ways since the original submittal to the
Department:

o Theoriginal Project proposed full demolition of the existing garage, approximately 1,500 square feet of
ground-floor retail, 113 dwelling units, and two levels of parking at grade and the basement level for 21
parking spaces.

o Based on Department comments related to preservation, design, transit, and impact mitigation, the
Project was revised in September 2019 to retain the garage facade, reduce the unit count by two (from
113to 111), and eliminate the ground-floor retail and all motor vehicle parking.

o TheHistoric Preservation Commission (HPC) supports the proposed project with the retention of the
garage facade. They agreed that the Retained Elements Guidelines have been successfully applied to the
project and that the location of the new massing would be appropriate because it would match the size,
scale, and location of other residential buildings in the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District.

San Francisco
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o Onthefourth level a three-foot setback, with four feet at the corners, would create a hyphen between the
retained facade and new construction. A deeper setback at this level could create a desirable design
effect, but too deep a setback here could make the building appear top heavy. While there is potential for
a deeper setback, the Department supports the three to four-foot setback because it would effectively
differentiate the historic and addition while allowing for five dwelling units along this facade, as is typical
of the levels above.

o The Project Variant for full demolition of the existing historic resource that was evaluated in the
environmental review documents is not being pursued by the Project Sponsor and is not under
consideration.

e Public Outreach and Comment:

o PUBLIC OUTREACH: Between July 2018 - November 2020, the Project Sponsor has reached out to
representatives of the Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation (TNDC), Market Street for the
Masses (MSMC), Tenderloin Housing Clinic (THC), Tenderloin Museum, District 6 Community Planners,
Positive Resource Center, and several individual residents and community members to present and
discuss the Project. Issues discussed centered around affordability, possible community benefit
agreements, design and preservation of the existing facade, and opportunities for engagement between
community groups and future residents.

o PUBLIC COMMENTS: At the date of writing this report, the Department has received three letters in
support and one in opposition. Supporters cited the additional housing in the City, below-market-rate
units, and family-sized units that the Project will provide, in addition to the partial preservation of the
garage. Opposition was related to the aesthetic and lack of setbacks from the lot line. Representatives
from Tenderloin-based community organizations have also expressed support for the Project as a whole,
but also a desire for deeper levels of affordability to serve the immediate neighborhood and for all
housing fees that are collected to be directed back to the neighborhood. The San Francisco Housing
Action Coalition has endorsed the Project.

e Senate Bill 330: On February 4, 2020, the Project Sponsor filed a Preliminary Housing Development Application
pursuant to Senate Bill 330, the Housing Crisis Bill of 2019, to determine the zoning, design, subdivision, and fee
requirements that will apply to the housing development project throughout the review of the project.. Other
than the indexing fees, there have been no changes that would have impacted the Project between the filing and
the writing of this report.

e Significant Unavoidable Impacts and Mitigation. The existing structure is an historical resource under CEQA. The
demolition of most of the existing structure will have a significant unavoidable impact: it will cause a substantial
adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. The Project includes mitigation measures to reduce
these impacts, but not to less-than-significant levels. Mitigation measures include but are not limited to: an
Historic American Building Survey-like documentation of the building, objects, and materials; partial preservation
through retention of the facade, and permanent interpretative display about the history and architectural features
of the original structure, and its operation.

San Francisco
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e Residential Use Near Places of Entertainment. The Project Site is located within 300 feet of entertainment uses.
The Entertainment Commission has waived the hearing requirements for projects during COVID. The standard
conditions of approval from the Entertainment Commission have been included in the motion.

Environmental Review

On December 10, 2020, the Planning Commission certified the Final EIR (Case No. 2017-004557ENV ) in Motion No.
|

Basis for Recommendation

The Department finds that the Project is, on balance, consistent with the Objectives and Policies of the General Plan.
e Thisinfill housing project would provide 111 new residential units in an area near downtown with a shortage
of mixed-income housing. The new unit mix includes two- and three-bedroom units which supports the effort
to provide housing for families;

e The North of Market Residential Special Use District (NOMRSUD) has higher requirements for inclusionary and
affordable housing than other areas of the City. The Project would contribute 20% of the total units, equal to
22 units, as on-site affordable units. In addition, the Project would contribute approximately $1.5M to the
citywide affordable housing fund and an additional $315,184 toward the NOMRSUD Affordable Housing Fund
which is directed back to the neighborhood. All monetary contributions are administered through MOHCD;

e The NOMRSUD is an area where higher structure heights that act as a tranistion from the taller buidlngs of
downtown is appropriate;

e The project hasincorporated the garage facade into the final design of the project as outlined in the Retaned
Elements Guidelines and would strike a balance between the need to honor the existing historic architecture
and the need for new housing to serve varying household types, sizes, and incomes; and

e The Department also finds the project to be necessary, desirable, and compatible with the surrounding
neighborhood, and not to be detrimental to persons or adjacent properties in the vicinity.

Attachments:

Draft Motion ~CEQA Findings (Attachment A) and MMRP (Attachment B)
Draft Motion - Conditional Use Authorization with Conditions of Approval
Exhibit B - Plans and Renderings

Exhibit C - Land Use Data

Exhibit D - Maps and Context Photos

Exhibit E - Project Sponsor Brief

Exhibit F - Historic Preservation Commission comments on Draft EIR
Exhibit G - Inclusionary Affordable Housing Affidavit

Exhibit H — Anti-Discriminatory Housing Affidavit

Exhibit | - First Source Hiring Affidavit
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. 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
San Francisco San Francisco, CA 94103

628.652.7600
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PLANNING COMMISSION DRAFT MOTION
CEQA FINDINGS

December 10, 2020
Record No.: 2017-004557ENV
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
Project Sponsor: Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC
1160 Battery Street, Suite 100
San Francisco, CA94111
Property Owner: Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC
832 Southampton Drive
Palo Alto, CA 94303
Staff Contact: Samantha Updegrave - (628) 652-7322
samantha.updegrave@sfgov.org

ADOPTING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (“CEQA”), AND THE CEQA
GUIDELINES INCLUDING FINDINGS OF FACT, FINDINGS REGARDING SIGNIFICANT AND UNAVOIDABLE IMPACTS,
EVALUATION OF MITIGATION MEASURES AND ALTERNATIVES, THE ADOPTION OF A MITIGATION, MONITORING
AND REPORTING PROGRAM AND THE ADOPTION OF A STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS IN
CONNECTION WITH APPROVALS FOR THE 550 O’FARRELL STREET PROJECT THAT WOULD DEMOLISH ALL BUT
THE FACADE OF THE EXISTING TWO-STORY PARKING GARAGE AND CONSTRUCT A 13-STORY OVER BASEMENT
RESIDENIAL TOWERWITH 111 DWELLING UNITS. THE DWELLING UNIT DENSITY IS INCREASED UTILIZING
SECTION 207(c)(1) AND PROVIDING ON-SITE INCLUSIONARY UNITS, LOCATED AT 550 O’FARRELL STREET, LOT
009 OF ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 0318, WITHIN THE RC-4 (RESIDNETIAL HIGH DENSITY) ZONING DISTRICT, AN 80-T-
130-T HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, AND THE NORTH OF MARKET RESIDENTIAL SPECIAL USE DISTRICT
(SUBAREANO. 1).
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PREAMBLE

On August 30 2017, Rob Zirkle of Brick Inc, LLC, on behalf of Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC ("Project Sponsor") filed an
Environmental Evaluation Application No. 2017-004557ENV 004557CUA (“Application”) with the Planning Department
(“Department”) for a demolition and new construction development project at 550 O’Farrell Street, Block 0318, Lot
009 (“Project Site”). The Department deemed the Environmental Evaluation Application complete on April 16, 2018.

On October 15, 2018, the Project Sponsor filed Project Application No. 2017-004557CUA requesting Conditional Use
Authorization to demolish the existing 2-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement residential
tower with 113 dwelling units, 1,492 square feet of ground-level retail, and parking for 21 vehicles located at and
below grade at the Project Site.

On September 30, 2019, the Project Sponsor submitted a revision to Project Application No. 2017-004557CUA
requesting Conditional Use Authorization to demolish the existing 2-story parking garage but retain the garage facade
and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units ( “Project”) at the Project Site.

On February 4, 2020, the Project Sponsor filed a Preliminary Housing Development Application pursuant to the
Housing Crisis Bill of 2019 (“Senate Bill 330”) to determine the zoning, design, subdivision, and fee requirements that
will apply to the housing development project throughout the review and entitlement process.

On February 27, 2020, the Project Sponsor filed a supplemental Variance Application (Case No. 2017-004557VAR)
requesting relief from the requirements for Rear Yard and Dwelling unit Exposure at the Project Site.

On May 20, 2020, the Department published the Draft Environmental Impact Report ( “DEIR”) and provided public
notice in a newspaper of general circulation of the availability of the DEIR for public review and comment and of the
date and time of the Planning Commission public hearing on the DEIR; this notice was mailed to the Department’s list
of persons requesting such notice, and to property owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the site on May
20, 2020.

On June 25, 2020, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on the DEIR, at which opportunity for
public comment was provided and public comment was received on the DEIR. The period for public commenting on
the DEIR ended on July 7, 2020.

On November 9, 2020, the Department prepared and published the responses to comments on environmental issues
received during the comment period.

On November 23,2020, the Department published an Errata to the Response to Comments on the Draft EIR document
for 550 O’Farrell Street to correct typographical errors.

On December 10, 2020, the Commission reviewed and considered the information contained in the FEIR and found that
the contents of said report and the procedures through which the FEIR was prepared, publicized, and reviewed comply
with the provisions of CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code.

At that same hearing, the Planning Commission found that the FEIR was adequate, accurate, and objective, reflected

the independent analysis and judgement of the Department and the Planning Commission, that the Responses to
Comments document contained no significant revisions to the DEIR, and certified the FIER for the Projectin compliance

San Francisco
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with CEQA , the CEQA Guidelines, and Chapter 31 by its Motion No. [____ ].

The Commission, in certifying the FEIR, found that the Project described in the FEIR will have the following significant
and unavoidable environmental impact:

e Will have a significant, project-specific impact on historic architectural resources.

The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the custodian of records; the File for Record No. 2017-004557ENV,
located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California. Project EIR files have been made available
for review by the Commission and the public. These files are available for public review at the Department at 49 South
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, and are part of the record before the Commission. The files are also available online at the
following address: https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents

On December 10, 2020, the Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on
Case No. 2015-004568PRJ to consider the approval of the Project. The Commission has heard and considered the
testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further considered written materials and oral testimony
presented on behalf of the Project, the Planning Department staff, expert consultants and other interested parties.

The City and County of San Francisco, acting through the Department, fulfilled all procedural requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act, the State CEQA Guidelines, and Chapter 31.

The Commission has reviewed the entire record of this proceeding, including the California Environmental Quality Act
Findings prepared by the Department, attached to this Motion as Attachment A and incorporated fully by this
reference, regarding the alternatives, mitigation measures, environmental impacts analyzed in the FEIR and overriding
considerations for approving the Project, and including the proposed Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
(“MMRP”) attached as Attachment B and incorporated fully by this reference, which material was made available to the
public.

MOVED, that the Commission hereby adopts these findings under the California Environmental Quality Act, including
rejecting alternatives as infeasible and adopting a Statement of Overriding Considerations, as further set forth in
Attachment A hereto, and adopts the MMRP attached as Attachment B, based on substantial evidence in the entire
record of this proceeding.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Motion was ADOPTED by the Planning Commission at its regular meeting of
December 10, 2020.

Jonas P. lonin
Commission Secretary

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

ADOPTED: December 10, 2020

San Francisco
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Attachment A

California Environmental Quality Act Findings:

FINDINGS OF FACT, EVALUATION OF MITIGATION MEASURES AND ALTERNATIVES, AND STATEMENT OF
OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS

SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSION
PREAMBLE

In determining to approve the 550 O’Farrell Street project described in Section |, below, the ("Project”), the
San Francisco Planning Commission (the “Commission”) makes and adopts the following findings of fact
and decisions regarding the Project description and objectives, significant impacts, significant and
unavoidable impacts, mitigation measures and alternatives, and a statement of overriding considerations,
based on substantial evidence in the whole record of this proceeding and pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq. (“CEQA”), particularly
Section 21081 and 21081.5, the Guidelines for Implementation of CEQA, 14 California Code of Regulations
Section 15000 et seq. (“CEQA Guidelines”), Section 15091 through 15093, and Chapter 31 of the San
Francisco Administrative Code ("Chapter 31"). The Commission adopts these findings in conjunction with
the Approval Actions described in Section I(c), below, as required by CEQA, separate and apart from the
Commission’s certification of the Project’s Final Environmental Impact Report (“FEIR”), which the
Commission certified prior to adopting these CEQA findings.

These findings are organized as follows:

Section | provides a description of the proposed 550 O’Farrell Street project, the environmental review
process for the Project, the City approval actions to be taken, and the location and custodian of the record.

Section Il lists the Project’s less-than-significant impacts that do not require mitigation.

Section Il identifies potentially significant impacts that can be avoided or reduced to less-than-significant
levels through mitigation and describes the disposition of the mitigation measures.

Section IV identifies significant project-specific or cumulative impacts that would not be eliminated or
reduced to a less-than-significant level and describes any applicable mitigation measures as well as the
disposition of the mitigation measures. The FEIR identified mitigation measures to address these impacts,
but implementation of the mitigation measures will not reduce the impacts to a less than significant level.

Sections Ill and IV set forth findings as to the mitigation measures proposed in the FEIR. (The Draft EIR and
the Comments and Responses document together comprise the Final EIR, or “FEIR.”) Attachment B to the
Planning Commission Motion contains the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (“MMRP”), which
provides a table setting forth each mitigation measure listed in the Final Environmental Impact Report that
is required to reduce a significant adverse impact.
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Section Videntifies the project alternatives that were analyzed in the EIR and discusses the reasons for their
rejection.

Section VI sets forth the Planning Commission’s Statement of Overriding Considerations pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines Section 15093.

The MMRP for the mitigation measures that have been proposed for adoption is attached with these
findings as Attachment B to this Motion. The MMRP is required by CEQA Section 21081.6 and CEQA
Guidelines Section 15091. Attachment B provides a table setting forth each mitigation measure listed in the
FEIR that is required to reduce a significant adverse impact. Attachment B also specifies the agency
responsible for implementation of each measure and establishes monitoring actions and a monitoring
schedule. The full text of the mitigation measures is set forth in Attachment B.

These findings are based upon substantial evidence in the entire record before the Commission. The
references set forth in these findings to certain pages or sections of the Draft Environmental Impact Report
("Draft EIR" or "DEIR") or the Responses to Comments (“RTC”) document, which together comprise the Final
FEIR, are for ease of reference and are not intended to provide an exhaustive list of the evidence relied upon
for these findings.

|. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The project site is located on the north side of O’Farrell Street on the block bounded by O’Farrell Street to
the south, Geary Street to the north, Jones Street to the east, and Leavenworth Street to the west. The
project site consists of an 86-foot-wide by 138-foot-deep rectangular lot, developed as and currently used
as a public parking garage. The existing two-story-over-basement parking garage is approximately 35,400
sfin size and approximately 40 feet tall. An approximately 11.5-foot-deep partial basement level extends
under the sidewalk along O’Farrell Street. Two existing, approximately 26- to 28-foot-wide curb cuts provide
access to the garage from O’Farrell Street. The existing building, constructed in 1924, is located in and a
contributor to the National Register-listed Uptown Tenderloin Historic District and has been previously
determined to be individually eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources.

The Project would demolish most of the existing, approximately 35,400-sf, two-story-over-basement
parking garage and construct an approximately 104,960-sf, 130-foot-tall, 13-story-over-basement mixed-
use building. The Project would retain the O’Farrell Street facade of the existing building. The Project would
include 111 residential dwelling units (20 percent of which would be affordable inclusionary units), a 1,300-
sf ground-floor retail/residential amenity space, and basement-level and ground-level space
accommodating 156 class 1 bicycle parking spaces. The Project would provide three new street trees on
the O’Farrell Street sidewalk. The dwelling unit mix would include 35 one-bedroom units, 62 two-bedroom
units, and 14 three-bedroom units; 20 percent of the total units (or 22 units) would be affordable
inclusionary units.

The Project would be 13 stories tall, reaching 130 feet in height (146 feet in height to the top of the elevator
penthouse). The building’s parapet wall would be 2 feet in height, the mechanical and stair penthouse
would be 10 feet in height, and the elevator penthouse would be 16 feet above the roofline, respectively.
The Project would be set back approximately 31 feet from the rear property line.





Motion No. ] Record No. 2017-004557ENV
December 10, 2020 550 O’Farrell Street Project

The basement level of the Project would include a bicycle storage room with 108 class 1 bicycle parking
spaces, tenant storage, and mechanical space. The basement level would include a transformer vault
below part of the O’Farrell Street sidewalk. The existing 550 O’Farrell Street building includes basement
level space below the sidewalk that would be partially filled for the Project. The ground floor (level 1) would
contain four residential units (3 one-bedroom units and 1 three-bedroom unit), retail or residential amenity
space, residential lobby, leasing office, mechanical space, and 48 class 1 bicycle parking spaces. Level 1
would also include an approximately 2,100-sf common open space terrace, and private open space for the
four residential units. The retail/residential amenity space, located in the southeast corner of the ground
floor, and the residential lobby would be accessed from separate entrances fronting O’Farrell Street. Eight
class 2 bicycle parking spaces would be provided on the sidewalk on O’Farrell Street.

The 111 residential units would be located on levels 1 through 13. As previously noted, level 1 would contain
four residential units. Level 2 would include seven residential units (2 one-bedroom, 2 two-bedroom, and
3 three-bedroom units) and a 1,600-sf fitness center/amenity space for the residential uses. About 950 sf of
amenity space would be on level 3 as would the lofts associated with the 2 three-bedroom units on level 2.
The remaining 100 units (one-, two-, and three-bedroom units) would be located on levels 3 through 13.
Level 13 would include approximately 3,225 sf of common residential open space, four 2-bedroom units
and one 1-bedroom unit. The roof level would include a mechanical penthouse. A diesel-powered
combustion engine backup generator equipped with best available control technology for emissions
control would be installed on the roof level within the enclosed mechanical penthouse structure. The
generator would supply emergency power for exit lighting, fire alarm, fire pumps, smoke-control systems,
and other loads such as security systems. Other rooftop equipment would include a cooling tower, exhaust
fans, and heat pumps.

The building design would include articulated front, rear, and side elevations. The building exterior would
be constructed with a durable modern material, such as precast concrete, metal paneling, or an integrated
composite system and include the retained fagcade of the existing garage, discussed below.

The main elevation on O'Farrell Street would be organized in a vertical tripartite division similar to the
surrounding buildings that comprise the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District. The base of the building
would be the retained facade of the existing 550 O’Farrell Street garage, with plaster finish scored to
resemble masonry, and decorative panels. Level 4 would be set back three to four feet from the facade. The
middle section of the building would have deep inset punched windows organized into single and vertically
paired doubles, creating an offset fenestration pattern. The top of the building would be set back from the
middle section by 2.5 feet.

The rear, north elevation of the building would be a two-part volume with a base and upper facade, with
large punched window openings. The east and west sides of the building would be articulated as two
distinct volumes straddling the core, which is recessed 4 feet to provide light and air to the lightwells of the
adjacent buildings. The building core would be constructed of panel-formed concrete and exposed to the
exterior at the side elevations.

The Project would provide approximately 6,150 gsf of useable open space to the residential occupants,
including 5,655 gsf of common open space and approximately 480 gsf of private open space. The common
open space would consist of an approximately 2,130-sf terrace within the level 1 rear yard and an
approximately 3,525-sf roof deck facing the rear yard at level 13; those areas would include hardscape
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pavers, decking, planting areas, and shade trellises. The private open space would consist of four private
decks within the level 1 rear yard.

B. Project Objectives

The project sponsor, Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC, seeks to achieve the following objectives by undertaking the
proposed 550 O’Farrell Street Project:

1. Develop a high-density mixed-income residential development consistent with the purposes of the
North of Market Residential Special Use District by fully using the site’s zoning capacity of up to 118
dwelling units, within project site constraints, and incorporating on-site affordable units.

2. Replace an outdated private parking garage with a mix of uses compatible with the surrounding
Tenderloin neighborhood.

3. Contribute to the city’s goal of creating 30,000 additional housing units in an area identified in the
General Plan for high density housing in close proximity to downtown and local and regional public
transportation.

4. Construct a new building that is compatible with the character of the Uptown Tenderloin Historic
District.

5. Provide adequate light and air to all housing units in the new building.

6. Develop a project that is financially feasible and able to support the equity and debt returns
required by investors and lenders to finance multi-family residential developments.

C. Project Approvals

The proposed 550 O’Farrell Street project would require the following approvals from the City and County
of San Francisco:

Actions by the Planning Commission
e Certification of the FEIR

e Approval of a conditional use authorization to construct a building exceeding a height of 50 feet in
an RC zoning district (Planning Code section 253) and exceeding a height of 80 feet in an 80-T-130-
T height and bulk district (Planning Code section 263.7).

e Approval of a conditional use authorization to exceed building bulk limits (Planning Code section
270); the project would seek to increase the maximum allowed diagonal dimension at the setback
height established pursuant to Planning Code section 132.2 from 125 feet to 130 feet.
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Actions by the Zoning Administrator

Approval of a rear yard modification (Planning Code section 134) and dwelling unit exposure
variance (Planning Code section 140) to reduce the depth of the rear yard from approximately 34
feet to approximately 31 feet.

Actions by Other City Departments and Government Agencies

Approval of demolition, grading, and building permits (Department of Building Inspection).

Waiver of requirement for four street trees and payment of an in-lieu fee, to provide three street
trees on the O’Farrell Street sidewalk (Department of Public Works).

Approval of an encroachment permit to install the transformer vault below part of the O’Farrell
Street sidewalk (Department of Public Works).

Approval of a request for color curb and on-street parking changes on O’Farrell Street (San
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency).

Approval of a Stormwater Control Plan and project compliance with the Stormwater Design
Guidelines (San Francisco Public Utilities Commission).

Approval of project compliance with the Maher Ordinance prior to the commencement of any
excavation work and approval of any soil mitigation plan as may be required (San Francisco
Department of Public Health).

Approval of a San Francisco Health Code article 38 ventilation plan prior to submitting plans for a
mechanical permit (San Francisco Department of Public Health and Department of Building
Inspection).

Issuance of a certification of registration for a diesel backup generator (San Francisco Department
of Public Health).

Approval of a permit for the installation, operation, and testing of a diesel-powered backup
generator (Bay Area Air Quality Management District).

D. Environmental Review

The Project sponsor filed an environmental evaluation application with the Planning Department on July
19,2017. Thisfiling initiated the environmental review process. The EIR process includes an opportunity for
the public to review and comment on the Project’s potential environmental effects and to further inform
the environmental analysis.

On March 6, 2019, the Planning Department issued the notice of preparation (NOP) of an EIR on the
proposed 550 O’Farrell Street project and made the NOP available on its website. The NOP was sent to
governmental agencies, organizations, and persons interested in the Project, and publication of the NOP
initiated the 30-day public scoping period for this SEIR, which started on March 6, 2019, and ended on April
5,2019. The NOP included a description of the Project and a request for agencies and the public to submit
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comments on the scope of environmental issues that should be addressed in this EIR. The NOP is included
as EIR Appendix B, Notice of Preparation.

During the review and comment period, a total of 15 comments were submitted to the planning
department by interested parties. San Francisco Public Utilities Commission staff commented on water
supply information to be addressed in the environmental documents. The Native American Heritage
Commission commented on AB 52 tribal cultural resources notification and consultation requirements.
Thirteen other responses commented on the NOP review schedule, project merits, construction noise and
air quality impacts, views, parking, historic resources, and project alternatives.

On May 20, 2020, the Department published the Draft Environmental Impact Report (hereinafter “DEIR”),
including the Initial Study (“IS”), and provided public notice in a newspaper of general circulation of the
availability of the DEIR for public review and comment and of the date and time of the Planning
Commission public hearing on the DEIR; this notice was mailed to the Department’s list of persons
requesting such notice.

Notices of availability of the DEIR and of the date and time of the public hearing were posted near the
Project Site by the Project Sponsor on May 20, 2020.

On May 20, 2020, copies of the DEIR were mailed or otherwise delivered to a list of persons requesting it, to
those noted on the distribution list in the DEIR, to adjacent property owners, and to government agencies,
the latter both directly and through the State Clearinghouse.

Notice of Completion was filed with the State Secretary of Resources via the State Clearinghouse on May
20, 2020.

The Commission held a duly advertised public hearing on the DEIR on June 25, 2020, at which opportunity
for public comment was given, and public comment was received on the DEIR. The period for commenting
on the EIR ended on July 7, 2020.

The Department prepared responses to comments on environmental issues received during the 45 day
public review period for the DEIR, prepared revisions to the text of the DEIR in response to comments
received or based on additional information that became available during the public review period, and
corrected clerical errors in the DEIR. This material was presented in a Responses to Comments document,
published on November 9, 2020, distributed to the Commission and all parties who commented on the
DEIR, and made available to others upon request at the Department.

AFinal Environmental Impact Report (hereinafter “FEIR”) has been prepared by the Department, consisting
of the DEIR, any consultations and comments received during the review process, any additional
information that became available, and the Responses to Comments document all as required by law. The
ISisincluded as Appendix A to the DEIR and is incorporated by reference thereto.

Project EIR files have been made available for review by the Commission and the public. These files are
available for public review at the Department at 49 South Van Ness, Suite 1400, San Francisco, and are part
of the record before the Commission.
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On December 10, 2020, the Commission reviewed and considered the FEIR and found that the contents of
said report and the procedures through which the FEIR was prepared, publicized, and reviewed comply
with the provisions of CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code.
The FEIR was certified by the Commission on December 10, 2020, by adoption of its Motion No. [_____ ].

E. Content and Location of Record

The record upon which all findings and determinations related to the adoption of the Project are based
include the following:

e TheFEIR, and all documents referenced in or relied upon by the FEIR, including the IS;

e Allinformation (including written evidence and testimony) provided by City staff to the Planning
Commission relating to the FEIR, the proposed approvals and entitlements, the Project, and the
alternatives set forth in the FEIR;

e Allinformation (including written evidence and testimony) presented to the Planning
Commission by the environmental consultant and subconsultants who prepared the FEIR, or
incorporated into reports presented to the Planning Commission;

e Allinformation (including written evidence and testimony) presented to the City from other
public agencies relating to the project or the FEIR;

o All applications, letters, testimony, and presentations presented to the City by the Project
Sponsor and its consultants in connection with the Project;

e Allinformation (including written evidence and testimony) presented at any public hearing or
workshop related to the Project and the EIR;

e The MMRP; and,

e All other documents comprising the record pursuant to Public Resources Code Section
21167.6(e).

The public hearing transcripts and audio files, a copy of all letters regarding the FEIR received during the
public review period, the administrative record, and background documentation for the FEIR are located
at the Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco. The Planning Department, Jonas
P. lonin, is the custodian of these documents and materials.

F. Findings about Environmental Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The following Sections Il, Ill and IV set forth the Commission’s findings about the FEIR’s determinations
regarding significant environmental impacts and the mitigation measures proposed to address them.
These findings provide the written analysis and conclusions of the Commission regarding the
environmental impacts of the Project and the mitigation measures included as part of the FEIR and
adopted by the Commission as part of the Project. To avoid duplication and redundancy, and because the
Commission agrees with, and hereby adopts, the conclusions in the FEIR, these findings will not repeat the
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analysis and conclusions in the FEIR but instead incorporate them by reference and rely upon them as
substantial evidence supporting these findings.

In making these findings, the Commission has considered the opinions of staff and experts, other agencies,
and members of the public. The Commission finds that (i) the determination of significance thresholds is a
judgment decision within the discretion of the City and County of San Francisco; (ii) the significance
thresholds used in the FEIR are supported by substantial evidence in the record, including the expert
opinion of the FEIR preparers and City staff; and (iii) the significance thresholds used in the FEIR provide
reasonable and appropriate means of assessing the significance of the adverse environmental effects of
the Project. Thus, although, as a legal matter, the Commission is not bound by the significance
determinations in the FEIR (see Public Resources Code, Section 21082.2, subdivision (e)), the Commission
finds them persuasive and hereby adopts them as its own.

These findings do not attempt to describe the full analysis of each environmental impact contained in the
FEIR. Instead, a full explanation of these environmental findings and conclusions can be found in the FEIR,
and these findings hereby incorporate by reference the discussion and analysis in the FEIR supporting the
determination regarding the project impact and mitigation measures designed to address those impacts.
In making these findings, the Commission ratifies, adopts and incorporates in these findings the
determinations and conclusions of the FEIR relating to environmental impacts and mitigation measures,
except to the extent any such determinations and conclusions are specifically and expressly modified by
these findings, and relies upon them as substantial evidence supporting these findings.

As set forth below, the Commission adopts and incorporates the mitigation measures set forth in the FEIR,
which are set forth in the attached MMRP, to reduce the significant and unavoidable impacts of the Project.
The Commission intends to adopt the mitigation measures proposed in the FEIR. Accordingly, in the event
a mitigation measure recommended in the FEIR has inadvertently been omitted in these findings or the
MMRP, such mitigation measure is hereby adopted and incorporated in the findings below by reference. In
addition, in the event the language describing a mitigation measure set forth in these findings or the MMRP
fails to accurately reflect the mitigation measures in the FEIR due to a clerical error, the language of the
policies and implementation measures as set forth in the FEIR shall control. The impact numbers and
mitigation measure numbers used in these findings reflect the information contained in the FEIR.

In Sections II, Il and IV below, the same findings are made for a category of environmental impacts and
mitigation measures. Rather than repeat the identical finding to address each and every significant effect
and mitigation measure, the initial finding obviates the need for such repetition because in no instance is
the Commission rejecting the conclusions of the FEIR or the mitigation measures recommended in the FEIR
for the Project.

These findings are based upon substantial evidence in the entire record before the Planning Commission.
The references set forth in these findings to certain pages or sections of the EIR or responses to comments
in the Final EIR are for ease of reference and are not intended to provide an exhaustive list of the evidence
relied upon for these findings.
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Il. LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS

The FEIR finds that implementation of the Project would result in less-than-significant impacts in the
following environmental topic areas: Land Use and Land Use Planning, Population and Housing, Tribal
Cultural Resources, Transportation, Noise, Air Quality, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Wind, Shadow,
Recreation, Utilities and Services Systems, Public Services, Biological Resources, Hydrology and Water
Quality, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Energy, Mineral Resources, and Agriculture and Forestry
Resources, and Wildfire.

Note: Senate Bill (SB) 743 became effective on January 1, 2014. Among other things, SB 743 added § 21099
to the Public Resources Code and eliminated the requirement to analyze aesthetics and parking impacts
for certain urban infill projects under CEQA. The Project meets the definition of a mixed-use residential
project on an infill site within a transit priority area as specified by Public Resources Code & 21099.
Accordingly, the FEIR did not discuss the topic of Aesthetics, which are no longer considered in determining
the significance of the Project’s physical environmental effects under CEQA. Similarly, the FEIR included a
discussion of parking for informational purposes. This information, however, did not relate to the
significance determinations in the FEIR.

lIl. FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS THAT CAN BE AVOIDED OR REDUCED TO A LESS-THAN-
SIGNIFICANT LEVEL THROUGH MITIGATION AND THE DISPOSITION OF THE MITIGATION MEASURES

CEQA requires agencies to adopt mitigation measures that would avoid or substantially lessen a project’s
identified significant impacts or potential significant impacts if such measures are feasible. The findings in
this section concern 5 potential impacts and mitigation measures proposed in the IS and/or FEIR. These
mitigation measures are included in the MMRP. A copy of the MMRP is included as Attachment B to the
Planning Commission Motion adopting these findings.

The Project Sponsor has agreed to implement the following mitigation measures to address the potential
cultural resource, tribal cultural resource, noise, and air quality identified in the IS and/or FEIR. As
authorized by CEQA Section 21081 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, 15092, and 15093, based on
substantial evidence in the whole record of this proceeding, the Planning Commission finds that, unless
otherwise stated, the Project will be required to incorporate mitigation measures identified in the IS and/or
FEIR into the Project to mitigate or to avoid significant or potentially significant environmental impacts.
Except as otherwise noted, these mitigation measures will reduce or avoid the potentially significant
impacts described in the IS and/or FEIR, and the Commission finds that these mitigation measures are
feasible to implement and are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of the City and County of San
Francisco to implement or enforce.

Additionally, the required mitigation measures are fully enforceable and are included as conditions of
approval in the Planning Commission’s Conditional Use Authorization under Planning Code Section 303
and also will be enforced through conditions of approval in any building permits issued for the Project by
the San Francisco Department of Building Inspection. With the required mitigation measures, these Project
impacts would be avoided or reduced to a less-than-significant level. The Planning Commission finds that
the mitigation measures presented in the MMRP are feasible and shall be adopted as conditions of project
approval.
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The following mitigation measures would be required to reduce 6 impacts identified in the Initial Study
and/or FEIR to a less-than-significant level:

Impacts to Archeological Cultural Resources

Impact CR-4: The Project could potentially cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an
archeological resource, or could potentially disturb human remains, if present. With implementation of
Mitigation Measure M-CR-4 (Accidental Discovery of Archeological Resources), Impact CR-4 is reduced to a
less-than-significant level.

Impacts to Tribal Cultural Resources

Impact TCR-1: The Project could cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural
resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074. With implementation of Mitigation Measure M-
TCR-1 (Tribal Cultural Resources Archeological Resource Preservation Plan and/or Interpretive Program),
Impact TR-1 is reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Impacts to Noise and Vibration

Impact NO-1: The Project would generate a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise
levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies. With implementation of Mitigation Measure M-NO-1
(Construction Noise Controls), Impact NO-1 is reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Impact NO-2: The Project would generate excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels.
With implementation of Mitigation Measure M-NO-2 (Construction Vibration Controls), Impact NO-2 is
reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Impacts to Air Quality

Impact AQ-2: The Project’s construction activities would generate toxic air contaminants, including diesel
particulate matter, which would expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. With
Implementation of Mitigation Measure M-AQ-2 (Construction Emissions Minimization), Impact AQ-2 is
reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Impact AQ-4: The Project would generate toxic air contaminants, including diesel particulate matter,
exposing sensitive receptors to substantial air pollutant concentrations. With implementation of Mitigation
Measure M-AQ-4 (Best Available Control Technology for Diesel Generators), Impact AQ-4 is reduced to a
less-than-significant level.

IV. SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS THAT CANNOT BE AVOIDED OR REDUCED TO A LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT LEVEL

Based on substantial evidence in the whole record of these proceedings, the Planning Commission finds
that there is one significant project-specific impact that would not be eliminated or reduced to an
insignificant level by the mitigation measures listed in the MMRP. The FEIR identifies one significant and
unavoidable impacts on cultural resources.
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The Planning Commission further finds based on the analysis contained within the FEIR, other
considerations in the record, and the significance criteria identified in the FEIR, that feasible mitigation
measures are not available to reduce the significant Project impact to less-than-significant levels, and thus
thisimpact remains significant and unavoidable. The Commission also finds that, although measures were
considered in the FEIR that could reduce this significant impact, this impact remains significant and
unavoidable.

Thus, the following significant impact on the environment, as reflected in the FEIR, unavoidable. But, as
more fully explained in Section VI, below, under Public Resources Code Section 21081(a)(3) and (b), and
CEQA Guidelines 15091(a)(3), 15092(b)(2)(B), and 15093, the Planning Commission finds that this impact is
acceptable for the legal, environmental, economic, social, technological and other benefits of the Project.
This finding is supported by substantial evidence in the record of this proceeding.

The FEIR identifies the following impact for which no feasible mitigation measures were identified that
would reduce this impact to a less than significant level:

Impact to Cultural Resources -

Impact CR-1: The Project would demolish most of the 550 O’Farrell Street building, causing a
substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in CEQA guidelines section
15064.5.

e Mitigation Measure M-CR-1a (Documentation of the Historic Resource)

e Mitigation Measure M-CR-1b (Interpretation)

The Commission finds that, for the reasons set forth in the FEIR, although implementation of Mitigation
Measures M-CR-1a and M-CR-1b would reduce the cultural resources impact of the Project, this impact
would nevertheless remain significant and unavoidable.

V. EVALUATION OF PROJECT ALTERNATIVES
A. Alternatives Analyzed in the FEIR

This section describes the alternatives analyzed in the Project FEIR and the reasons for rejecting the
alternatives as infeasible. CEQA mandates that an EIR evaluate a reasonable range of alternatives to the
Project or the Project location that generally reduce or avoid potentially significant impacts of the Project.
CEQA requires that every EIR also evaluate a “No Project” alternative. Alternatives provide a basis of
comparison to the Project in terms of their significant impacts and their ability to meet project objectives.
This comparative analysis is used to consider reasonable, potentially feasible options for minimizing
environmental consequences of the Project.

The Planning Department considered a range of alternatives in Chapter 5 of the FEIR. The FEIR analyzed
the No Project Alternative, the Full Preservation Alternative, and the Partial Preservation Alternative. Each
alternative is discussed and analyzed in these findings, in addition to being analyzed in the FEIR, including
Chapter 5. The Planning Commission certifies that it has independently reviewed and considered the
information on the alternatives provided in the FEIR and in the record. The FEIR reflects the Planning

11





Motion No. ] Record No. 2017-004557ENV
December 10, 2020 550 O’Farrell Street Project

Commission’s and the City’s independent judgment as to the alternatives. The Planning Commission finds
that the Project provides the best balance between satisfaction of Project objectives and mitigation of
environmental impacts to the extent feasible, as described and analyzed in the FEIR.

B. Reasons for Approving the Project

e Todevelop a high-density mixed-income residential development consistent with the purposes of the
North of Market Residential Special Use District by fully using the site’s zoning capacity and
incorporating on-site affordable units.

e To contribute to the city’s goal of creating 30,000 additional housing units in an area identified in the
General Plan for high density housing in close proximity to downtown and local and regional public
transportation.

e Toimplement the objectives and goals of the General Plan Housing Element.

e To replace an outdated private parking garage with a residential development compatible with the
surrounding Tenderloin neighborhood.

e Toconstructanew building that conforms to the Planning Commission’s retained elements policy and,
as affirmed by the Historic Preservation Commission in its comments of the Draft EIR, is compatible
with the character of the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District.

e Toprovide adequate light and air to all housing units in the new building.

C. Evaluation of Project Alternatives

CEQA provides that alternatives analyzed in an EIR may be rejected if “specific economic, legal, social,
technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained
workers, make infeasible . .. the project alternatives identified in the EIR.” (CEQA Guidelines § 15091(a)(3).)
The Commission has reviewed each of the alternatives to the Project as described in the FEIR that would
reduce or avoid the impacts of the Project and finds that there is substantial evidence of specific economic,
legal, social, technological and other considerations that make these Alternatives infeasible, for the reasons
set forth below.

In making these determinations, the Planning Commission is aware that CEQA defines “feasibility” to mean
“capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into
account economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors.” The Commission is also aware
that under CEQA case law the concept of “feasibility” encompasses (i) the question of whether a particular
alternative promotes the underlying goals and objectives of a project, and (ii) the question of whether an
alternative is “desirable” from a policy standpoint to the extent that desirability is based on a reasonable
balancing of the relevant economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors.

The following alternatives were fully considered and compared in the FEIR:

1. No Project Alternative (Alternative A)

Under the No Project Alternative, the existing conditions characterizing the 11,800-sf 550 O’Farrell project
site would not change. Compared to the proposed project, there would be no new construction of a mixed-
use (residential and retail) building consisting of a 130-foot-tall tower, with 111 residential units, and 1,300
sf of retail/residential amenity space. There would be no changes to the circulation system that serves the
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project site. The No Project Alternative would not preclude future development of the site with a range of
land uses that are permitted under existing zoning and land use regulations. The project site would remain
under the existing zoning, density, and height and bulk standards, as defined by the planning code. Under
the No Project Alternative, it is assumed that existing land uses — principally garage uses — would remain
into the near future

The Planning Commission rejects the No Project Alternative as infeasible because it would fail to meet the
Project Objectives for the following reasons:

1) The No Project Alternative would not meet any of the Project objectives;

2)  The No Project Alternative would not develop a high-density mixed-income residential
development consistent with the purposes of the North of Market Residential Special Use District
and incorporating on-site affordable units, and therefore would not increase the City’s housing
stock of both market rate and affordable housing.

3)  The No Project Alternative would not contribute to the city’s goal of creating 30,000 additional
housing units in an area identified in the General Plan for high density housing in close proximity
to downtown and local and regional public transportation.

4)  The No Project Objective would not implement the objectives and goals of the General Plan
Housing Element.

5)  TheNo Project Objective would not replace an outdated private parking garage with a residential
development compatible with the surrounding Tenderloin neighborhood, and thus would not
achieve any of the objectives regarding the redevelopment of an underutilized site and creation
of a mixed-use project that provides a substantial number of new residential dwelling units and
affordable housing.

For the foregoing reasons, the Planning Commission rejects the No Project Alternative as infeasible.

2 Full Preservation Alternative (Alternative B)

With the Full Preservation Alternative, the 550 O’Farrell Street building would be retained and rehabilitated
as part of the proposed project. This alternative would have 36 residential units for a total of 42,030
residential sf (including residential common, circulation and mechanical space areas); one 1,000 sf ground-
floor retail/residential amenity space; 17 vehicle parking spaces (14 basement-level spaces and three
ground-level spaces); 72 class 1 bicycle parking stalls (all on ground level) and 8 class 2 bicycle parking
spaces on the O’Farrell Street sidewalk. The alternative would have six total stories for a building height of
about 72 feet. Approximately 16,200 sf (about 46 percent) of the historic building would be retained for
adaptive re-use.

The Full Preservation Alternative would maintain the front half of the historic building with a four-story
addition; the first two stories would be set back 30 feet from the primary (south) facade of the historic
building and the top two stories would be set back about 67 feet from the primary fagade, with a 10-foot
deep rear yard. The existing structure (floors, ceilings, and columns) would be retained in the front half of
the historic building and would be reused for the new building. The alternative would retain the parking
access from O’Farrell Street with adjacent store-front openings. New construction and new uses in the front
half of the historic building would require the removal of vehicular circulation ramps and would alter the
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appearance of the existing interior structure of the building such that it would not resemble the original
structure.

The addition would be constructed behind and connected to the retained portion of the historic building
and abut the west, north, and east property lines; there would be lightwells along the side fagades. The rear
of the historic building would be demolished to accommodate the addition. Some of the existing building’s
concrete construction and all of the character-defining plaster finish of the south fagade would be retained;
however, a new, modern materials palette would be introduced at the addition. The fagades of the new
addition would be designed with modern materials, such as precast concrete, metal paneling, or an
integrated composite system. The Full Preservation Alternative would require excavation for the
foundation and structural work, as well as for the below-grade parking garage.

The use of the property would change from parking to mixed-use residential/retail. The primary fagade
would be rehabilitated in conformance with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation,
with non-character-defining features removed, including the main entrance and the filled-in storefronts on
the first-floor level. These missing features would be replaced with new features that would be compatible
with the unchanged portions of the primary facade.

The Planning Commission rejects the Full Preservation Alternative as infeasible because it would not meet
the Project Objectives policy objectives as well as the Project for reasons including, but not limited to, the
following:

1) The Full Preservation Alternative would limit the Project to 36 dwelling units; whereas the Project
would add 111 units to the City’s housing stock and maximize the creation of new residential
units. The City’s important policy objective as expressed in Policy 1.1 of the Housing Element of
the General Plan is to increase the housing stock whenever possible to address a shortage of
housing in the City.

2)  The Full Preservation Alternative would also limit the Project to 7 affordable units; whereas the
Project would add 22 affordable units to the City’s stock of affordable housing. The City’s
important policy objective as expressed in Policy 1.1 of the Housing Element of the General Plan
is to increase the affordable housing stock whenever possible to address a shortage of housing
in the City.

3)  The Full Preservation Alternative would create a project that would not fully utilize this site for
housing production, thereby not fully satisfying General Plan policies such as Housing Element
Policies 1.1 and 1.4, among others.

4)  The Full Preservation Alternative would not further the City’s housing policies to create more
housing, particularly affordable housing opportunities, as well as the Project does.

5)  TheFull Preservation Alternative would create a project with fewer housing units in an area well-
served by transit, services and shopping, which would then push demand for residential
development to other sites in the City or the Bay Area. This would result in the Full Preservation
Alternative not meeting, to the same degree as the Project, the City’s Strategies to Address
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions or the Bay Area Air Quality Management District’s (“BAAQMD”)
requirements for GHG reductions, by not maximizing housing development in an area with
abundant local and region-serving transit options.

6)  The Full Preservation Alternative would have a rear yard measuring only 10 feet in depth, such
that the alternative would not provide adequate light and air to all housing units in the new
building.

For the foregoing reasons, the Planning Commission rejects the Full Preservation Alternative as infeasible.

3. Partial Preservation Alternative (Alternative C)

The Partial Preservation Alternative would include 111 residential units for a total of 108,650 residential sf
(including residential common and circulation areas); one 1,840 sf ground floor retail/residential amenity
space; 156 class 1 bicycle parking stalls (108 basement-level stalls and 48 ground-level stalls), and 8 class 2
bicycle parking spaces on the O’Farrell Street sidewalk. The alternative would have 13 stories for a building
height of 130 feet. The addition would be set back 18 feet from the O’Farrell Street facade, and the rear yard
would be reduced with a width of 13 feet. Approximately 200 sf of the historic building would be retained
at the primary (south) O’Farrell Street facade.

The Partial Preservation Alternative would feature a new 13-story building with an 18-foot setback from the
primary facade of the historic building. Residential and other uses on levels 2 through 13 of the Partial
Preservation Alternative would be similar to the proposed project floor plans but, as noted above, would
be set back 18 feet from the existing garage facade, compared to the proposed project where the upper
floors would rise directly above the existing facade plane, except for a 3-foot-deep setback at the fourth
floor. The rectangular-plan building would abut the west and east property lines and be set back 13 feet
from the north property line. The north facade, east facade, west facade, roof, and interior of the historic
building would be demolished to accommodate the new structure. The rear yard of the Partial Preservation
Alternative would be reduced to 13 feet in depth, requiring the Zoning Administrator to grant a rear yard
modification and a unit exposure variance. With the Partial Preservation Alternative, some of the building’s
concrete construction and all of the character-defining plaster finish of the O’Farrell Street facade would
be retained; a new, modern materials palette would be introduced. The facades of the new building would
be designed with a durable modern material, such as precast concrete, metal paneling, or an integrated
composite system. The Partial Preservation Alternative would require excavation for the foundation and
structural work.

As with the proposed project, the project sponsor anticipates that construction of the Partial Preservation
Alternative would span approximately 21 months and would be conducted in three phases: (1) demolition,
(2) excavation and shoring, and (3) construction. The construction equipment and staging for this
alternative would also be similar to the proposed project.

The Planning Commission rejects the Partial Preservation Alternative as infeasible because it would not
eliminate the significant unavoidable impact of the Project and for the following reasons:
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1) The Partial Preservation Alternative would have a rear yard measuring only 13 feet in depth, such
that the alternative would not provide adequate light and air to all housing units in the new
building and would reduce light and air to adjacent residential buildings on the block.

2)  The Partial Preservation Alternative would not be compatible with the character of the Uptown
Tenderloin Historic District because the 18-foot setback of the upper stories of the building is not
characteristic of the historic district, in which residential buildings are aligned with the street wall
without upper story setbacks.

For the foregoing reasons, the Planning Commission rejects the Partial Preservation Alternative as
infeasible.

VI. STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS

The Planning Commission finds that, notwithstanding the imposition of all feasible mitigation measures,
an impact related to Cultural Resources will remain significant and unavoidable. Pursuant to CEQA section
21081 and CEQA Guideline Section 15093, the Planning Commission hereby finds, after consideration of
the FEIR and the evidence in the record, that each of the specific overriding economic, legal, social,
technological and other benefits of the Project as set forth below independently and collectively outweighs
this significant and unavoidable impact and is an overriding consideration warranting approval of the
Project. Any one of the reasons for approval cited below is sufficient to justify approval of the Project. Thus,
even if a court were to conclude that not every reason is supported by substantial evidence, the
Commission will stand by its determination that each individual reason is sufficient. The substantial
evidence supporting the various benefits can be found in the preceding findings, which are incorporated
by reference into this Section, and in the documents found in the record, as set forth in Section I.

On the basis of the above findings and the substantial evidence in the whole record of this proceeding, the
Planning Commission specifically finds that there are significant benefits of the Project to support approval
of the Project in spite of the unavoidable significant impact, and therefore makes this Statement of
Overriding Considerations. The Commission further finds that, as part of the process of obtaining Project
approvals, significant effects on the environment from implementation of the Project have been eliminated
or substantially lessened where feasible. All mitigation measures proposed in the FEIR and MMRP are
adopted as part of the Approval Actions described in Section |, above.

Furthermore, the Commission has determined that the remaining significant effect on the environment
found to be unavoidable is acceptable due to the following specific overriding economic, technological,
legal, social and other considerations.

1. The Project develops a high-density mixed-income residential development consistent with the
purposes of the North of Market Residential Special Use District.

2. The Projects provides 22 on-site affordable units and in addition will pay approximately $1.5
million into the City’s Affordable Housing Fund.
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10.

The Project contributes to the city’s goal of creating 30,000 additional housing units by adding 111
units in an area identified in the General Plan for high density housing in close proximity to
downtown and local and regional public transportation.

The Project implements the City’s important policy objective as expressed in Policy 1.1 of the
Housing Element of the General Plan to increase the housing stock whenever possible to address
a shortage of housing in the City.

The Project replaces an outdated private parking garage with a residential development
compatible with the surrounding Tenderloin neighborhood.

The Project constructs a new building that conforms to the Retained Elements Guidelines,
reducing but not eliminating the Project’s cultural resources impact, and, as affirmed by the
Historic Preservation Commission in its comments of the Draft EIR, is compatible with the
character of the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District.

The Project implements the City’s Transit First Policy by replacing a public parking garage with a
residential development containing no off-street parking and ample bicycle parking spaces.

The Project meets the City’s Strategies to Address Greenhouse Gas Emissions and the BAAQMD
requirements for a GHG reductions by maximizing development on an infill site that is well-served
by transit, services and shopping and is suited for dense residential development, where residents
can commute and satisfy convenience needs without frequent use of a private automobile, in an
area with abundant local and region-serving transit options. The Project would leverage the site’s
location and proximity to transit by building a dense mixed-use project that allows people to live
and work close to transit sources.

The MMRP imposes all feasible mitigation measures that would mitigate the Project’s potentially
significant impacts to less-than-significant levels, except for the single Cultural Resources impact.

The Project will create temporary construction jobs. These jobs will provide employment
opportunities for San Francisco and Bay Area residents.

Having considered the above, the Planning Commission finds that the benefits of the Project outweigh the
significant and unavoidable adverse environmental effect identified in the FEIR, and that the adverse
environmental effect is therefore acceptable.
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Attachment B

PIEHARE

AGREEMENT TO IMPLEMENT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

Record No.: 2017-00455TENY Block/Lat: (0318/009

Project Title: 550 O’Farreil Street Project Lot Size: 11,808 square feet

BPA Nos: 202009083652 Project Sponsor: Sandhill O’Farrefl LLC

Zoning: RC-4 Residential-Commercial, High Density Use Bistrict Lead Agency: San Francisco Planaing Department
K0-T-130-T Height and Bulk District Staff Contact: Jennifer McKellar - (628} 652-7563

CPC.5500FarreliStEIR@sfgov.org

The table below indicates when compliance with each mitigation measure must occdr. Scme mitigation measures span multiple phases. Substantive descriptions of each
mitigation measure’s requirements are provided on the following pages in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. All mitigation measures would apply to both the
proposed project or the project variant (both analyzed in the EIR), with the exception of Mitigation Measure M-CR-2. That measure would apply to the project variant only. The

praject variant would demalish the entirety of the existing 550 O’Farrell Street garage, a significant historic architectural resource. Mitigation Measure W-CR-2 would require
salvage of materials of historical interest to be used as part of the interpretative program.

Period of Compliance

Mitigation Measure M-CR-1a: Documentation X

Mitigation Measure M-CR-1b: Interpretation X X X
X
X

Mitigation Measure M-CR-2: Salvage (Project Variant Onfy)
Mitigation Measure M-CR-5: Accidental Discovery
Mitigation Measure M-TCR-1: Tribal Cultural Resources

Archeological Resource Preservation Plan and/or Interpretive X X X
Program
Mitigation Measure AQ-2: Construction Emissions Minimization X X
Mitigation Measure M-AQ-4: Best Available Control Technology for
Diesel Generators. " " §
Mitigation Measure NO-1: Construction Noise Controts X
Mitigation Measure M-NO-2: Construction Vibration Controls X
2017-03455TENY : 550 O'Farreil Street Project

M TIGATION MOMITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 1 Hearing Date; Decerber 10, 2020





*Prior to any ground disturbing activities at the project site.
*Construction is broadly defined to include any physical activities associated with construction of a development projecting

excavation, shoring, foundation installation, and building construction.

luding, but not limited to: site preparation, clearing, demolition,

3,_(| agree to implement the attached mitigation measure(s) as a condition of project approval.

RSV I

Property Owner or Legal Agent Signature Date

Note to sponsor: Please contact CPC.EnvironmentalMonitoring@sfgov.org to begin the environmental monitoring process prior to the submittal of your building
permits to the San Francisco Department Building Inspection.

550 O'Farre | Street Praject

201 7-004557EMY
Fezring Dzte: December 1O, 2020
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS
Monitoring/
Implementation Mitigation Reporting Monitoring Actions/
Adopted Mitigation Measures Responsibility Schedule Responsibility Completion Criteria

MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

HISTORIC ARCHITECTURAL/CULTURAL RESOURCES

Mitigation Measure M-CR-1a: Documentation

Prior to the issuance of demolition or site permits, the project

Project sponsor’s

Prior to issuance of

Planning Department

Considered complete after

sponsor shall undertake Historic American Building Survey | qualified a site permit and the approved
(HABS)-like documentation of the building, structures, objects, architectural issuance of a documentation is
materials, and landscaping. The documentation shall be | historian at the certificate of completed
undertaken by a qualified professional who meets the | direction of the ERO | occupancy

standards for history, architectural history, or architecture (as
appropriate), as set forth by the Secretary of the Interior's
Professional Qualification Standards (36 CFR, Part 61). The
specific scope of the documentation shall be reviewed and
approved by the planning department prior to fulfilling
documentation but shall consist of the following:

»  Measured Drawings: A set of measured drawings that
depict the existing size, scale, and dimension of the
building. The planning department preservation staff will
accept the original architectural drawings or an as-built set
of architectural drawings (plan, section, elevation, etc.).
The planning depattment preservation staff will assist the
consultant in determining the appropriate level of
measured drawings.

»  HABS-Level Photography Digital photographs of the

1 Definifions of MMRP Cofumn Headings:

Adopfed Miligation Measures: Full text of the mitigation measure{s} copied verbatim from the final CEQA document.

Implementation Responsibility: Entity wha is responsible for implementing the mitigation measure. In most cases this is the project sponsor andior project’s sponsor's contractor/consuitant and at times under e girection of the pianning department
Mifigation Scheduie; Identifies milestones for when the actions in the mitigation measure need 1o be implemented.

Monitoring/Reporting Responsibility: Identifies who is respansible for monitering compliance with the mitigation measure and any reporting respansibilities. In most cases itis the Planning Cepartment whao is respansible for monitoring compliance
with the mitigation measure. If a department or agency other than the planning depariment is identified as responsible far monitoring, there should be an expressed agreement between the planning departmentand that other department/agenay. In
most cases the project sponsor, their cantractor, or consultant are responsible for any reporting requirements.

Monitoring Actians/Complation Crifaria; tdentifies the milestane at which the mitigation measure is considered complete. This may also identify requirements for verifylng compliance.

201700455 TERY
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

interior and the exterior of building. Large format
negatives are not required. The scope of the digital
photographs shall be reviewed by planning department
preservation staff for concurrence, and all digital
photography shall be conducted according to the latest
National Park Service standards. The photography shall be
undertaken by a qualified professional with demonstrated
experience in HABS photography.

Photograph views shall include contextual views; views of
each side of the building and interior views, including any
original interior features, where possible; oblique views of the
building; and detail views of character-defining features.

All views shall be referenced on a photographic key, This
photographic key shall be on a map of the property and shall
show the photograph number with an arrow to indicate the
direction of the view. Historic photographs shall also be
collected, reproduced, and included.

+ HABS-level Historical Report — A written historical
narrative and report shall be provided in accordance with
the HABS/HALS Historical Report Guidelines. The written
history shall follow an outline format that begins with a
statement of significance supported by the development of
the architectural and historical context in which the
structure was built and subsequently evolved. The report
shall also include architectural description and
bibliographic information.

»  Softcover Book — A Print-on-Demand softcover book shall
be produced that includes the content from the historical
report, historical photographs, HABS/HALS photography,
measured drawings, and field notes. The Print-on-Demand

2017-004357ENY 550 C'Farvell Strezt Project
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

book shall be made available to the public for distribution.

The professional shall prepare the documentation and submit
it for review and approval by the planning department’s
preservation specialist prior to the issuance of demolition
permits. The documentation shall be disseminated tc the
planning department, San Francisco Main Library History
Room, Northwest Information Center-California Historical
Resource Information System, and San Francisco Architectural
Heritage.

+ Video recordation shall be undertaken prior to the
issuance of demolition or site permits. The project sponsor
shall undertake video documeniation of the affected
historical resource and its setting. The documentation
shall be conducted by a professional videographer,
preferably one with experience recording architectural
resources. The documentation shall be narrated by a
qualified professional who meets the standards for
history, architectural history, or architecture (as
appropriate) set forth by the Secretary of the Interior’s
Professional Qualification Standards (36 CFR, Part61).
The documentation shall include as much information as
possible—using visuals in combination with narration—
about the materials, construction methods, current
condition, historic use, and historic context of the
historical rtesource. Archival copies of the video
documentation shall be submitted to the planning
department and to repositories including but not limited
to the San Francisco Main Library History Room,
Northwest Information Center-California Historical
Resource Information System, and San Francisco
Architectural Heritage,

2017-GO455TENY
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MONITORING AND REPORTIN G PROGRAM ELEMENTS

the site’s history shall be supervised by an architectural
historian or historian who meets the Secretary of the Interior’s
Professional Qualification Standards. The interpretative
materials (which may include but are not limited to a display
of photographs, news articles, memorabilia, and/or video) shall
be placed in a prominent setting on the project site visible to
pedestrians.

A proposal describing the general parameters of the
interpretive program shall be approved by the planning
department preservation staff prior to issuance of a site permit.
The content, media, and other characteristics of such
interpretive display shall be approved by the planning
department preservation staff prior to issuance of a Temporary
Certificate of Occupancy.

issuance of
Temporary
Certificate of
Occupancy

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
The video documentation shall be reviewed and approved
by the planning department’s preservation staff prior to
issuance of a demolition permit or site permit.
Mitigation Measure M-CR-1b: Interpretation
The project sponsor shall provide a permanent display of | Project Prior to issuance of | Planning Department | Planning Department staff
interpretive materials concerning the history and architectural | Sponsor/qualified the architectural to approve design prior to
features of the original 550 O'Farrell Street building and its | preservation addendum to the installation, and
operation during the period of significance. Interpretation of { consultant Site Permit; Prior to installation prior to

issuance of an occupancy
certificate
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

Mitigation Measure M-CR-2: Salvage (Project Variant Only)

Prior to any demolition that would remove character-defining
features, the project sponsor shall consult with planning
department preservation staff as to whether any such features
may be salvaged, in whole or in part, during
demolition/alteration. The project sponsor shall make a good
faith effort to salvage materials of histerical interest to be
utilized as part of the interpretative program. This could
include salvage of the gargoyles on the primary fagade.

Project
Sponsor/qualified
preservation
consultant at the
direction of the ERQO

Prior to issuance of
construction
permits

Planning Department

Considered complete after
salvage program is
complete

Mitigation Measure M-CR-5: Accidental Discovery

The following mitigation measure is required to avoid any
potential adverse effect from the proposed project on
accidentally discovered buried or submerged historical
resources as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a) and
{c), on tribal cultural resources as defined in CEQA Statute
Section 21074, and on human remains and associated or
unassociated funerary objects. The project sponsor shall
distribute the Planning Department archeological resource
“ALERT” sheet to the project prime contractor; to any project
subcontractor (including demolition, excavation, grading,
foundation, pile driving, etc. firms); or utilities firm involved
in soils disturbing activities within the project site, Prior to any
soils disturbing activities being undertaken each contractor is
responsible for ensuring that the “ALERT” sheet is circulated
to all field personnel including, machine operators, field crew,
pile drivers, supervisory personnel, etc.

A preconstruction training shall be provided to all construction
personnel performing or managing soils disturbing activities
by a qualified archeologist prior to the start of soils disturbing
activities on the project. The training may be provided in
person or using a video and include a handout prepared by the

Project sponsor at
the direction of the
ERO

Prior to and during
soils-disturbing
activities

Planning Department

Considered complete
when ERO recejves signed
affidavit
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Adopted Mitigation Measures

MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

Implementation
Responsibility

Mitigation
Schedule

Monitoring/
Reporting
Responsibility

Monitoring Actions/
Completion Criteria

MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

qualified archeologist. The video and materials will be
reviewed and approved by the ERO. The purpose of the
training is to enable personnel to identify archeological
resources that may be encountered and to instruct them on
what to do if a potential discovery occurs. Images of expected
archeological resource types and archeological testing and data
recovery methods should be included in the training.

The project sponsor shall provide the Environmental Review
Officer (FRQ) with a signed affidavit from the responsible
parties (prime contractor, subcontractor(s), and utilities firm)
to the ERO confirming that all field personnel have received
copies of the Alert Sheet and have taken the preconstruction
training.

Should any indication of an archeological resource be
encountered during any soils disturbing activity of the project,
the project Head Foreman and/or project sponsor shall
immediately notify the ERO and shall immediately suspend
any soils distutbing activities in the vicinity of the discovery
until the ERO has determined what additional measures
should be undertaken.

If the ERO determines that an archeological resource may be
present within the project site, the project sponsor shall retain
the services of an archeological consultant from the pool of
qualified archeological consultants maintained by the Planning
Department archeologist. The archeological consultant shall
advise the ERO as to whether the discovery is an archeological
resource, retains sufficient integrity, and is of potential
scientific/historical/cultural significance. If an archeological
resource is present, the archeological consultant shall identify
and evaluate the archeological resource. The archeological

Project sponsor/
Head Foreman and
archeological
consultant at the
direction of the ERO

Following the
discovery of
archeological
TesOLIrCes

Planning Department

Considered complete
when archeological
consultant completes
additional measures as
directed by the ERO as
warranted
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

Moniforing Actions/
Completion Criteria

MITIGATION MEASURES AGRFED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

consultant shall make a recommendation as to what action, if
any, is warranted. Based on this information, the ERO may
require, if warranted, specific additional measures to be
implemented by the project sponsor. The ERO may aiso
determine that the archeological resources is a tribal cultural
resource and will consult with affiliated Native Americans
tribal representatives, if warranted, as detailed under M-TCR-
1 for this project.

Measures might include: preservation in situ of the
archeclogical resource; an archeological menitoring programy
an archeological testing program; and an interpretative
program. If an archeclogical monitoring program,
archeological testing program, or an interpretative program is
required, it shall be consistent with the Environmental
Planning (EP) division guidelines for such programs and
reviewed and approved by the ERO. The ERO may also require
that the project sponsor immediately implement a site security
program if the archeological resource may be at risk from
vandalism, looting, or other damaging actions.

The ftreatment of human remains and of associated or
unassociated funerary objects discovered during any soils
disturbing activity shall comply with applicable State and
federal laws. This shall include immediate notification of the
Medical Examiner of the City and County of San Francisco and,
in the event of the Medical Examiner’s determination that the
human remains are Native American remains, notification of
the California State Native American Heritage Commission,
which will appoint a Most Likely Descendant (MLD). The
MLD will complete his or her inspection of the remains and
make recommendations or preferences for treatment within 48
hours of being granted access to the site (Public Resources

Project sponsor and
archeological
consultant at the
direction of the
ERO, Medical
Examinet, and
NAHC as
warranted

Following the
discovery of
human remains

Planning Department

Considered complete on
finding by the ERQ that all
state laws regarding
human remains/burial
objects have been adhered
to, consultation with MLD
is completed as warranted,
sufficient opportunity has
been provided to the
archeological consultant
for scientific/historical
analysis of
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

The project sponsor and ERO shall make all reasonable efforts
to develop a Burial Agreement (“Agreement”) with the MLD,
as expeditiously as possible, for the treatment and disposition,
with appropriate dignity, of human remains and associated or
unassociated funerary objects (as detailed in CEQA Guidelines
section 15064.5(d)). The Agreement shall take into
consideration the appropriate excavation, removal,
recordation, scientific analysis, custodianship, curation, and
final disposition of the human remains and associated or
unassociated funerary objects. If the MLD agrees to scientific
analyses of the remains and/or associated or unassociated
funerary objects, the archeological consultant shall retain
possession of the remains and associated or unassociated
funerary objects until completion of any such analyses, after
which the remains and associated or unassociated funerary
cobjects shall be reinterred or curated as specified in the
Agreement.

Nothing in existing State regulations or in this mitigation
measure compels the project sponsor and the ERO to accept
treatment recommendations of the MLD. However, if the ERO,
project sponsor and MLD are unable to reach an Agreement on
scientific treatment of the remains and associated or
unassociated funerary objects, the ERO, with cooperation of
the project sponsor, shall ensure that the remains and/or
mortuary materials are stored securely and respectfully until
they can be reinterred on the property, with appropriate
dignity, in a location not subject to further or future subsurface
disturbance.

Monitoring/
Impiementation Mitigation Reporting Monitoring Actions/
Adopted Mitigation Measures Responsibility Schedule Responsibility Completion Criteria
MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR
Code section 5097.98). The ERO also shall be notified remains/funerary objects,
immediately upon the discovery of human remains. and after FARR is
reviewed and approved
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

include an Interpretation Plan for public interpretation of all
significant archeological features.

Copies of the Draft FARR shall be gent to the ERO for review
and approval. Once approved by the ERQ, the consultant shall
also prepare a public distribution version of the FARR. Copies
of the FARR shall be distributed as follows: Califorria
Archeological Site Survey Northwest Information Center
(NWIC) shall receive one (1) copy and the ERO shall receive a
copy of the transmittal of the FARR to the NWIC. The
Environmental Planning division of the Planning Department
shall receive one bound and one unlocked, searchable PDF
copy on CD of the FARR along with copies of any formal site
recordation forms (CA DPR 523 series) and/or documentation
for nomination to the National Register of Historic
Places/California Register of Historical Resources. In instances
of public interest in or the high interpretive value of the
resource, the ERQ may require a different or additional final

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
Treatment of historic-period human remains and of associated
ot unassociated Funerary objecis discovered during any soil-
disturbing activity, additionally, shall follow protocols laid out
in the project’s archeological treatment documents, and in any
related agreement established between the project sponsor,
Medical Examiner and the ERC.
The archeclogical consultant shall submit a Draft Final | Archeological Following Planning Department | Considered complete upon
Archeological Resources Report (FARR) to the ERO that | consultant at the completion of distribution of approved
evaluates the historical significance of any discovered | direction of the ERO | additional FARR
archeological resource and describes the archeological and measures by
historical research methods employed in the archeological archeological
testing/monitoring/data recovery program(s) undertaken. The consultant as
Draft FARR shall include a curation and deaccession plan for determined by the
all recovered cultural materials. The Draft FARR shall also ERO
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

report content, format, and distribution than that presented
above.

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOQURCES
Mitigation Measure M-TCR-1: Tribal Cultural Resources Archeological Resource Preservation Plan and/or Interpretive Program

In the event of the discovery of an archeological resource of | Project sponsor If significant Planning Department | Considered complete upon
Native American origin, the Environmental Review Officer | archeological archeological project redesign,

(ERO), the project sponsor, and the tribal representative, shall | consultant, and resource is present, completion of ARFP, or
consult to determine whether preservation in place would be | ERQ, in during interpretive program of
feasible and effective. If it is determined that preservation-in- | consultation with implementation of the TCR, if required

place of the tribal cultural resource (TCR) would be both | the affiliated Native | the project
feasible and effective, then the archeological consultant shall | American tribal
prepare an archeological resource preservation plan (ARPP), | representatives
which shall be implemented by the project sponsor during
construction.

If the ERQ in consultation with the project sponsor and the
tribal representative determines that preservation—in-place of
the TCR is not a sufficient or feasible option then archeological
data recovery shall be conducted, as detailed under M-CR-5 for
this project. In addition, the project sponsor shall prepare an
interpretive program of the TCR in consultation with affiliated
Native American tribal representatives. The plan shall identify
proposed locations for installations or displays, the proposed
content and materials of those displays or installation, the
producers or artists of the displays or installation, and a long-
term maintenance program. The interpretive program may
include artist installations, preferably by local Native
American artists, oral histories with local Native Americans,
artifacts displays and interpretation, and educational panels or
other informational displays. Upon approval by the ERO and
prior to project occupancy, the interpretive program shall be
implemented by the project sponsor.

2017-00458TENY 550 C'Farrell Street Project
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

1. All off-road equipment greater than 25 horsepower and
operating for more than 20 total hours over the entire
duration of construction activities shall have engines that
meet or exceed either U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency or California Air Resources Board (ARB) Tier 2
off-road emission standards and have been retrofitted
with an ARB Level 3 Verified Diesel Emissions Control
Strategy (VDECS). Equipment with engines meeting Tier
4 Interim or Tier 4 Final off-road emission standards
automatically meet this requirement.

2. Where access to alternative sources of power are available,
portable diesel engines shall be prohibited.

3. Diesel engines, whether for off-road or on-road
equipment, shall not be left idling for more than two
minutes, at any location, except as provided in exceptions
to the applicable state regulations regarding idling for off-
road and on-road equipment (e.g., traffic conditions, safe
operating conditions). The construction contractor shall
post legible and visible signs in English, Spanish, and
Chinese, in designated queuning areas and at the
construction site to remind operators of the two-minute
idling limit.

4. The construction contractor shall instruct construction
workers and equipment operators on the maintenance and

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
CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATIONAL AIR QUALITY MITIGATION
Mitigation Measure AQ-2: Construction Emissions Minimization
Prior to Issuance of construction and building permits, the | Project Sponsor and | Prior to issuance of | Planning Department Considered completed
Project Sponsor’s construction contractor shall comply with the | Construction construction after construction activities
following: Contractor permits and are completed

. . throughout the
A E . .
ngine Requirements construction period

2017-D04557ENV
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

tuning of construction equipment and require that such
workers and operators properly maintain and tune
equipment in  accordance  with  manufacturer
specifications,

B. Waivers.

1. The planning department’s Environmental Review Officer
(ERO) or designee may waive the alternative source of
power requirement of subsection (A)2) if an alternative
source of power is limited or infeasible at the project site.
If the ERQ grants the waiver, the construction contractor
must submit documentation that the equipment used for
on-site power generation meets the requirements of
Subsection (A)(1).

2. The ERO may waive the equipment requirements of
subsection (A)}(1) if: a particular piece of off-road
equipment with an ARB Level 3 VDECS is technically not
feasible; the equipment would not produce a desired
emissions reduction due to expected operating modes;
installation of the equipment would create a safety hazard
or impaired visibility for the operator; or, there is a
compelling emergency need to use off-road equipment
that is not retrofitted with an ARB Level 3 VDECS. 1If the
ERO grants the waiver, the consbruction contractor must
use the next cleanest piece of off-road equipment,
according to the table below.

Ofi-Road Equipment Compliance Step-down Schedule

Compliance Engine Emission | Emissions

Alternative Standard Control

1 Tier 2 ARB Level 2
VDECS

2 Tier 2 ARB Level 1

2017-004557ENV J
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
MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SFONSOR

VDECS

3 Tier 2 Alternative
Fuel*

How #0 use the table: 1If the ERO determines that the
equipment requirements cannot be met, then the project
sponsor would need to meet Compliance Alternative 1. If
the ERO determines that the construction contractor cannot
supply off-road equipment meeting Compliance Altemative
1, then the construction contractor must meet Compliance
Alternative 2, If the ERO determines that the construction
contractor cannot supply off-road equipment meeting
Compliance Alternative 2, then the Contractor must meet
Compliance Alternative 3.

*Alternative fuels are not a VDECS,

C. Construction Emissions Minimization Plan. Before starting on-
site construction activities, the construction contractor shall
submit a Construction Emissions Minimization Plan (Plan) to
the ERO for review and approval. The Plan shall state, in
reasonable detail, how the constriction contractor will meet
the requirements of section A.

1. The PFlan shall include estimates of the construction
timeline by phase, with a description of each piece of off-
road equipment required for every construction phase.
The description may include, but is not limited to
equipment type, equipment manufacturer, equipment
identification number, engine model year, engine
certification (Tier rating), horsepower, engine serial
number, and expected fuel usage and hours of operation.
For VDECS installed, the description may include
technology type, serial number, make, model,

2017-00455TENY 55C O'Farrell Stoest Preject
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

manufacturer, ARB verification number level, and
installation date and hour meter reading on installation
date. For off-road equipment using alternative fuels, the
description shall also specify the type of alternative fuel
being used.

2. The project sponsor shall ensure that all applicable
requirements of the Plan have been incorporated into the
contract specifications. The Plan shall include a
certification statement that the construction contractor
agrees to comply fully with the Plan.

3. The construction contractor shall make the Plan available
to the public for review on site during working hours. The
construction contractor shall post at the construction site a
legible and visible sign summarizing the Plan. The sign
shall also state that the public may ask to inspect the Plan
for the project at any time during working hours and shall
explain how to request to inspect the FPlan. The
construction contractor shall post at least one copy of the
sign in a visible location on each side of the construction
site facing a public right-of-way.

D. Monitoring. After start of Construction Activities, the
construction contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the
ERQ documenting compliance with the Plan. After completion
of construction activities and prior to receiving a final
certificate of cccupancy, the project sponsor shall submit to the
ERQ a final report summarizing construction activities,
including the start and end dates and duration of each
construction phase, and the specific information required in
the Plan,

Mitigation Measure AQ-4: Best Available Control Technology for Diesel Generators

2017-004537ENY
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

noise atienuation measures under the supervision of a
qualified acoustical consultant to ensure that maximum
feasible noise attenuation will be achieved for the duration
of construction activities. Prior to commencement of
demuolition and construction activities, the project sponsor
shall submit the construction noise control plan to the San
Francisco Planning Department for review and approval.
Noise attenuation measures shall be implemented to meet
a goal of not increasing noise levels from construction
activities by more than 10 dBA above the ambient noise
level at sensitive receptor locations. Noise measures may
include but are not limited to those listed below.

2. Equip all internal combustion engine-driven equipment
with mufflers, which are in good condition and

qualified acoustical
consultant and
construction
contractor

grading or building
permits

Monitoring/
Implementation Mitigation Reporting Monitoring Actions/
Adopted Mitigation Measures Responsibility Schedule Respuonsibility Completion Criteria
MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR
The project sponsor shall ensure that the backup diesel | Project sponsor’s Prior to issuance of | Planning Department | Considered complete after
generator meet or exceed one of the following emission | construction construction construction activities are
standards for PM: (1) Tier 4-certified engine, or (2) Tier 2- or | contractor permits and completed
Tier 3-certified engine that is equipped with a California air throughout the
board Level 3 VDECS. A non-VDECs may be used if the filter construction period
has the same PM reduction as the identical California air
board-verified model and if the air district approves of its use.
The project sponsor shall submit documentation of compliance
with the air district’s New Source Review permitting process
(Regulation 2, Rule 2, and Regulation 2, Rule 5) and the
emission standard requirement of this mitigation measure to
the planning department for review and approval prior to
issuance of a permit for a backup diesel generator from any
City agency.
NOISE MONITORING AND CONSTRUCTION CONTROLS FOR ADJACENT BUILDINGS
Mitigation Measure NO-1: Construction Noise Controls
1. The project sponsor shall develop a set of site-specific | Project sponsor’s Prior to issuance of | Planning Department | Considered complete upon

submittal to ERO of post-
construction report on
construction monitoring
program and effects

2017-C0455TENY
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
MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TQ BY PROJECT STONSOR

appropriate for the equipment.

3. Use “quiet” models of air compressors and other
stationary noise sources where technology exists.

4. Locate stationary equipment as far away as possible from
adjacent land uses andfor construct temporary noise
barriers, where feasible, to screen such equipment.
Temporary noise barrier fences would provide a 5-dBA
noise reduction if the noise barrier interrupts the line-of-
sight between the noise source and receptor and if the
barrier is constructed in a manner that eliminates any
cracks or gaps.

5. Unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines should
be strictly prohibited.

6. The construction staging area should be located on
(' Farrell Street and as far as feasible from noise-sensitive
receptors. Locate material stockpiles, as well as
maintenancefequipment staging and parking areas, as far
as feasible from residential receptors.

7. Control noise from construction workers’ radios to a point
where they are not audible at existing residences
bordering the project site.

8.  Where feasible, temporary power service from Jocal utility
companies should be used instead of portable generators.

9. locate cranes as far from adjoining noise-sensitive
receptors as possible.

10. During final grading, substitute graders for bulldozers,
where feasible. Wheeled heavy equipment are cuieter
than track equipment and should be used whete feasible.

11. Substitute nail guns for manual hammering, where

20:7-004557ENV . .
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MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ELEMENTS

Monitoring/
Implementation Mifigation Reporting Monitoring Actions/
Adopted Mitigafion Measures Responsibility Schedule Respeonsibility Completion Criteria

MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

feasible.

Avoid the use of hydra break rams and hoe rams during
demolition.

Avoid the use of concrete saws, circular saws, miter/chop
saws, and radial arm saws near the adjoining noise-
sensitive receptors. Where feasible, shield saws with a
solid screen with material having a minimum surface
density of 2 pounds per sf (e.g., such as ¥-inch plywood).

During interior construction, the exterior windows facing
noise-sensitive receptors should be closed.

During interior construction, locate noise-generating
equipment within the building to break the line-of-sight to
the adjoining receptors.

The contractor shall prepare a detailed construction
schedule for major noise-generating construction
activities. The construction plan shall identify a procedure
for coordination with adjacent residential land uses so that
construction activities can be scheduled to minimize noise
disturbance.

Designate a Construction Manager who shall:

a. Clearly post his/her name and phone number(s) on
signs visible during each phase of the construction
program.

b. Notify area residents of construction activities,
schedules, and impacts.

c. Receive and act on complaints about construction
noise disturbances.

d. Determine the cause(s) and implement remedial

2017-00455TENY
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

measures as necessary to alleviate potentially
significant problems related to construction noise.

e. Request night noise permits from the San Francisco
Department of Building Inspection if any activity,
including deliveries ot staging, is anticipated outside
work hours that has the potential to exceed noise
standards. If such activity is required in response to
an emergency or other unanticipated conditions,
night noise permits shall be requested as soon as
feasible for any ongoing response activities.

f.  Notify the planning department's Development
Performance Coordinator at the time that night noise
permits are requested or as scon as possible after
emergency/unanticipated activity causing noise with
the potential to exceed noise standards has occurred.

18. A noise monitoring log report shall be prepared by the
construction manager or other designated person(s) on a
weekly basis and shall be made available to the planning
department when requested. The log shall include any
complaints received, whether in commection with an
exceedance or not, as well as any complaints received
through calls to 311 or the department of building
inspection if the contractor is made aware of them (for
example, via a department of building inspection notice,
inspection, or investigation). Any weekly report that
includes an exceedance or for a peried during which a
complaint is received should be submitted to the
Development Performance Coordinator within 3 business
days following the week in which the exceedance or
complaint cccurred. A report also shall be submiited to the
plarming department at the completion of each
consiruction phase, The report shall document noise
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

levels, exceedances of threshold levels, if reported, and
corrective action{s) taken.

Mitigation Measure M-NO-2: Construction Vibration Controls
The project sponsor shall retain the services of a qualified | Project Sponsor/ Prior to the Project Sponsor shall | Considered complete upon
structural engineer or vibration consultant and preservation | contractox(s), SF issuance of a site be responsible for submittal to ERO of post-
architect that meet the Secretary of the Interior's Historic | Public Works, as permit, demolition | contractor compliance | construction report on
Preservation Professional Qualification Standards to conduct a | directed by the ERQ | permit, or any construction monitoring
Pre-Construction Assessment at buildings determined to be other permit from program and effects, if any,
historic by the planning department. the Department of on proximate historical
Building Inspection resources

for the 550
O'Farrell Street
building

Planning Department,
and SF Public Works
to monitor Project
Prior to any demolition or ground-disturbing activity, a Pre- Sponsor compliance
Construction Assessment shall be prepared to establish a
baseline and shall contain written and photographic
descriptions of the existing condition of the visible exteriors
from public rights-of-way of the adjacent historic buildings
and in interior locations upon permission of the owners of the
adjacent properties. The Pre-Construction Assessment shall
determine specific locations to be monitored and include
annotated drawings of the buildings to locate accessible digital
photo locations and locations of survey markers and/or other
monitoring devices to measure vibrations. The Pre-
Construction Assessment shall be submitted to the planning
department along with the demolition and site permit
applications.

The structural engineer andfor vibration consultant in
consultation with the preservation architect shall develop, and
the project sponsor shall implement, a vibration management and
monitoring plan to protect nearby historic buildings against
damage caused by vibration or differential settlement caused
by vibration during project construction activities. In this plan,
the maximum vibration level not to be exceeded at each
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Implementation Mitigation Reporting Monitoring Actions/

Adopted Mitigation Measures Responsibility Schedule Responsibility Completion Criteria
MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

building shall be 0.25 inches per second, or a level determined
by the site-specific assessment made by the structural engineer
andfor the vibration consultant in coordination with the
preservation architect for the project. The vibration management
and monitoring plan shall document the criteria used in
establishing the maximum vibration level for the project. The
plan shall include pre-construction surveys and continuous
vibration monitoring throughout the duration of the major
construction project activities that would require heavy-duty
equipment to ensure that vibration levels do not exceed the
established standard. The vibration management and monitoring
plan shall be submitted to Planning Department Preservation
staff prior to issuance of any demolition or construction
permits. The plan shall include but not be limited to these
measures;

1. The project sponsors shall incorporate into construction
specifications for the proposed project a requirement that
the construction contractor(s) use all feasible means to
avoid damage to the adjacent buildings including, but not
limited to, staging of equipment and materials as far as
possible from adjacent buildings to limit damage; using
techniques during demelition, excavation, shoring, and
construction that create the minimum feasible vibration;
maintaining a buffer zone when possible between heavy
equipment and adjacent contributing resource(s); enclosing
construction scaffolding to avoid damage from falling
objects or debris; and ensuring appropriate security to
minimize risks of vandalism and fire,

2. Place operating equipment on the construction site as far
as possible from vibration-sensitive receptors.

3. Use smaller equipment to minimize vibration levels below
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Implementation Mitigation Keporting Monitoring Actions/
Adopted Mitigation Measures Responsibility Schedule Responsibility Completion Criteria

MITIGATION MEASURES AGREED TO BY PROJECT SPONSOR

the limits.

4. Avoid using vibratory rollers and tampers near sensitive
areas.

5. Select demolition methods not involving impact toels.

6. Modify/design or identify alternative construction
methods to reduce vibration levels below the limits.

7. Avoid dropping heavy objects or materials.

Should vibration levels be observed in excess of the standard,
or if damage to adjacent buildings is observed, construction
shall be halted and alternative techniques put in practice, to the
extent feasible. The structaral engineer and/or vibration
consultani and the historic preservation consultant shall
conduct regular periodic inspections of digital photographs,
survey markers, andfor other monitoring devices during
ground-disturbing activity at the project site. The buildings
shall be protected to prevent further damage and remediated
to pre-construction conditions as shown in the Pre-
Construction Assessment with the consent of the building
owner. Any remedial repairs shall not require building
upgrades to comply with current San Francisco Building Code
standards. A final report on the vibration monitoring shall be
submitted to Planning Department Preservation staff prior to
the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.
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D% i % a2 & 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
k7 San Francisco San Francisco, CA 94103

628.652.7600
www.sfplanning.org

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
North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1)
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

ADOPTING FINDINGS TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE
SECTION 253,263.7,271, AND 303 TO ALLOW A STRUCTURE OVER 40 FEET IN HEIGHT ON A LOT WITH MORE
THAN 50 FEET OF STREET FRONTAGE THAT EXCEEDS THE 80-FOOT BASE HEIGHT LIMIT IN THE NORTH OF
MARKET RESIDENTIAL SUD (SUBAREA NO. 1), AND BULK LIMIT EXCEPTIONS, THE PROJECT WOULD DEMOLISH
ALL BUT THE FACADE OF THE EXISTING TWO-STORY PARKING GARAGE AND CONSTRUCT A 13-STORY OVER
BASEMENT RESIDENIAL TOWER AND UTILIZE SECTION 207(c)(1) TO ACHIEVE 111 DWELLING UNITS TOTAL (22
ON-SITE INCLUSIONARY UNITS), LOCATED AT 550 O’FARRELL STREET, LOT 009 OF ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 0318,
WITHIN THE RC-4 (RESIDNETIAL HIGH DENSITY) ZONING DISTRICT, AN 80-T-130-T HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT,
AND THE NORTH OF MARKET RESIDENTIAL SPECIAL USE DISTRICT (SUBAREA NO. 1), AND ADOPTING FINDINGS
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

P HEFEE Para informacién en Espafiol llamar al Para sa impormasyon sa Tagalog tumawagsa  628.652.7550
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December 10, 2020 550 O’Farrell Street

PREAMBLE

On August 30, 2017, Rob Zirkle of Brick Architecture and Interiors, on behalf of Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC ("Project
Sponsor") filed an Environmental Evaluation Application (Case No. 2017-004557ENV) with the Planning
Department (“Department”) for a demolition and new construction development project at 550 O’Farrell Street,
Block 0318, Lot 009 (“Project Site”). The Department deemed the Environmental Evaluation Application complete
on April 16,2018.

On October 15, 2018, the Project Sponsor filed Project Application No. 2017-004557CUA requesting Conditional
Use Authorization to demolish the existing 2-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement
residential tower with 113 dwelling units, 1,492 square feet of ground-level retail, and parking for 21 vehicles
located at and below grade at the Project Site.

On March 6, 2019, the Department provided public notice of the determination that an Environmental Impact
Report (“EIR”) was required.

On September 30, 2019, the Project Sponsor submitted a revision to Project Application No. 2017-004557CUA
requesting Conditional Use Authorization to demolish the existing 2-story parking garage but retain the garage
facade and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units and no off-street
parking (“Project”) at the Project Site.

On February 4, 2020, the Project Sponsor filed a Preliminary Housing Development Application pursuant to the
Housing Crisis Bill of 2019 (“Senate Bill 330”) to determine the zoning, design, subdivision, and fee requirements
that will apply to the housing development project throughout the review and entitlement process.

On February 27, 2020, the Project Sponsor filed a supplemental Variance Application (Case No. 2017-004557VAR)
requesting relief from the requirements for Rear Yard and Dwelling Unit Exposure at the Project Site.

On May 20, 2020, the Department published the Draft Environmental Impact Report (“DEIR”) and

provided public notice in a newspaper of general circulation of the availability of the DEIR for public review and
comment and of the date and time of the Planning Commission public hearing on the DEIR; this notice was
mailed to the Department’s list of persons requesting such notice, and to property owners and occupants within
a 300-foot radius of the site on May 20, 2020.

On June 25,2020, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on the DEIR, at which
opportunity for public comment was provided and public comment was received on the DEIR. The period for

public commenting on the DEIR ended on July 7, 2020.

On November 9, 2020, the Department prepared and published the responses to comments on environmental
issues received during the comment period.

On November 23, 2020, the Department published an Errata to the Response to Comments on the Draft EIR
document for 550 O’Farrell Street to correct typographical errors.

San Francisco
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On December 10, 2020, the Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled
meeting regarding the Conditional Use application and Variance application (Record No. 2017-004557PRJ).

At the same Planning Commission hearing, the Commission reviewed and considered the Final Environmental
Impact Report (“FEIR”) and found that the contents of said report and the procedure through which it was
prepared, publicized, and reviewed comply with the provisions of CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and Chapter 31 of
the San Francisco Administrative Code. The FEIR was certified by the Commission on December 10, 2020 by
adoption of its Motion No. [ ]. The Commission, in certifying the FEIR, found that the Project described in the
FEIR will have the following significant and unavoidable environmental impact:

e Will have a significant, project-specific impact on historic architectural resources.

At the same Planning Commission hearing, and in conjunction with this motion, the Commission made
and adopted findings of fact and decisions regarding the Project description and objectives, significant
impacts, significant and unavoidable impacts, mitigation measures and alternatives, and a statement of
overriding considerations, including adoption of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
(“MMRP”) based on substantial evidence in the whole record of this proceeding and pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq. (“CEQA”),
particularly Section 21081 and 21081.5, the Guidelines for Implementation of CEQA, 14 California Code of
Regulations Sections 15000 et seq. (“CEQA Guidelines”), Sections 15091 through 15093, and Chapter 31 of
the San Francisco Administrative Code (“Chapter 317) by its Motion No. [_____ ]. The Commission adopted
these findings as required by CEQA, separate and apart from the Commission’s certification of the Project’s
Final EIR, which the Commission certified prior to adopting these CEQA findings. The Commission hereby
incorporates by reference the CEQA findings set forth in Motion No. [_____].

The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the custodian of records; the File for Record No. 2017-
004557CUA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California.

The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further
considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and
other interested parties.

MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use Authorization as requested in Application

No. 2017-004557CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following
findings:
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FINDINGS

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments,
this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:

Pl

The above recitals are accurate and constitute findings of this Commission.

Project Description. The project would demolish all but the fagade of the existing two-story parking garage
and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower (approximately 112,810 square feet) that would
utilize Section 207(c)(1) to achieve 111 dwelling units (22 on-site affordable units).

Site Description and Present Use. The Project is located on a rectangular lot with 86 feet of frontage
along O’Farrell Street and a lot depth of 137 feet (approximately 11,808 square feet of lot area). The
Project Site is developed with a two-story commercial garage (approximately 36,712 square feet). In
addition to public parking, the garage also contains a rental car company which has recently gone out
of business due to COVID-19 impacts.

Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the RC-4 (Residential-
Commercial, High Density) Zoning District and the North of Market Residential Special Use District
(Subarea No. 1), in the Tenderloin District of the Downtown / Civic Center neighborhood. The adjacent
site to the east contains a six-story apartment building and the one on the east contains a two-story
hotel. The block is developed with two- to 12-story masonry and concrete buildings built in the early
1900s. The structures are characterized by ground-floor restaurants and retail sales and services uses
with residential apartments and Single Room Occupancy hotels above. The Tenderloin Children’s
Playground and Boeddeker Park are located within a few blocks of the Project Site.

Other zoning districts in the vicinity of the project site include: P (Public), Polk Street and Lower Polk
Street NCDs (Neighborhood Commercial Districts) and C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial).

Public Outreach and Comments.

A. Public Outreach. At the date of writing this report, the Project Sponsor has engaged in the
following public outreach: Between July 2018 and November 2020, the Project Sponsor has
reached out to representatives of the Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation
(TNDC), Market Street for the Masses (MSMC), Tenderloin Housing Clinic (THC), Tenderloin
Museum, District 6 Community Planners, Positive Resource Center, and several individual
residents and community members to present and discuss the Project. Issues discussed
centered around affordability, possible community benefit agreements, design and
preservation of the existing fagade, and opportunities for engagement between community
groups and future residents.

B. Public Comments At the date of writing this report, the Department has received three letters in
support and one in opposition. Supporters cited the additional housing in the City, below-
market-rate units, and family-sized units that the Project will provide, in addition to the partial
preservation of the garage. Opposition was related to the aesthetic and lack of setbacks from
the lot line. Representatives from Tenderloin-based community organizations have also
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expressed support for the Project as a whole, but also a need for deeper levels of affordability
serve the immediate neighborhood and the desire for any housing fees that are collected to be
directed back to the neighborhood.

6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant
provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner:

A. Use. Residential Uses are principally permitted in the RC-4 zone, with an allowable density of one (1)
unit per 200 square feet of lot area pursuant to Planning Code Section 209.3. The dwelling unit
density is increased using the provisions of Planning Code Sections 249.5 and 207(c)(1), as discussed
below under Density. While allowed on the ground floor, Commercial Uses are not required at street
level, and none are proposed.

B. RearYard and Exposure. Section 134 of the Planning Code requires a Rear Yard equal to 25% of the
lot area, butin no case less than 15 feet. Planning Code Section 140 requires that each dwelling unit
face a public street, a code-compliant Rear Yard, or other defined open space.

The Project seeks a Variance under Case No. 2017-004557VAR pursuant to Planning Code Section 305,
to reduce the minimum requirements for Rear Yard and Dwelling Unit Exposure, which will be
considered by the Zoning Administrator. Based on the lot depth of 137.50 feet, the required Rear Yard is
34.375 feet. The proposed Rear Yard is 31.667 feet, or 23%. This reduction would cause the rear-facing
units to not meet the Dwelling Unit Exposure standards.

C. Open Space. A minimum of 36 square feet of private open space or 48 square feet of common open
space per dwelling unitis required pursuant to Planning Code Section 209.3.

Four of the ground-floor units have patios at grade that exceed the minimum dimensional and area
requirements for private open space. The remaining 107 dwelling units require 5,136 square feet of
common open space. Approximately 5,281 square feet is provided by a 2,128 square feet at-grade
patio at the rear of the structure and a 3,142 square feet roof deck on Level 13 facing the rear yard.

D. Bike Parking. For buildings with more than 100 dwelling units, Planning Code Section 155.2 requires
100 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces plus one for every four units over 100, and one (1) Class 2 spaces
per 20 dwelling units.

The Project would require 103 Class 1 spaces and six (6) Class 2 spaces. The Project complies by
providing 156 Class 1 spaces with 48 on Level 1 and 108 in the basement, and eight (8) Class 2 spaces
on O’Farrell Street.

E. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169 and the
TDM Program Standards, the Project shall finalize a TDM Plan prior Planning Department approval
of the first Building Permit or Site Permit. As currently proposed, the Project must achieve a target of
10 points.

The Project submitted a completed Environmental Evaluation Application after January 1, 2018.
Therefore, the Project must achieve 100% of the point target established in the TDM Program
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Standards, resulting in a required target of 10 points. As currently proposed, the Project will achieve 14
points through the following TDM measure:
e Providing on-site affordable housing (Option B)

e Parking Supply (Option K)

Density. The North of Market Residential Special Use District (Subarea No. 1) allows a density ratio of
one unit per 125 square feet of lot area pursuant to Planning Code Section 249.5(c)(4).

Based on the 11,808 square foot lot area, the Project has a maximum density of 94 units. Planning
Code Section 207(c)(1) states that projects that are not located in an RH-1 or RH-2 District and are not
seeking a density bonus under the provisions of California Government Code Section 65915, and
provides 20% or more of its units as on-site affordable units, the affordable units are not counted
towards the density. The Project is in the RC-4 Zoning District and is not seeking any other density
bonuses, therefore the Project complies with the density allowed in the North of Market Residential
Special Use District Subarea No. 1 by providing 89 market-rate units and 22 below-market rate units
on-site. The 22 on-site affordable units are being used to satisfy a portion of the Inclusionary Housing
requirements, as discussed below. (See Condition 23)

Dwelling Unit Mix. Per Planning Code Section 207.7, at least 25% of the proposed shall contain at
least two bedrooms and at least 10% shall contain at least three bedroom:s.

The Project complies with the Dwelling Unit Mix standards by providing 56% of the units as two-
bedrooms (62) and 13% as three-bedrooms (14).

Height. The Project is in the RC-4 Zoning District, North of Market Special Use District Subarea No. 1
(SUD), and the 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District. Section 260(b) allows elevator, stair and
mechanical penthouses to exceed the maximum roof height by an additional 16 feet. Planning Code
Section 253 requires Planning Commission approval pursuant to the Conditional Use provisions for
structures in an RC Zoning District that exceed 40 feet in height on lots with more than 50 feet of
street frontage, and Planning Code Section 263.7 requires Planning Commission approval pursuant
to the Conditional Use provisions for structures in the North of Market Residential SUD that exceed
the 80-foot base height limit, up to 130 feet.

The Project seeks Conditional Use Authorization for a 13-story building with a height of 129 feet.
Findings related to Height are discussed below under in Section 8 Building Height in RC Zoning District
and Section 10 Special Height Exceptions: North of Market Residential SUD Findings.

Bulk. The Project is subject to the controls for the “T” Bulk District established in Planning Code
Section 270. Above 80 feet in height, the maximum plan dimension length is 110 feet and the
maximum diagonal dimension is 125 feet.

The Project seeks Conditional Use Authorization to allow 134 feet diagonal dimension above 80 feet in
height. Findings related to Bulk are discussed below under Section 10 Bulk Limit Exceptions Findings.
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J.

Inclusionary Housing. Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. Planning Code Section 415 sets
forth the requirements and procedures for the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. Under
Planning Code Section 415.3, these requirements apply to projects that consist of 10 or more units.
The applicable percentage is dependent on the number of units in the project, the zoning of the
property, and the date of the accepted Project Application. A Project Application was accepted on
April 16, 2018; therefore, pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.3 the Inclusionary Affordable
Housing Program requirement for the On-site Affordable Housing Alternative is to provide 25% of
the proposed dwelling units as affordable or to pay the Affordable Housing Fee for an amount
equivalent to 30% of the proposed dwelling units to be constructed.

On October 14, 2020, the Project Sponsor submitted an ‘Affidavit of Compliance with the Inclusionary
Affordable Housing Program: Planning Code Section 415, stating the requirements will be satisfied by
a combination of on-site units and payment of the Affordable Housing Fee, and that any affordable
units designated as on-site units shall be rental units and will remain as such for the life of the project.
The Project Sponsor has demonstrated that the Project is eligible for the On-Site Affordable Housing
Alternative under Planning Code Section 415.5 and 415.6 and has elected to provide 20%, (22 units), of
the inclusionary housing requirement on-site, which is also the minimum amount required for the
Project to comply with the density provisions in Planning Code Section 207(c)(1), as discussed above,
with a minimum of 15% of the units affordable to low-income households, 5% of the units affordable to
moderate-income households, and the remaining 5% of the units affordable to middle-income
households, as defined by the Planning Code and Procedures Manual. Thirteen (13) units would be
provided at the low-income tier (55% AMI), four (4) units at the moderate-income tier (80% AMI), and
five (5) units at the middle-income tier (110% AMI). The dwelling unit mix for the 22 affordable units
would be seven one-bedroom, 12 two-bedroom, and three three-bedroom. As this only satisfies
approximately 78.6% of the required 25% On-Site Affordable Housing obligation, the remainder of the
requirement shall be paid as the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Fee, at the applicable rate of 30%.
Based on current fee rates, it is estimated that the project will pay approximately $1,524,308.35 as the
balance of the Inclusionary Affordable Housing requirement, in addition to the 22 proposed on-site
units. (See Condition 23)

7. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning Commission

to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On balance, the project
complies with said criteria in that:

A.  The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the proposed

location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible with, the
neighborhood or the community.

This is in an infill housing project that would provide 111 new residential units, 20% of which are
affordable inclusionary units, in an area near downtown with a shortage of mixed-income housing.
The new unit mix includes two- and three-bedroom units which supports the effort to provide housing
for families. The project would also retain the historic garage fagade, which would integrate the new
development with the existing fabric of the block. The increase of housing density will not inhibit other
neighborhood servicing uses in the area but rather encourage it. The increase in density does not
require the building to be larger than other zoning provisions require except for the diagonal
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dimension bulk controls, as discussed in Section 10 of this report.

B. The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of
persons residing or working in the vicinity. There are no features of the project that could be
detrimental to the health, safety or convenience of those residing or working the area, in that:

San Francisco
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(1) Nature of proposed site, including its size and shape, and the proposed size, shape and
arrangement of structures;

(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such
traffic, and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading;

(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust
and odor;

(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces,
parking and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs;

Although a reduction to the required Rear Yard is being considered through a Variance request,
the arrangement of the structure on the site allows a rear yard that contributes to the mid-block
open space and is more generous than other buildings on the block. The floor plan of the tower is
an "l" shape, creating shallow light wells, allowing light and air into the adjacent buildings light
wells.

The proposed project eliminates a commercial parking garage and replaces it with infill housing,
does not contain off-street parking, and provides 156 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces, which is more
than the 103 spaces otherwise required by the code, and is located in an area with robust public
transit options. It is anticipated that most new residents will not own a car.

The residential use of the building is not anticipated to create noxious or offensive emissions. All
mechanical equipment for the building will be contained within mechanical screening at the roof
level.

There will be 2 common open space areas provided for the residents; a ground-level patio at the
rear of the building and a roof deck on the top floor, Level 13, which also faces the rear open area.
These spaces will contain landscape elements to provide screening for neighbors.

That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and
will not adversely affect the General Plan.

The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code, including
the criteria for height and bulk exceptions as discussed in Sections 8 - 10, and is consistent with
objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed in Section 11. The reductions to the
minimum requirements for Rear Yard and Exposure are being considered by the Zoning
Administrator according the Variance provisions in Planning Code Section 305. The proposed
residential tower is consistent with the uses allowed in the RC-4 zoning district and North of Market
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Residential SUD No. 1. The proposed dwelling unit density is consistent with other high-density
residential development in the area and will support neighboring commercial uses.

D. Thatthe use as proposed would satisfy any criteria specific to the use in Planning Code Section
303(g), et seq.

N/A

8. Additional Findings: Building Height in RC Zoning District. Planning Code Section 253(b)(1) establishes
criteria for the Planning Commission to consider in addition to Section 303(c) when reviewing a request
for a building that exceeds 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of street frontage in an RC
Zoning District, up to but not above the prescribed height limit for the property. The Planning
Commission shall consider the expressed purpose of this code, of the RC Zoning District, and the height
bulk districts set forth in Sections 101, 209.3, and 251, and the objectives, policies, and principles of the
General Plan. The Project would exceed 40 feet in height, up to the 130 feet maximum permitted, as
discussed further Section 9 of this report, on a lot with 85.875 feet of frontage along O’Farrell Street. On
balance, the Project does comply with the criteria in that:

The Project would provide a high-density residential development, as intended for this site. By providing
20% of the units as on-site affordable units, the Project maximizes density while providing a mixture of
market rate and affordable units that also includes two- and three-bedroom units suitable for families.
While there are no Commercial Uses proposed, the increased density would support existing and future
neighborhood-serving Commercial Uses, and the ground-level interior residential amenity space is
designed and arranged in such a way that it could be converted to a Commercial Use and conform with
current Planning Code requirements.

The Project Site is in the North of Market Residential Special Use District (Subarea No. 1). Taller buildings in
this area are an appropriate transition from higher downtown heights to the lower heights of existing
buildings within the District and the Civic Center area and promote the production of housing. The
immediate area is made up of two- to 14-story structures, and the project would respond appropriately to
the patterns and characteristics of existing development. Retention of the facade with a three- to four-foot
deep hyphen separating the existing from the new construction promotes some level of harmony along the
streetwall and helps preserve the scale of existing development. Proximity to transit and ample bicycle
parking allows the Project Site to handle more density without creating negative impacts on traffic.

The Historic Preservation Commission expressed support for the project, stating that it matched the
surrounding size and scale and location of other contributing residential buildings within the Uptown
Tenderloin National Register historic district by aligning with the surrounding street wall.

The Project meets objectives, policies, and principles of the General Plan, as discussed in Section 7, and the
eight priority policies of the Planning Code found in Section 101, as discussed in Section 12 of this report.

9. Additional Findings: Special Height Exceptions: North of Market Residential SUD. Planning Code

Sections 249.5 and 263.7 establish criteria for the Planning Commission to consider in addition to
Section 303 when reviewing requests for structures above the base height, up to but not above the
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prescribed height limit for the property. Within the North of Market Residential SUD, heights higher than
80 feet would be appropriate in order to effect a transition from the higher downtown heights to the
generally lower heights of the existing buildings in the District’s core and the Civic Center area and to
make more feasible the construction of new housing, provided that development of the site is also
consistent with the general purposes of the North of Market Residential SUD, pursuant to Section
249.5(b).

The North of Market Residential SUD was established to protect and enhance important housing
resources in an area near downtown, conserve and upgrade existing low and moderate income housing
stock, preserve buildings of architectural and historic importance and preserve the existing scale of
development, maintain sunlight in public spaces, encourage new infill housing at a compatible density,
limit the development of tourist hotels and other commercial uses that could adversely impact the
residential nature of the area, and limit the number of commercial establishments which are not
intended primarily for customers who are residents of the area.

Because development at heights greater than 80 feet may create pressures on existing affordable
housing in the area, that portion of the value added to the new development resulting from the granting
of a height exception must be contributed to a fund established for the purpose of stabilizing,
rehabilitating, and retaining existing affordable units in the area.

The Project would exceed the 80-foot base height up to the maximum 130-foot height permitted in the
80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District. On balance, the Project does comply with the criteria in that:

The Project fits within the purpose of the North of Market Residential Special Use District. It is a residential
infill development that would provide much needed housing to the neighborhood and the City, including
22 affordable units onsite and family-sized units. The facade of the existing structure is retained to mitigate
the demolition of the historic resource and provide better harmony between the existing character of the
neighborhood and the new construction.

The Project would exceed the 80-foot base height and go up to the maximum 130-foot allowance. The
additional gross square footage above 80 feet would be subject to the North of Market Residential SUD
Affordable Housing Fee. Preliminary calculations show that approximately 39,796 square feet of the
building would be located above the 80-foot base height. Based on the current fee rate of $7.92 per gross
square foot above 80 feet, it is estimated that the project would have pay approximately $315,184, in
addition to the Inclusionary requirement of 22 on-site affordable units and the Inclusionary Affordable
Housing Fee. (See Condition 22)

Additional Findings: Bulk Limit Exceptions pursuant to Section 271. The Project is subject to the
controls for the “T” Bulk District established in Planning Code Section 270. Above 80 feet the maximum
plan dimension length is 110 feet and the maximum diagonal dimension is 125 feet. A diagonal
dimension of 134 feet is proposed on levels nine through 12. In addition to the criteria of Section 303(c)
of this Code, the Commission shall consider the following standards and criteria:

A. The appearance of bulk in the building, structure or development shall be reduced by means of
at least one and preferably a combination of the following factors, so as to produce the
impression of an aggregate of parts rather than a single building mass: Major variations in the
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planes of wall surfaces, in either depth or direction, that significantly alter the mass; Significant
differences in the heights of various portions of the building, structure or development that
divide the mass into distinct elements; Differences in materials, colors or scales of the facades
that produce separate major elements; and Compensation for those portions of the building,
structure or development that may exceed the bulk limits by corresponding reduction of other
portions below the maximum bulk permitted

In every case the building, structure or development shall be made compatible with the
character and development of the surrounding area by means of all of the following factors: A
silhouette harmonious with natural land-forms and building patterns, including the patterns
produced by height limits; Either maintenance of an overall height similar to that of surrounding
development or a sensitive transition, where appropriate, to development of a dissimilar
character; Use of materials, colors and scales either similar to or harmonizing with those of
nearby development; and Preservation or enhancement of the pedestrian environment by
maintenance of pleasant scale and visual interest.

While the above factors must be present to a considerable degree for any bulk limit to be
exceeded, these factors must be present to a greater degree where both the maximum length
and the maximum diagonal dimension are to be exceeded than where only one maximum
dimension is to be exceeded.

The Project would reduce the appearance of bulk in the building through a combination of factors:
(1) the mass of the building is divided by two central lightwells on the East and West sides of the
building; (2) the southern mass along O’Farrell Street is articulated with plane changes to reduce
the mass of the building; (3) the O’Farrell Street facade differentiates between the retained
elements of the base of the building and the new construction above as well as the further
differentiated top floor; (4) the different masses of the building are clad in distinct materials
producing visually separate major elements; (5) the maximum length of any major building
surface is 85" which is greatly under the maximum allowed length of 110’; and the top floor (level
13) has a reduced diagonal dimension of 102 feet, 11 inches, which is below what is permitted by
the Code; and (6) the project’s use of materials and color harmonize with surrounding buildings.

The Project’s building massing and silhouette are harmonious with neighboring building patterns
through the retention of the garage facade that forms the building’s base, the setback between
the retained element and new construction, which is greater at the corners, and creates a hyphen;
the 130 foot building height is consistent with other neighborhood residential, hotel, and SRO
buildings; the material palette of architectural precast, metal panel and cement plaster - along
with the existing historic concrete fagade — harmonize with the surrounding buildings; and the
pedestrian experience is enhanced by the removal of two large curb cuts in the sidewalk and the
addition of three street trees. The existing open parking garage at the pedestrian level has been
replaced with a residential lobby and residential amenity space which also enhances the building
frontage and the pedestrian experience.

The Project would only exceed the diagonal dimension on four of the five stories above 80 feet in
height and meets the criteria above to a considerable degree.
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The Historic Preservation Commission expressed support for the Project design, and commented
that the location of the addition’s massing was appropriate because it matched the surrounding
size and scale and location of other contributing residential buildings within the Uptown
Tenderloin National Register historic district by aligning with the surrounding street wall.

11. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and
Policies of the General Plan:

Objectives and Policies

IDENTIFY AND MAKE AVAILABLE FOR DEVELOPMENT ADEQUATE SITES TO MEET THE CITY’S HOUSING
NEEDS, ESPECIALLY PERMANENTLY AFFORDABLE HOUSING.

Policy 1.1
Plan for the full range of housing needs in the City and County of San Francisco, especially affordable
housing.

Policy 1.10
Support new housing projects, especially affordable housing, where households can easily rely on
public transportation, walking and bicycling for the majority of daily trips.

The Project would provide a high-density residential development with 111 dwelling units with a mix of unit
types and on-site affordable units. The Project would exceed the unit mix requirements and provide 56% of
the units as two-bedrooms (62) and 13% as three-bedrooms (14).

Twenty percent of the total units (22 units) would be provided to satisfy 78.9% of the Inclusionary
Affordable Housing requirement and allow more dwelling units in the Project. Thirteen (13) units would be
provided at the low-income tier (55% AMI), four (4) units at the moderate-income tier (80% AMI), and five (5)
units at the middle-income tier (110% AMI). The affordable units are comprised of seven (7) one-bedroom,
12 two-bedroom, and three (3) three-bedroom units, which provides affordable options for a variety of
household types and sizes. While the affordable units would not provide units affordable to very-low
income residents, it is utilizing a combination of on-site affordable units and paying fees toward affordable
housing.

In the North of Market Residential SUD, the on-site inclusionary rate for rental projects is 25% of total units,
and the 22 units represent 20% of the total units. The remainder of the requirement charged at 30% for
purposes of the Affordable Housing Fee and is expected to provide approximately S1.5 million that would
be paid to MOHCD and be used to fund housing projects with deeper affordability throughout the City. The
Project would also exceed the 80-foot base height limit, up to the maximum 130-foot allowance. Gross
square footage of the building above 80 feet is subject to an additional fee that provides funding for
affordable housing within the Project area in the North of Market Residential SUD; this would provide an
estimated $315,000.
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The Project Site is in a dense and transit-rich area that is served by MUNI rapid routes and service with
headways of 10 minutes or less and is within 2 mile of the BART and Muni Powell Street Station. Ample
bicycle parking is also provided on site. Residents would be able to easily rely on walking, transit, and
bicycles for daily trips.

FOSTER AHOUSING STOCK THAT MEETS THE NEEDS OF ALL RESIDENTS ACROSS LIFECYCLES.

Policy 4.1

Promote housing for families with children in new development by locating multi-bedroom units near
common open space and amenities or with easy access to the street; and by incorporating child-friendly
amenities into common open and indoor spaces

Policy 4.5
Encourage sufficient and suitable rental housing opportunities, emphasizing permanently affordable
rental units wherever possible.

Policy 4.6
Ensure that new permanently affordable housing is located in all of the City’s neighborhoods, and
encourage integrated neighborhoods, with a diversity of unit types provided at a range of income levels.

Of the 76 two- and three-bedroom units in the Project, 60 would be co-located with other two- and three-
bedroom units and provide opportunity for informal family connections and interactions. The Project
would provide 15 on-site affordable units as two- and three-bedroom units which fosters the integration of
different housing types among various income levels.

SUPPORT AND RESPECT THE DIVERSE AND DISTINCT CHARACTER OF SAN FRANCISCO’S
NEIGHBORHOODS.

Policy 11.1
Promote the construction and rehabilitation of well-designed housing that emphasizes beauty,
flexibility, and innovative design, and respects existing neighborhood character.

Policy 11.2
Ensure implementation of accepted design standards in project approvals.

Policy 11.3
Ensure growth is accommodated without substantially and adversely impacting existing residential
neighborhood character.

Policy 11.4
Continue to utilize zoning districts which conform to a generalized residential land use and density plan
and the General Plan.
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Policy 11.7
Respect San Francisco’s historic fabric, by preserving landmark buildings and ensuring consistency with
historic districts.

The partial preservation of the historic facade conforms to the Retained Elements Guidelines and respects
and enhances the existing neighborhood character, the new construction is consistent with the Uptown
Tenderloin Historic District, and the Project would replace a less desirable Automotive Use with a
Residential Use. The high density of the Project is principally permitted and appropriate for the Project Site
and surrounding neighborhood.

On the fourth level a three-foot setback, with four feet at the corners, would create a hyphen between the
retained facade and new construction. A deeper setback at this level could create a desirable design effect, but
too deep a setback here could make the building appear top heavy. A high parapet on the retained facade
presents challenges for street-facing dwelling units at the third level, and it would be difficult to provide a row of
street-facing dwelling units like the layout on the floors above. In response to this condition, the Project would
create lofts on the third level connected to the two dwelling units at the corners and the shared, interior
residential amenity area below. These lofts would be setback from approximately 20 feet from the exterior wall.
While there is potential for a deeper setback at the fourth-floor hyphen, the Department supports the three to
four-foot setback. It would effectively differentiate the historic fagade and the new construction and allow for
five street-facing dwelling units, as is typical of the levels above. A deeper setback would cause a loss in floor
area that would decrease the potential unit count on the fourth floor.

BALANCE HOUSING GROWTH WITH ADEQUATE INFRASTRUCTURE THAT SERVES THE CITY’S GROWING
POPULATION.

Policy 12.2

Consider the proximity of quality of life elements such as open space, childcare, and neighborhood
services, when developing new housing units.

The Tenderloin Children’s Playground and Boeddeker Park are located within a few blocks of the Project
Site. Although the Project is not providing neighborhood-serving Commercial Uses, there are many

restaurants, personal services, and other retail uses in the vicinity. The Project Site is also located within
proximity to the Polk Street NCD and Downtown Zoning Districts.

Objectives and Policies

EMPHASIS OF THE CHARACTERISTIC PATTERN WHICH GIVES TO THE CITY AND ITS NEIGHBORHOODS
AN IMAGE, A SENSE OF PURPOSE, AND A MEANS OF ORIENTATION.

Policy 1.3
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12.

Recognize that buildings, when seen together, produce a total effect that characterizes the city and its
districts.

CONSERVATION OF RESOURCES WHICH PROVIDE A SENSE OF NATURE, CONTINUITY WITH THE PAST,
AND FREEDOM FROM OVERCROWDING

Policy 2.4
Preserve notable landmarks and areas of historic, architectural or aesthetic value, and promote the
preservation of other buildings and features that provide continuity with past development.

Policy 2.6
Respect the character of older development nearby in the design of new buildings.

The Project Site is in the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District, and the existing commercial parking garage is
a historic resource under CEQA. The Project would demolish most of the garage and retain the concrete
facade, including the parapet. This partial preservation would meet the Retained Elements Guidelines and
be part of the impact mitigation for the demolition of the resource, though it does not result in a less than
significant impact on the resource. A double-height interior residential amenity area would be included on
the third floor to accommodate the existing openings and extended facade/parapet at this level, with
lofted dwelling units on either side. The Project proposes a hyphen at the fourth floor to differentiate the
retained facade from the new construction. Because of the double height facade at the third level that
cannot be altered, the hyphen setback was reduced from the typical eight to 10 feet setback to four feet at
each corner and three feet between. While this would decrease the differentiation, it would allow the five
dwelling units that face O’Farrell Street on this level to maintain more functional floor area in each unit,
thus allowing the full unit count on this floor as those above on levels five through 12. The level of the
hyphen would be clad in a darker material to increase the effect of differentiation, while the upper floors
would be precast concrete in a shade lighter than the hyphen but darker than the preserved fagade.

The Historic Preservation Commission expressed full support of the proposed Project and stated that the
use of the Retained Elements Guidelines was successfully applied to this Project. They also agreed that the
massing was appropriate because it matched the surrounding size and scale and location of other
contributing residential buildings within the Uptown Tenderloin National Register historic district by
aligning with the surrounding street wall.

Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of
permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that:

A.  Thatexisting neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.

The project site does not possess any neighborhood-serving retail uses. The Project provides 111
new dwelling units, which will enhance the nearby retail uses by providing new residents, who
may patron and/or own these businesses.

San Francisco
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San Francisco

anning

That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods.

There is no existing housing at the Project Site. The Project would provide 111 new dwelling units,
thus resulting in an overall increase in the neighborhood housing stock. In addition, the Project
would retain the fagade of the existing historic structure, thus incorporating visual neighborhood
character and integrating it with new construction. The Project would include a mix of housing
types for varying household types and sizes, 22 of which will be on-site affordable units. The
Project would protect and preserve the cultural and economic diversity of the neighborhood.

That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced,

The Project does not currently possess any existing affordable housing. The Project will comply
with the City’s Inclusionary Housing Program by providing 22 below-market rate dwelling units for
rent and paying into the citywide Affordable Housing Fee, as well as contributing to an affordable
housing fund specifically for the neighborhood within the NOMRSUD. Therefore, the Project will
increase the stock of affordable housing units in the City and the NOMRSUD.

That commuter traffic does not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or
neighborhood parking.

The Project Site is in a dense and transit-rich area that is served by MUNI rapid routes and service
with headways of 10 minutes or less and is within ¥2 mile of the BART and Muni Powell Street
Station. Ample bicycle parking is also provided on site. Residents would be able to easily rely on
walking, transit, and bicycles for daily trips, including commuting within the City and outlying
areas.

That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors
from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for
resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced.

The Project does not include commercial office development.

That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life
in an earthquake.

The Project will be designed and will be constructed to conform to the structural and seismic
safety requirements of the Building Code. This proposal will not impact the property’s ability to
withstand an earthquake.

That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved.

The existing garage is a historic resource under CEQA, and the Project would include partial
preservation through the retention of the garage facade. The new construction will be integrated
with the retained fagade.
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13.

14.

15.

H. Thatour parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from
development.

The Project does not cast shadow on any public park or other public open space.

First Source Hiring. The Project is subject to the requirements of the First Source Hiring Program as
they apply to permits for residential development (Administrative Code Section 83.11), and the Project
Sponsor shall comply with the requirements of this Program as to all construction work and on-going
employment required for the Project. Prior to the issuance of any building permit to construct or a First
Addendum to the Site Permit, the Project Sponsor shall have a First Source Hiring Construction and
Employment Program approved by the First Source Hiring Administrator and evidenced in writing. In
the event that both the Director of Planning and the First Source Hiring Administrator agree, the
approval of the Employment Program may be delayed as needed.

The Project Sponsor submitted a First Source Hiring Affidavit and prior to issuance of a building permit will
execute a First Source Hiring Memorandum of Understanding and a First Source Hiring Agreement with the
City’s First Source Hiring Administration.

The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code
provided under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and
stability of the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.

The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote the
health, safety and welfare of the City.
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DECISION

That based upon the Record, the submissions by the Applicant, the staff of the Department and other interested
parties, the oral testimony presented to this Commission at the public hearings, and all other written materials
submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use Authorization Application No.
2017-004557CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance
with plans on file, dated December 1, 2020 and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference
as though fully set forth.

The Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) and the
record as a whole and incorporates by reference herein the CEQA Findings contained in MotionNo. [_____ ]
and the MMRP, included as Attachment B to that Motion. All required mitigation and improvement measures
identified in Attachment B of MotionNo.[ ] areincluded as conditions of approval.

APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use
Authorization to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective date
of this Motion shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR the date of
the decision of the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further information, please
contact the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San
Francisco, CA94102.

Protest of Fee or Exaction: You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 that
isimposed as a condition of approval by following the procedures set forth in Government Code Section 66020.
The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90
days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee
or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date
of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.

If the City has not previously given Notice of an earlier discretionary approval of the project, the Planning
Commission’s adoption of this Motion, Resolution, Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s
Variance Decision Letter constitutes the approval or conditional approval of the development and the City
hereby gives NOTICE that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. If the
City has already given Notice that the 90-day approval period has begun for the subject development, then this
document does not re-commence the 90-day approval period.

| hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on December 10, 2020.

Jonas P. lonin

Commission Secretary

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED: December 10, 2020

San Francisco
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Authorization

This authorization is for a conditional use to allow the demolition of all but the facade of the existing two-story
parking garage and construct a 13-story-over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units located at 550
O’Farrell Street, Block 0318, Lot 009, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 253, 263.7, 271, and 303 within the RC-4
Zoning and North of Market Residential Special Use (Subarea No, 1) Districts and an 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk
District; in general conformance with plans, dated December 1, 2020 and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the
docket for Record No. 2017-004557CUA and subject to conditions of approval reviewed and approved by the
Commission on December 10, 2020 under Motion No. [____ ]. This authorization and the conditions contained
herein run with the property and not with a particular Project Sponsor, business, or operator.

Recordation of Conditions of Approval

Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning Administrator
shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County
of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is subject to the conditions of
approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on December 10, 2020
under MotionNo.[ ].

Printing of Conditions of Approval on Plans

The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A" of this Planning Commission Motion No. [_____ ] shall be
reproduced on the Index Sheet of construction plans submitted with the site or building permit application for
the Project. The Index Sheet of the construction plans shall reference to the Conditional Use authorization and
any subsequent amendments or modifications.

Severability

The Project shall comply with all applicable City codes and requirements. If any clause, sentence, section or any
part of these conditions of approval is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair
other remaining clauses, sentences, or sections of these conditions. This decision conveys no right to construct,
or to receive a building permit. “Project Sponsor” shall include any subsequent responsible party.

Changes and Modifications

Changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator. Significant
changes and modifications of conditions shall require Planning Commission approval of a new Conditional Use
authorization.

San Francisco
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CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, COMPLIANCE,
MONITORING, AND REPORTING

Performance

1. Validity. The authorization and right vested by virtue of this action is valid for three (3) years from the
effective date of the Motion. The Department of Building Inspection shall have issued a Building Permit or
Site Permit to construct the project and/or commence the approved use within this three-year period.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

2. Expiration and Renewal. Should a Building or Site Permit be sought after the three (3) year period has
lapsed, the project sponsor must seek a renewal of this Authorization by filing an application for an
amendment to the original Authorization or a new application for Authorization. Should the project sponsor
decline to so file, and decline to withdraw the permit application, the Commission shall conduct a public
hearing in order to consider the revocation of the Authorization. Should the Commission not revoke the
Authorization following the closure of the public hearing, the Commission shall determine the extension of
time for the continued validity of the Authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

3. Diligent Pursuit. Once a site or Building Permit has been issued, construction must commence within the
timeframe required by the Department of Building Inspection and be continued diligently to completion.
Failure to do so shall be grounds for the Commission to consider revoking the approval if more than three
(3) years have passed since this Authorization was approved.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

4. Extension. All time limits in the preceding three paragraphs may be extended at the discretion of the
Zoning Administrator where implementation of the project is delayed by a public agency, an appeal or a
legal challenge and only by the length of time for which such public agency, appeal or challenge has caused
delay.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org
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Conformity with Current Law. No application for Building Permit, Site Permit, or other entitlement shall be
approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in effect at the time of such
approval.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Additional Project Authorization. The Project Sponsor must obtain a Variance under Planning Code
Sections 134, 140, and 305 from the requirements for minimum Rear Yard and Exposure. The conditions set
forth below are additional conditions required in connection with the Project. If these conditions overlap
with any other requirement imposed on the Project, the more restrictive or protective condition or
requirement, as determined by the Zoning Administrator, shall apply.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Mitigation Measures. Mitigation measures described in the MMRP, Attachment B to the CEQA Findings
made under Motion No.[_____], are necessary to avoid potential significant effects of the Project and to
reduce a significant adverse impact, and have been agreed to by the Project Sponsor. The Project Sponsor
has agreed to include the Improvement measures as part of the Project. Their implementation is a condition
of Project approval.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Entertainment Commission - Noise Attenuation Conditions

8.

Pl

Chapter 116 Residential Projects. The Project Sponsor shall comply with the “Recommended Noise
Attenuation Conditions for Chapter 116 Residential Projects.” These conditions state:

A.  Community Outreach. Project Sponsor shall include in its community outreach process any
businesses located within 300 feet of the proposed project that operate between the hours of 9PM-
5AM. Notice shall be made in person, written or electronic form.

B. Sound Study. Project sponsor shall conduct an acoustical sound study, which shall include sound
readings taken when performances are taking place at the proximate Places of Entertainment, as
well as when patrons arrive and leave these locations at closing time. Readings should be taken at
locations that most accurately capture sound from the Place of Entertainment to best of their
ability. Any recommendation(s) in the sound study regarding window glaze ratings and
soundproofing materials including but not limited to walls, doors, roofing, etc. shall be given
highest consideration by the project sponsor when designing and building the project.

C. Design Considerations.

i.  During design phase, project sponsor shall consider the entrance and egress location and
paths of travel at the Place(s) of Entertainment in designing the location of (a) any
San Francisco
anning
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entrance/egress for the residential building and (b) any parking garage in the building.

ii. Indesigning doors, windows, and other openings for the residential building, project
sponsor should consider the POE’s operations and noise during all hours of the day and
night.

D. Construction Impacts. Project sponsor shall communicate with adjacent or nearby Place(s) of
Entertainment as to the construction schedule, daytime and nighttime, and consider how this
schedule and any storage of construction materials may impact the POE operations.

E. Communication. Project Sponsor shall make a cell phone number available to Place(s) of
Entertainment management during all phases of development through construction. In addition, a
line of communication should be created to ongoing building management throughout the
occupation phase and beyond.

Design - Compliance at Plan Stage

9. Final Materials. The Project Sponsor shall continue to work with Planning Department on the building
design. Final materials, glazing, color, texture, landscaping, and detailing shall be subject to Department
staff review and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to issuance.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

10. Garbage, Composting and Recycling Storage. Space for the collection and storage of garbage,
composting, and recycling shall be provided within enclosed areas on the property and clearly labeled and
illustrated on the building permit plans. Space for the collection and storage of recyclable and compostable
materials that meets the size, location, accessibility and other standards specified by the San Francisco
Recycling Program shall be provided at the ground level of the buildings.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.stplanning.org

11. Rooftop Mechanical Equipment. Pursuant to Planning Code 141, the Project Sponsor shall submit a roof
plan to the Planning Department prior to Planning approval of the building permit application. Rooftop
mechanical equipment, if any is proposed as part of the Project, is required to be screened so as not to be
visible from any point at or below the roof level of the subject building.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

12. Transformer Vault Location. The location of individual project PG&E Transformer Vault installations has

Pl

significant effects to San Francisco streetscapes when improperly located. However, they may not have any
impact if they are installed in preferred locations. The Department of Public Works indicated in a May 5, 2020
email that they can accept new Vault and Minor Encroachment applications for the Project Site. The above
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13.

14.

requirement shall adhere to the Memorandum of Understanding regarding Electrical Transformer Locations
for Private Development Projects between Public Works and the Planning Department dated January 2,
2019.

For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works at
628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org

Overhead Wiring. The Property owner will allow MUNI to install eyebolts in the building adjacent to its
electric streetcar line to support its overhead wire system if requested by MUNI or MTA.

For information about compliance, contact San Francisco Municipal Railway (Muni), San Francisco Municipal
Transit Agency (SFMTA), at 415.701.4500, www.sfmta.org

Noise, Ambient. Interior occupiable spaces shall be insulated from ambient noise levels. Specifically, in
areas identified by the Environmental Protection Element, Map1, “Background Noise Levels,” of the General
Plan that exceed the thresholds of Article 29 in the Police Code, new developments shall install and
maintain glazing rated to a level that insulate interior occupiable areas from Background Noise and comply
with Title 24.

For information about compliance, contact the Environmental Health Section, Department of Public Health at
415.252.3800, www.sfdph.org

Parking and Traffic

15. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169, the

16.

Pl

Project shall finalize a TDM Plan prior to the issuance of the first Building Permit or Site Permit to construct
the project and/or commence the approved uses. The Property Owner, and all successors, shall ensure
ongoing compliance with the TDM Program for the life of the Project, which may include providing a TDM
Coordinator, providing access to City staff for site inspections, submitting appropriate documentation,
paying application fees associated with required monitoring and reporting, and other actions.

Prior to the issuance of the first Building Permit or Site Permit, the Zoning Administrator shall approve and
order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County of San
Francisco for the subject property to document compliance with the TDM Program. This Notice shall provide
the finalized TDM Plan for the Project, including the relevant details associated with each TDM measure
included in the Plan, as well as associated monitoring, reporting, and compliance requirements.

For information about compliance, contact the TDM Performance Manager at tdm@sfgov.org or 628.652.7340,
www.sfplanning.org

Bicycle Parking. The Project shall provide no fewer than 103 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces as required by
Planning Code Sections 155.1 and 155.2.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org
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. Managing Traffic During Construction. The Project Sponsor and construction contractor(s) shall

coordinate with the Traffic Engineering and Transit Divisions of the San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA), the Police Department, the Fire Department, the Planning Department, and other
construction contractor(s) for any concurrent nearby Projects to manage traffic congestion and pedestrian
circulation effects during construction of the Project.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Provisions

18

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Pl

. Anti-Discriminatory Housing. The Project shall adhere to the requirements of the Anti-Discriminatory

Housing policy, pursuant to Administrative Code Section 1.61.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

First Source Hiring. The Project shall adhere to the requirements of the First Source Hiring Construction
and End-Use Employment Program approved by the First Source Hiring Administrator, pursuant to Section
83.4(m) of the Administrative Code. The Project Sponsor shall comply with the requirements of this Program
regarding construction work and on-going employment required for the Project.

For information about compliance, contact the First Source Hiring Manager at 415.581.2335,
www.onestopSF.org

Transportation Sustainability Fee. The Project is subject to the Transportation Sustainability Fee (TSF), as
applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 411A.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

Residential Child Care Impact Fee. The Project is subject to the Residential Child Care Fee, as applicable,
pursuant to Planning Code Section 414A.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

North of Market Affordable Housing Fee. The Project is subject to the North of Market Affordable Housing
Fee, as applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 263.7.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7322,
www.sfplanning.org

Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. The Project is subject to the Inclusionary Affordable Housing
Program, pursuant to Planning Code Section 415. The following Inclusionary Affordable Housing
Requirements are those that were in effect on February 4, 2020, when a Preliminary Application was
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submitted for the Project.

A.

San Francisco

Number of Required Units. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.3, the Project is required to
provide 25% of the proposed dwelling units as affordable to qualifying households. The Project
contains 111 units; therefore, 28 affordable units are currently required. The Project Sponsor will
fulfill this requirement by providing 22 affordable units on-site to meet the Project’s 20%
affordable unit minimum required to use Planning Code Section 207(c)(1) Exceptions to Dwelling
Unit Density Limits, and payment of the Affordable Housing Fee for the remaining 21.4% balance
of the Inclusionary requirement. If the number of market-rate units change, the number of
required affordable units shall be modified accordingly with written approval from Planning
Department staff in consultation with the Mayor's Office of Housing and Community
Development (“MOHCD”).

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at
628.652.7322, www.st-planning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
at415-701-5500,

www.sf.gov/departments/mayors-office-housing-and-community-development

Unit Mix. The Project contains 34 one-bedroom, 63 two-bedroom, and 14 three-bedroom units;
therefore, the required affordable unit mix is 7 one-bedroom, 12 two-bedroom, and 3 three-
bedroom units. The Project Sponsor has elected to provide 78.6% of their Inclusionary
requirement by providing on-site units, consistent with the “Combination” alternative included
in Section 415.5(g)(1)(D). Therefore, the Project is providing 7 one-bedroom, 12 two-bedroom,
and 3 three-bedroom units on-site. If the market-rate unit mix changes, the affordable unit mix
will be modified accordingly with written approval from Planning Department staff in
consultation with MOHCD.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at
628.652.7322, www.st-planning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
at415-701-5500,

www.sf.gov/departments/mavors-office-housing-and-community-development

Unit Location. Prior to the issuance of the architectural addendum by DBI for the Project, the
Project Sponsor shall record a Notice of Special Restrictions on the property that contains these
conditions of approval and a reduced set of plans that identify the affordable units satisfying the
requirements of this approval. The designation shall comply with the designation standards
published by the Planning Department and updated periodically. The Project Sponsor shall
promptly provide a copy of the recorded Notice of Special Restrictions to the Department and to
MOHCD or its successor.
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San Francisco

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at
628.652.7322, www.sf-planning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
at415-701-5500,

www.sf.gov/departments/mayors-office-housing-and-community-development

Mixed Income Levels for Affordable Units. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.3, the Project is
required to provide 25% of the proposed dwelling units as affordable to qualifying households.
At least 15% must be affordable to low-income households, at least 5% must be affordable to
moderate income households, and at least 5% must be affordable to middle income households.
Rental Units for low-income households shall have an affordable rent set at 55% of Area Median
Income or less, with households earning up to 65% of Area Median Income eligible to apply for
low-income units. Rental Units for moderate-income households shall have an affordable rent
set at 80% of Area Median Income or less, with households earning from 65% to 90% of Area
Median Income eligible to apply for moderate-income units. Rental Units for middle-income
households shall have an affordable rent set at 110% of Area Median Income or less, with
households earning from 90% to 130% of Area Median Income eligible to apply for middle-
income units. For any affordable units with rental rates set at 110% of Area Median Income, the
units shall have a minimum occupancy of two persons.

The Project Sponsor has elected to provide 78.6% of their Inclusionary requirement by
providing on-site units, consistent with the “Combination” alternative included in Section
415.5(g)(1)(D). The income levels for the on-site units must be provided at the same ratio
required by the Planning Code described above. Therefore, the Project is providing 13 units to
low-income households at an affordable rent set at 55% Area Median Income, 4 units to
moderate-income households at an affordable rent set at 80% Area Median Income, and 5 units
to middle-income households at an affordable rent set at 110% Area Median Income. If the
number of market-rate units change, the number of required affordable units shall be modified
accordingly with written approval from Planning Department staff in consultation with the
Mayor's Office of Housing and Community Development (“MOHCD”).

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at
628.652.7322, www.st-planning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
at415-701-5500,

www.sf.eov/departments/mayors-office-housing-and-community-development

Minimum Unit Sizes. The affordable units shall meet the minimum unit sizes standards
established by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) as of May 16, 2017. One-
bedroom units must be at least 450 square feet, two-bedroom units must be at least 700 square
feet, and three-bedroom units must be at least 900 square feet. Studio units must be at least 300
square feet pursuantto Planning Code Section 415.6(f)(2). The total residential floor area devoted
to the affordable units shall not be less than the applicable percentage applied to the total
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residential floor area of the principal project, provided that a 10% variation in floor area is
permitted.

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

Conversion of Rental Units: In the event one or more of the Rental Units are converted to
Ownership units, the project sponsor shall either (A) reimburse the City the proportional amount
of the inclusionary affordable housing fee, which would be equivalent to the then-current
inclusionary affordable fee requirement for Owned Units, or (B) provide additional on-site
affordable units equivalent to the difference between the on-site rate for rental units approved at
the time of entitlement and the then-current inclusionary requirements for Owned Units. The
additional units shall be apportioned among the required number of units at various income
levels in compliance with the requirements in effect at the time of conversion.

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

Regulatory Agreement. Prior to the issuance of the first construction document, recipients of
density bonuses shall enter into a regulatory agreement with the City in conformance with the
provisions set forth in Planning Code Section 207(c).

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

Phasing. If any building permit is issued for partial phasing of the Project, the Project Sponsor
shall have designated not less than twenty percent (20%), or the applicable percentage as
discussed above, of each phase's total number of dwelling units as on-site affordable units.

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
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Duration. Under Planning Code Section 415.8, all units constructed pursuant to Section 415.6,
must remain affordable to qualifying households for the life of the project.

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

Expiration of the Inclusionary Rate. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.6(a)(10), if the Project
has not obtained a site or building permit within 30 months of Planning Commission Approval of
this Motion No. 20657, then it is subject to the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Requirements in
effect at the time of site or building permitissuance.

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

Reduction of On-Site Units after Project Approval. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.5(g)(3),
any changes by the project sponsor which result in the reduction of the number of on-site
affordable units shall require public notice for hearing and approval from the Planning
Commission. The project has qualified for a density bonus by providing at least 20% of the units
on-site as affordable and must maintain a minimum of 20% on-site affordability for the life of the
project.

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

Other Conditions. The Project is subject to the requirements of the Inclusionary Affordable
Housing Program under Section 415 et seq. of the Planning Code and City and County of San
Francisco Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program Monitoring and Procedures Manual
("Procedures Manual"). The Project Sponsor has elected to provide 78.6% of their Inclusionary
requirement by providing on-site units, consistent with the “Combination” alternative included
in Section 415.5(g)(1)(D). The income levels for the on-site units must be provided at the same
ratio required by the Planning Code described above. The Procedures Manual, as amended from
time to time, is incorporated herein by reference, as published and adopted by the Planning
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Commission, and as required by Planning Code Section 415. Terms used in these conditions of
approval and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Procedures Manual.
A copy of the Procedures Manual can be obtained at the MOHCD at 1 South Van Ness Avenue or
on the Planning Department or MOHCD websites. As provided in the Inclusionary Affordable
Housing Program, the applicable Procedures Manual is the manual in effect at the time the
subject units are made available for sale or rent.

The affordable unit(s) shall be designated on the building plans prior to the issuance of
the first construction permit by the Department of Building Inspection (“DBI”). The
affordable unit(s) shall (1) be constructed, completed, ready for occupancy and marketed
no later than the market rate units, and (2) be evenly distributed throughout the building,
however for buildings over 120 feet in height, as measured by the Planning Code, the
units may be distributed throughout the lower 2/3 of the building as measured by floors
containing residential units; and (3) be of comparable overall quality, construction and
exterior appearance as the market rate unitsin the principal project. The interior features
in affordable units should be generally the same as those of the market units in the
principal project, but need not be the same make, model or type of such item as long
they are of good and new quality and are consistent with then-current standards for new
housing. Other specific standards for on-site units are outlined in the Procedures Manual.
If the units in the building are offered for rent, the affordable unit(s) shall be rented to
qualifying households, with @ minimum of 15% of the units affordable to low-income
households, 5% to moderate-income households, and the remaining 5% of the units
affordable to middle-income households such as defined in the Planning Code and
Procedures Manual. Theinitial and subsequent rent level of such units shall be calculated
according to the Procedures Manual. Limitations on (i) occupancy; (ii) lease changes; (iii)
subleasing, and; are set forth in the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program and the
Procedures Manual.

The Project Sponsor is responsible for following the marketing, reporting, and
monitoring requirements and procedures as set forth in the Procedures Manual. MOHCD
shall be responsible for overseeing and monitoring the marketing of affordable units. The
Project Sponsor must contact MOHCD at least six months prior to the beginning of
marketing for any unit in the building.

Prior to the issuance of the first construction permit by DBI for the Project, the Project
Sponsor shall record a Notice of Special Restriction on the property that contains these
conditions of approval and a reduced set of plans that identify the affordable units
satisfying the requirements of this approval. The Project Sponsor shall promptly provide
a copy of the recorded Notice of Special Restriction to the Department and to MOHCD or
its successor.

If the Project Sponsor fails to comply with the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program
requirement, the Director of DBI shall deny and all site or building permits or certificates
of occupancy for the development project until the Planning Department notifies the
Director of compliance. A Project Sponsor’s failure to comply with the requirements of
Planning Code Section 415 et seq. shall constitute cause for the City to record a lien
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against the development project and to pursue any and all available remedies at law,
Including penalties and interest, if applicable.

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

Fee Requirement. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.5, the Project Sponsor must pay an
Affordable Housing Fee at a rate equivalent to the applicable percentage of the number of units
in an off-site project needed to satisfy the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program Requirement
forthe principal project. The applicable percentage for this projectis thirty percent (30%) because
itis a rental project. The Project Sponsor shall pay the applicable Affordable Housing Fee at the
issuance of the first construction document. The Project Sponsor has elected to provide 78.6% of
their Inclusionary requirement by providing on-site units, consistent with the “Combination”
alternative included in Section 415.5(g)(1)(D). Therefore, the Project Sponsor is required to satisfy
the remaining 21.4% of the Inclusionary requirement through payment of the Inclusionary
Affordable Housing Fee.

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

Other Conditions - Inclusionary Fee Requirement. The Project is subject to the requirements of
the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program under Section 415 et seq. of the Planning Code and
the terms of the City and County of San Francisco Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program
Monitoring and Procedures Manual ("Procedures Manual"). The Procedures Manual, as amended
from time to time, is incorporated herein by reference, as published and adopted by the Planning
Commission, and as required by Planning Code Section 415. Terms used in these conditions of
approval and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Procedures Manual.
A copy of the Procedures Manual can be obtained at the Mayor's Office of Housing and
Community Development (“MOHCD”) at 1 South Van Ness Avenue or on the Planning Department
or Mayor's Office of Housing and Community Development's websites. As provided in the
Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program, the applicable Procedures Manual is the manual in
effect at the time the subject units are made available for sale or rent.

i. TheProject Sponsor must pay the Fee in full sum to the Development Fee Collection Unit
at the DBI for use by MOHCD prior to the issuance of the first construction document.

ii. Priorto theissuance of the first construction permit by the DBI for the Project, the Project
Sponsor shall record a Notice of Special Restriction on the property that records a copy
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of this approval. The Project Sponsor shall promptly provide a copy of the recorded
Notice of Special Restriction to the Department and to MOHCD or its successor.

iii. If project applicant fails to comply with the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program
requirement, the Director of DBI shall deny any and all site or building permits or
certificates of occupancy for the development project until the Planning Department
notifies the Director of compliance. A Project Sponsor’s failure to comply with the
requirements of Planning Code Sections 415 et seq. shall constitute cause for the City to
record a lien against the development project and to pursue any and all other remedies
at law, including interest and penalties, if applicable.

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

Monitoring - After Entitlement

24.

25.

26.

Pl

Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion
or of any other provisions of Planning Code applicable to this Project shall be subject to the enforcement
procedures and administrative penalties set forth under Planning Code Section 176 or Section 176.1. The
Planning Department may also refer the violation complaints to other city departments and agencies for
appropriate enforcement action under their jurisdiction.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Monitoring. The Project requires monitoring of the conditions of approval in this Motion. The Project
Sponsor or the subsequent responsible parties for the Project shall pay fees as established under Planning
Code Section 351(e) (1) and work with the Planning Department for information about compliance.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in complaints
from interested property owners, residents, or commercial lessees which are not resolved by the Project
Sponsor and found to be in violation of the Planning Code and/or the specific conditions of approval for the
Project as set forth in Exhibit A of this Motion, the Zoning Administrator shall refer such complaints to the
Commission, after which it may hold a public hearing on the matter to consider revocation of this
authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco
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Operation

27. Garbage, recycling, and compost containers shall be kept within the premises and hidden from public

28.

29.

Pl

view and placed outside only when being serviced by the disposal company. Trash shall be contained and
disposed of pursuant to garbage and recycling receptacles guidelines set forth by the Department of Public
Works.

For information about compliance, contact the Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works
at628.271.2000, www.stpublicworks.org

Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all
sidewalks abutting the subject property in a clean and sanitary condition in compliance with the
Department of Public Works Streets and Sidewalk Maintenance Standards.

For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works,
628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org

Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the
approved use, the Project Sponsor shall appoint a community liaison officer to deal with the issues of
concern to owners and occupants of nearby properties. The Project Sponsor shall provide the Zoning
Administrator and all registered neighborhood groups for the area with written notice of the name, business
address, and telephone number of the community liaison. Should the contact information change, the
Zoning Administrator and registered neighborhood groups shall be made aware of such change. The
community liaison shall report to the Zoning Administrator what issues, if any, are of concern to the
community and what issues have not been resolved by the Project Sponsor.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco

anning
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TYPE I - 130' HEIGHT

13 LEVELS OF TYPE | CONSTRUCTION.

GROSS BUILDING AREA NET RESIDENTIAL UNITS
LEVEL AREA 1 BEDRM 2 BEDRM 3 BEDRM TOTAL
(531-573 SF)  (719-788 SF)  (903-1,456 SF)
BASEMENT 4,885 SF
LEVEL 1 7,958 SF 2,424 SF 3 1 4
LEVEL 2 8,561 SF 5,136 SF 2 2 3 7
LEVEL 3 8,590 SF 4,320 SF 2 2 1 5
LEVEL 4 8,392 SF 6,653 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 5 8,657 SF 6,917 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 6 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 7 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 8 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 9 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 10 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 11 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 12 8,657 SF 6,914 SF 3 6 1 10
LEVEL 13 5,168 SF 3,362 SF 1 4 5
112,810 SF 77.210 SF 35 62 14 11+
UNIT MIX: 31% 56% 13% 100%

*DWELLING UNIT DENSITY

SFPC SEC 249.5(4) FOR NORTH OF MARKET RESIDENTIAL
SUD SUBAREA NO. 1 ALLOWS RESIDENTIAL DENSITY OF 1
UNIT PER 125 SQUARE FEET OF LOT AREA. LOT AREA IS
11,808 SF, ALLOWING FOR 94 DWELLING UNITS. PER SEC
207(C)(1), AFFORDABLE UNITS IN PROJECTS WITH 20
PERCENT OR MORE AFFORDABLE UNITS WILL NOT COUNT
TOWARDS DWELLING UNIT DENSITY. THIS PROJECT IS
SEEKING 111 UNITS AND IS PROVIDING 20% (22)
AFFORDABLE UNITS FOR A TOTAL ALLOWED DENSITY OF UP
TO 116 UNITS.

PROJECT DATA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

ASSESSOR'S BLOCK/LOT: 0318/009

THIS PROJECT SEEKS TO ADD MUCH NEEDED HOUSING TO THE UPPER ZONING: RC4,

TENDERLOIN HISTORIC DISTRICT. THE DESIRE TO MAXIMIZE HEIGHT AND _
DENSITY WITHIN THE RC-4 ZONE HAS RESULTED IN A 13 STORY RESIDENTIAL B S G L ORTH OF MARKET RESIDENTIAL SUD NO. 1
TOWER WITH 111 UNITS, 20% (22 UNITS) OF WHICH WILL BE BELOW MARKET HEIGHT & BULK oor

RATE. THE GROUND FLOOR CONTAINS THE RESIDENTIAL LOBBY, RESIDENT : 11,808 €

AMENITY SPACE AND LEASING OFFICE. OPEN SPACE IS PROVIDED WITH SOME HISTORIC STATUS: LEVEL A - HISTORIC RESOURCE PRESENT
PRIVATE YARDS ON LEVEL 1 AND TWO LARGE COMMON OPEN SPACE AREAS;

ONE ON THE LEVEL 1 REAR YARD AND THE OTHER ON LEVEL 13. THIS PROJECT

OPEN SPACE CALCULATION
SII.E?AOOEELPI\EISS THE EXISTING FACADE OF THE PARKING GARAGE BEING PRIVATE OPEN SPACE (POS) REQ'D = 36 SF PER UNIT OR

COMMON OPEN SPACE (COS) REQ'D = 48 SF PER UNIT

THE FOLLOWING VARIANCE REQUESTS ARE BEING CONSIDERED UNDER POS PROVIDED: 4 UNITS
PROJECT NO. 2017-004557VAR: 111 UNITS - 4 UNITS = 107 UNITS REQUIRING COS
COS PROVIDED: 5,270 SF / 48 SF = 110 UNITS (EXCEEDS 107 UNITS)
1. PERSEC.270 BULK LIMITS; MEASUREMENT, PLAN DIMENSIONS AT SETBACK
HEIGHT ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SEC.132.2 SHALL NOT EXCEED 110

FEET IN LENGTH AND 125 FEET DIAGONALLY. THIS PROJECT IS SEEKING TO BICYCLE PARKING
INCREASE THE DIAGONAL DIMENSION ALLOWED TO 134 FEET REQUIRED: 103 CLASS 1 AND 6 CLASS 2
2. THE PROJECT IS SEEKING A REAR YARD MODIFICATION PURSUANT TO PROVIDED: 156 CLASS 1 AND 8 CLASS 2:
SEC.134J TO REDUCE THE WIDTH OF THE REAR YARD FROM 34'-4" TO 31'-2". LEVEL 1: 48 CLASS 1 AND 8 CLASS 2
3. THE PROJECT IS SEEKING A SECTION 140 UNIT EXPOSURE VARIANCE TO LEVEL B1: 108 CLASS 1

PERMIT THE UNITS FACING THE REAR YARD TO MAINTAIN UNIT EXPOSURE

OF 31'-2", RATHER THAN INCREASING IN WIDTH AS THE BUILDING

INCREASES IN HEGHT. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
NON PROVIDED

BETTER ROOFS ORDINANCE
NOT APPLICABLE - BUILDING OVER 10 STORIES (SEC.149.C.3).

' i data sheet
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550 o'farrell st. san francisco, ca project application update
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Character-Defining Features of the Uptown Tenderloin Historic District

Three- to-seven-story building height

Multi-unit apartments, hotels, or apartment-hotels, as well as other
building types that support residential life (including institutional and

commercial uses)

Constructed of brick or reinforced concrete
GEARY STREET

Bay windows on street facades, double-hung windows in the earlier
buildings, casement windows with transoms in later buildings

Flat roofs with parapets providing compositional space for decorative

-
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Prominent fire escapes

Decorative features: brick or stucco facings with molded galvanized O'FARRELL STREET

iron, terra cotta, or cast concrete; deep set windows in brick walls with
segmental arches or iron lintels; decorative quoins; sandstone or terra
cotta rusticated bases, columns, sills, lintels, quoins, entry arches,
keystones, string courses (concrete, stucco or galvanized iron also
used to imitate these architectural features)

LEAVENWORTH sTREET

13318 HOTAVL

Buildings occupy the entire width of the lot creating continuous street
walls

Elaborately detailed residential entrances
ELLIS STREET

Two- or three-part vertical building composition for apartment and hotel
buildings, one- or two-part commercial composition for non-residential

and small residential buildings,

Engraved or painted signs, bronze plaques and neon signs 550 O'FARRELL STREET

] H historic district
550 o'farrell - proposed design @ " 12.01.20

san francisco, ca
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Exhibit C;
Land Use Data

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400

San Francisco San Francisco, CA 94103
Plannlng 6266527600
www.sfplanning.org
LAND USE INFORMATION
PROJECT ADDRESS: 550 OFARRELL ST
RECORD NO.: 2017-004557PRJ
GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE (GSF)
Parking GSF 35,425 0 -35,425
Residential GSF 0 112,810 112,810
TOTAL GSF 35,425 112,810 77,396
PROJECT FEATURES (Units or Amounts)
Dwelling Units - Affordable 0 22 22
Dwelling Units - Market Rate 0 89 89
Dwelling Units - Total 0 111 111
Number of Buildings 1 0 1
Number of Stories 2 13 11
Parking Spaces 119 0 -119
Bicycle Spaces 0 156 156
| exstne [ proeoseD | NeTnew |
LAND USE - RESIDENTIAL
One Bedroom Units 0 35 35
Two Bedroom Units 0 62 62
Three Bedroom (or +) Units 0 14 14






Exhibit D:
Maps and Context Photos

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

SAN FRANGISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT
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Zoning District Map

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Height and Bulk District

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





North of Market Residential Special Use District

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Adjacent Zoning and Height & Bulk Districts

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Map View

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Satellite View

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Aerial View

Project
Site

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Street View - 550 O’Farrell Street

Project
Site

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Looking east on O’Farrell from Leavenworth Street

Project
Site

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Looking east down O’Farrell Street

Project
Site

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street
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PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Looking west on O’Farrell from Jones Street

Project
Site

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street
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PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Exhibit E:

Project Sponsor Brief

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT
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November 30, 2020

Hon. Joel Koppel, President

San Francisco Planning Commission
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: 550 O’Farrell Street
Case No. 2017-004557CUA
Certification of EIR, Conditional Use Authorization and Rear Yard Variance
Hearing Date: December 10, 2020

Dear President Koppel and Commissioners:

I am writing on behalf of Sandhill O’Farrell, LLC, the project sponsor of the 550
O’Farrell Street project (the “Project”). The Project site is located in the Tenderloin
neighborhood mid-block on O’Farrell Street between Jones Street and Leavenworth Street in an
RC4 zoning district, the North of Market Residential Special Use District No. 1, the 80-T-140-T
height and bulk district, and the Uptown Tenderloin National Register Historic District. The site
is currently occupied by a two-story private parking garage built in 1924 in the Gothic Revival
style that the Planning Department determined is an individually significant historic resource.

Project Description. Consistent with the Planning Commission and Historic Preservation
Commission’s recent Retained Elements Guidelines, the Project proposes to retain the facade of
the garage that contains the Gothic Revival elements and add a compatible but differentiated
facade treatment above, separated from the historic fagade by a horizontal "hyphen." The Project
would demolish the remainder of the garage and construct a 13-story residential rental building
containing 111 dwelling units, 69% of which are 2-bedroom and 3-bedroom units (far in excess
of the Planning Code's requirement for 35% of the units to be multi-family). A full 20% of the
units are on-site inclusionary units (22 units). In addition, based on the site’s location in the
North of Market Residential Special Use Districts with its elevated inclusionary requirements
and a fee applicable only in the 80-T-120-T height and bulk district, the Sponsor will also pay an
additional approximately $1.4 million to the City’s Affordable Housing Fund. The Project
contains no off-street parking or loading spaces; 156 Class I and 8 Class II bicycle parking
spaces will be provided.

Brick Architecture and Interiors is the Project architect. Your Commission packet
contains renderings, plans, elevations, and sections of the retained elements design.

Environmental Impact Report. Despite the retention of the parking garage’s Gothic
Revival fagade, the Planning Departments determined that demolition of the remainder of the
garage is a significant environmental impact that required preparation of an EIR. That process

Russ Building » 235 Montgomery Street » San Francisco, CA 94104 = T 415.954.4400 » F 415.954.4480
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consumed over two years, and you will recall that the Commission favorably commented on the
adequacy of Draft EIR at a hearing on June 25, 2020. The HPC also held a hearing on the Draft
EIR, concurred with the document’s preservation analysis, and expressed its support for the final
retained elements design. The EIR also determined that demolition of the parking garage and the
design of the new building would not have any significant impacts on the integrity of the
surrounding Uptown Tenderloin National Register Historic District. The Responses to
Comments document was published on November 9, 2020, and we request that you certify the
Final EIR at the December 10 hearing as complete and accurate. The EIR contains four
preservation mitigation measures and four noise and air quality mitigation measures, all of which
the Sponsor will implement.

Conditional Use Authorization and Variance. The residential units, inclusionary housing,
open space, parking and loading, and bicycle parking elements of the Project are all consistent
with and permitted by the underlying RC-4 zoning and North of Market Residential SUD.
Conditional use authorization from the Commission is required for a height above 40 feet in a R
zoning district, a height above 80 feet in the 80-T-130-T height and bulk district, and for a small
diagonal bulk exceedance on Floors 7 to 12. The Zoning Administrator will also consider a rear
yard variance to reduce the depth of the rear yard by a few feet, necessitated by the retention of
the O’Farrell Street facade. We request that the Commission grant conditional use approval with
this minor bulk exceptions based on the overall merits of this mixed income residential Project
and its outstanding design consistent with the Retained Elements Guidelines.

Community Engagement. The Sponsor has had extensive discussions with neighborhood
stakeholders and organizations. Enclosed as Exhibit A is a matrix detailing that outreach. As a
result of this community outreach, several community benefits have been pledged, in addition to
those mandated by the Planning Code such as the heightened inclusionary housing requirement
in the North of Market Residential SUD, the 80-T-130-T affordable housing payment, and
transportation sustainability fee, the child care fee, and school impact fees:

. We agreed early on to investigate the feasibility of retaining the parking garage
facade and, upon that determination, agreed with the community on the retained
elements design (the original application proposed complete demolition of the
garage). The original project proposal contemplated the demolition of the historic
element.

o We have pledged to provide 2 units (in addition to the 22 on-site inclusionary
units) to Brilliant Corners to facilitate occupancy by their Section 8 voucher
clients. Brilliant Corners will be paying below-market rate rents as determined by
HUD’s Fair Market Rent for San Francisco County.

o We have pledged to set aside 40% of the on-site BMR units as Neighborhood

Resident Preference and up to 20% for Ellis Act or Owner Move-In Evicted
Tenants, per the MOHCD guidelines

33028\13786554.2
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J We have pledged $75,000 in contributions to neighborhood organizations such as
the Tenderloin Thrive Fund and others proposed by coalitions such as Market
Street for the Masses and the Tenderloin Housing Clinic. These funds will be
payable upon the issuance of the first building permit addenda prior to
construction.

o We have pledged to dedicate specific times during the week for the exclusive use
of our ground floor common area space by Tenderloin and other District 6 non-
profit, community groups and organizations. We have also pledged the use of
storage space in our basement for furniture, display equipment, and other supplies
completely free of charge so that these organizations have safe place to store
sensitive and expensive items.

o We have pledged to work with community organizations like the Tenderloin
Museum, Market Street for the Masses and the Tenderloin Housing Clinic to
curate the selection of content that will be placed in the lobby and common areas
to commemorate the historic nature of the original building and the Tenderloin in
general. In addition to what is required by our EIR, we will be placing additional
historical content and references in the form of wallpaper, art pieces and
photographs in our ground floor amenity space, lobby entrance and fitness
facility.

o We have pledged to provide ‘good neighbor’ training for our building operations
staff to educate our staff and residents about how to establish positive
relationships with the community. The ‘good neighbor’ obligation will also be
incorporated into our future residential lease agreements.

o We have pledged to provide a dedicated point of contact during the course of
construction for neighboring SRO’s, CBO’s and other residential buildings whose
members include those individuals sensitive to loud noise or with preexisting
health conditions.

o We have pledged to create an online forum where neighbors can directly post
questions or concerns regarding the project during the course of construction.

o We have pledged to make best efforts to hire local Tenderloin residents as part of
the building management staff, to the extent that Sponsor is retained to manage
the building upon completion.

Your Commission package contains letters of support from Brilliant Corners, the San
Francisco Housing Action Coalition and California YIMBY.

Conclusion. The Project will add 111 new units to the City’s housing supply, including
22 on-site inclusionary units, as well as pay approximately $1.4 million to the City’s Affordable
Housing fund. The Project will also pay significant transportation, child care and school impact

33028\13786554.2
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fees. Finally, the Project has engaged in robust community outreach and enjoys support within
the Tenderloin community. The Historic Preservation Commission and Department staff have
vetted the Project design and are supportive of the final retained elements scheme.

We look forward to the December 10 hearing. Please contact me prior to the hearing if we
can provide any additional information.

Sincerely,

Steven L. Vettel
cc: Samantha Updegrave, Planner
Sandhill O'Farrell, LLC

Brick Architecture and Interiors

Enclosures

33028\13786554.2





550 O'Farrell - Community Outreach Summary

Individual / Entity Name Primary Contact Contact Information Summary of Discussions to Date

Follow-Up Items

Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation Curtis Bradford sbrmbna@gmail.com 8/4: Made |n|tl|al prvlssentatlon to TNDC Land pse Committee on 8/4 to introduce project and solicit initial feedback on project.
sbrmbna@gmail.com Incorporated input into subsequent presentation
Gabrielle Ruiz gruiz@tndc.org 8/10: Formal virtual presentation to TNDC members and residents and fielded several questions from the community

9/10: follow-on presentation scheduled with TNDC

10/14: Follow-on presentation with TNDC / Market Street for the Masses
10/28: Follow-up discussion with MSMC

11/9: Discussion regarding off-site affordable housing acquisitions with MSMC
11/10: Follow-up discussion with MSMC

11/17: Follow-up discussion with MSMC

11/24: Follow-up discussion with MSMC - no further updates on CBA

Tenderloin Housing Clinic Randy Shaw July 2018: Sponsor met with Randy Shaw of THC to discuss the project - primary objective was the preservation of the historic

randy@thclinic.org fagade and gargoyles.

7/30: Sponsor reached out again to THC to discuss the project in more detail

8/21: Sponsor held initial conversation with Pratibha Takkey who is responsible for Community Organization at THC

8/24: Sponsor sent over a copy of the same presentation given to other community groups

10/22: Follow-up meeting scheduled with Tenderloin Housing Clinic to discuss neighborhood benefits

10/22: THC provided Sponsor with community benefits proposal requesting $400,000 in financial contributions.

11/10: Sponsor and THC discussed that the financial contribution request exceeds the capacity of the project. Sponsor offered to
introduce THC to MSMC to coordinate community requests so that a collective proposal can be put forward.

Tenderloin Museum Katie Conry Sponsor has been a supporter and sponsor of the Tenderloin Museum showcases and fundraisers every year since 2018.

kconry@tenderloinmuseum.or;
Sponsor has discussed potential volunteer or participation with Tenderloin Museum activities.

District 6 Community Planners Marvis Phillips 6/18/19: Sponsor and Marvis Phillips exchanged emails on the status of the project. Sponsor had previously requested to be placed

on their June monthly meeting agenda but were unable to present as the project and DEIR was still under review by Planning.
marvisphillips@gmail.com

5/19/20: Sponsor and Marvis discussed the hearing and publication of the DEIR; sponsor sent over a link and hard copy.
8/3/20: Sponsor reached out to Marvis to try and schedule a virtual community meeting. Marvis responded and said they have not yet
figured out logistics to host a virtual meeting and will revert back to us.

Resident Ric Cascio tenore65@aol.com Lives at 631 O'Farrell Street for 33 years
Concern 1: Asking for a 50' setback
Concern 2: When viewed from the sides, no fenestration.

8/3/20: Sponsor reached out via email to Ric Cascio. Sponsor held phone call to discuss his concerns wherein Ric ended the phone
call by hanging up on Sponsor. Over the following 24 hours, inapropriate and uncouth voice mail and emails were sent by Ric to
Sponsor. This exchange was escalated to Planning and to local Community Groups. Sponsor will not be reaching out to Ric further.

Resident Edward Lee tslee_71@yahoo.com Lives at 545 Leavenworth #4 To clarify that this is For Rent product.
Supportive of project due to affordability component, non-luxury pricing. 'Expecting "for sale" project
8/10/20: Sponsor sent follow up email to Edward. There has been no further correspondence.

Resident Mary Ross maryross.illustrator@gmail.com Lives at 612 631 O'Farrell.
Richard Gelernter Concern: Want to save the current fagade of the garage building

8/10/20: Sponsor sent follow up email to Mary Ross and Richard Gelernter. There has been no further correspondence.






Community Member Sue Hestor hestor@earthlink.net Emailed four times in response to public comment for EIR
Email 4 is a duplicate to email 3.
Requested CD version and paper version.

Positive Resource Center Brett Andrews https://presf.org/board-staff, 8/4/20: Sponsor held discussion with Brett on ways we can educate 550 O'Farrell residents about TRC
CEO - Positive Resource
Center

Brilliant Corners David Warren dwarren@brilliantcorners.org - 10/27: Initial conversation with Brilliant Corners to discuss their organization and program, and request to set aside a certain
Housing Specialist number of units within the Project

- 11/13: Brilliant Corners

- 11/20: Sponsor and Brilliant Corners have agreed to work together to provide first right of refusal for units to be made available to
Brilliant Corners clients. This is effectively a form of rent control as Brilliant Corners will pay up to HUD's fair market rent, which is
below market rent.






Exhibit F:

Historic Preservation Commission Comments on Draft EIR

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





June 19, 2020

Ms. Lisa Gibson

Environmental Review Officer

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, 4t Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

Dear Ms. Gibson,

On June 17, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) held a public hearing in
order for the commissioners to provide comments to the San Francisco Planning
Department on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed 550
O’Farrell Street Project (2017-004557ENV). As noted at the hearing, public comment
provided at the June 17, 2020 hearing, will not be responded to in the Responses to
Comments document. After discussion, the HPC arrived at the comments below on the
DEIR:

e HPC members reiterated that this was the first project where a draft of the
alternatives went for review by the full HPC, whereas previously draft alternatives
were only reviewed by the Architectural Review Committee (ARC). The HPC felt
the change in procedure had greatly improved the process by allowing the full HPC
to provide comments earlier during the development of alternatives. This change
in process also allowed commissioners to give feedback on the design of the project
at an earlier phase.

e The HPC found the analysis of historic resources in DEIR to be adequate and
accurate. The HPC concurs with the finding that the proposed project would result
in a significant, unavoidable impact to the identified historic resource.

e The HPC did not have any comments on the Mitigation Measures and found them
to be adequate.

e The HPC agreed that the DEIR analyzed a reasonable and appropriate range of

preservation alternatives to address historic resource impacts.

e The HPC requested that additional information on restoration of the facade be
included in the DEIR’s project description section.
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Proposed project — The HPC expressed support for the proposed project and reiterated the
fact that it was one of the draft alternatives they saw in April 2019. Commissioners wanted
the Planning Commission to know that use of one of the draft alternatives as the proposed
project indicated a significant improvement in the alternatives process. The HPC had the
following comments on the proposed project:

e The HPC stated that bringing the draft alternatives for review earlier on in the EIR
process allowed for them to be studied by the project team much earlier in the
process of review. This saved the project sponsor time and money and ultimately
led to a better project.

e HPC commissioners agreed that use of the retained elements guidelines was
successfully applied to this project.

e Commissioners felt the location of the addition’s massing was appropriate because
it matched the surrounding size and scale and location of other contributing
residential buildings within the Uptown Tenderloin National Register historic
district by aligning with the surrounding street wall.

e Commissioners commented they would like to see further analysis of the existing
building to inform the restoration of the facade, possibly paint analysis to
determine the original finish and color of the building.

e Commissioners also debated the adequacy of the vertical hyphen (along with
definition of the term). While some commissioners expressed a desire to see a
deeper setback, others cautioned against a hyphen that would be set too far back
and make the building look top heavy. Commissioners agreed the design of the
hyphen should be studied more fully as the full-size drawings were developed.

e The HPC expressed full support of the proposed project. The HPC was clear that
they did not support the project variant.

The HPC appreciates the opportunity to participate in review of this environmental
document.

Sincerely, s
]
/ / M ) /)

Aaron Jon Hyland, FATA, Pffg' sident

Historic Preservation QEO ission

Page 2 of 2
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Exhibit G:
Inclusionary Affordable Housing Affidavit

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT






























Exhibit H:
Anti-Discriminatory Housing Affidavit

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT















2020.09.08.3652

2017-004557PR]

Samantha Updegrave

mullane.ahern@sfgov.org

09.08.2020

11.14.2018

11.20.2020
628.652.7322

11.20.2020





Exhibit I:
First-Source Hiring Affidavit

Conditional Use Authorization
Case Number 2017-004557CUA

550 O’Farrell Street
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PLANNING DEPARTMENT










CPC emailed
11/10/2020
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW MEASURES TO FINANCIALLY
SUPPORT LOCAL SMALL BUSINESSES DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Date: Monday, December 07, 2020 3:27:06 PM

Attachments: 12.07.20 Local Business Support.pdf

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

Date: Monday, December 7, 2020 at 3:10 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW
MEASURES TO FINANCIALLY SUPPORT LOCAL SMALL BUSINESSES DURING
THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, December 7, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW MEASURES TO
FINANCIALLY SUPPORT LOCAL SMALL BUSINESSES
DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Following the most recent Stay at Home Order, San Francisco will defer Unified License
Fees, provide up to 81 million in support for operators of Shared Spaces, and release an
additional $3.2 million in zero interest loans for Latino-owned businesses in Latino
communities that have been disproportionately impacted by COVID-19

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced three new measures aimed
at helping local small businesses that have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
especially in light of the new Stay at Home Order that went into effect Sunday, December 6 at
10:00 p.m.

San Francisco will extend the deadlines for businesses to pay their annual 2020 and 2021
Unified License Fees in order to provide more flexibility as a result of the economic impact
caused by the pandemic. The Unified License bill accounts for a large majority of the
licensing fees a business must incur in order to operate. Analysis by the Office of the
Treasurer and Tax Collector shows that 69 percent of businesses that must pay a Unified
License Fee have $2.5 million or less in gross receipts. Additionally, locally owned businesses
that either hold or have applied for a Shared Spaces permit are eligible to receive up to $5,000
in reimbursement from the City, which will help businesses that have been forced to close
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

Following the most recent Stay at Home Order, San Francisco will defer Unified License Fees,
provide up to $1 million in support for operators of Shared Spaces, and release an additional
$3.2 million in zero interest loans for Latino-owned businesses in Latino communities that have
been disproportionately impacted by COVID-19

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced three new measures aimed at
helping local small businesses that have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, especially
in light of the new Stay at Home Order that went into effect Sunday, December 6 at 10:00 p.m.

San Francisco will extend the deadlines for businesses to pay their annual 2020 and 2021 Unified
License Fees in order to provide more flexibility as a result of the economic impact caused by
the pandemic. The Unified License bill accounts for a large majority of the licensing fees a
business must incur in order to operate. Analysis by the Office of the Treasurer and Tax
Collector shows that 69 percent of businesses that must pay a Unified License Fee have

$2.5 million or less in gross receipts. Additionally, locally owned businesses that either hold or
have applied for a Shared Spaces permit are eligible to receive up to $5,000 in reimbursement
from the City, which will help businesses that have been forced to close outdoor operations as a
result of the recent Stay at Home Order and prepare for an eventual reopening. Up to $1 million
in funding comes from the Shared Spaces Equity Grants Program, which prioritizes minority-
owned businesses and businesses that advance the City’s equity goals.

San Francisco is also launching the San Francisco Latino Small Business Fund, which includes
$3.2 million to expand the San Francisco Hardship and Emergency Loan Program (SF HELP)
that will provide zero interest loans of up to $50,000 to approximately 80 small businesses. The
funds are intended to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 on Latino-owned businesses and small
businesses in neighborhoods that serve the Latino community. Since the beginning of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the City has identified nearly $24.2 million in grants and loans for more
than 1,150 local small businesses and their employees.

“We have been focused from the very beginning of this pandemic on supporting our local
businesses because we know the devastating impact it has had on small business owners and
their employees,” said Mayor Breed. “We’re going to continue to roll out programs like these to
help in every way we can, but what is most needed right now is federal support because cities
and counties throughout the country are facing the same large budget deficits that we are. Our
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restaurants, our small businesses, our travel industry—everyone is hurting, and as a country we
should be able to both protect public health and support our businesses and their employees.”

In March 2020, Mayor Breed extended the deadline for businesses to pay their 2020 Unified
License Fee from April 30, 2020 to March 1, 2021. Given the pandemic’s continued impact on
businesses, today Mayor Breed announced the deferral of the Unified License Fee for 2020 will
further extend until October 31, 2021. To provide additional relief and time, the Unified License
Fee for 2021 will also be deferred from March 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021.

These deferrals will give approximately 19,000 businesses an additional seven months to pay
roughly $16 million in fees. Approximately 20% of businesses have not yet paid their 2020
Unified License Fee. For these 3,800 businesses, this represents $2.2 million in fees that they
will now have more time to pay. For businesses that have paid their 2020 Unified License Fee,
they will now have additional time to pay their 2021 fee. San Francisco has waived roughly $3
million in 2020 Unified License Fees and $815,000 in 2021 Unified License Fees for some
entertainment venues and restaurants.

“The pandemic continues to devastate our small businesses and, just as many were reopening
and rehiring staff, our recent COVID spike is forcing them to close yet again,” said Supervisor
Rafael Mandelman. “We must always put public health first, but we should also be doing
everything we can locally to mitigate the financial impacts of our Stay at Home order. These
measures provide some relief to beleaguered businesses and I will keep working with the Mayor
and my colleagues on the Board of Supervisors to provide additional resources wherever we
can.”

“Our small business community is the backbone of our economy, but these local gems have been
among the hardest hit during this difficult time,” said Supervisor Catherine Stefani. “We owe it
to them to provide relief. Deferring fees and providing additional subsidies will be key lifelines
as we continue to combat the virus.”

“We know our small businesses are hurting and measures like these are essential to our small
businesses and to the City’s ongoing economic recovery and cultural vitality. The investments
for our minority and Latino-owned businesses builds upon our equity work while creating further
pathways for our economic recovery,” said Joaquin Torres, Director of the Office of Economic
and Workforce Development. “We know we need more funds. We’re going to continue to
advocate for more funds with our federal partner and will leave no stone unturned in identifying
new opportunities and financial resources to support our small businesses during this extremely
difficult time.”

The San Francisco Latino Small Business Fund is part of the $28.5 million commitment for the
Latino community, which covers a broad range of support directed to focusing on health,
housing, food access, workforce, and small businesses. Latinos make up 50% percent of reported
cases of COVID-19 in San Francisco, despite the demographic making up just 15% of the City’s
population, according to the Department of Public Health. They have been disproportionately
impacted by COVID-19. For Latino-owned businesses, they’re largely operating in industries
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that have taken a hard hit from the pandemic. Based on the latest census data, there were nearly
400,000 U.S. Latino-owned employer firms in 2017, employing 3.4 million people and
generating nearly $500 billion in annual revenue. The lack of cash on hand can result in the loss
of over two million jobs nationally if Latino employer businesses have to permanently close
before the end of the year. According to the Latino Entrepreneurship Initiative Research Program
at Stanford University, only 28% of scaled Latino-owned businesses have a majority of
employees that can work from home compared to 44% among white-owned businesses. Their
survey data also showed that Latino-Owned Businesses had their Paycheck Protection Program
loans approved at nearly half the rate of White-Owned Businesses.

The $3.2 million expansion of SF HELP will focus on private, for-profit low-income to
moderate-income small businesses. The loans can be used to pay for payroll, rent, inventory,
equipment, and other operating expenses businesses have as they re-open and recover. They are
zero interest loans up to $50,000, with a repayment term of up to six years. There are no loan
fees, personal guarantees, or collateral requirements for the borrower.

The Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA) will conduct a lottery to identify the
businesses invited to formally apply for the loan. Priority will be built into the lottery to small
business located in neighborhoods with a large Latino population. Outreach will be conducted in
multiple languages including in Spanish to businesses in partnership with community
organizations that serve the Latino community. Small businesses interested in applying for the
San Francisco Latino Small Business Fund can visit link.oewd.org/latinofund. The deadline to
apply is January 14, 2021. Small businesses may also email for inquiries at
FondoLatinoSF@medasf.org or call 415-612-2014.

While many Shared Spaces locations have been required to close as a result of the surge in
COVID-19 cases locally and across the State, the Shared Spaces Equity Grants Program offers
financial support to reimburse business owners for costs associated with building and operating
Shared Spaces location. This support will also help business owners in the process of opening a
Shared Spaces location in anticipation of future re-openings once this current COVID-19 surge is
better controlled.

Priority for the Shared Spaces Equity Grants is given to locally-owned, minority-owned
businesses that advance the City’s equity goals, including women-owned businesses, immigrant-
owned businesses, legacy businesses, and businesses in established cultural districts or that serve
a largely minority clientele. Applications are now open and there is no deadline to apply. Grants
will be issued on a rolling basis with applicants notified every two weeks about the status of their
applications. Interested businesses can apply at sf.gov/get-help-paying-your-shared-space-

improvements.

HiH
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outdoor operations as a result of the recent Stay at Home Order and prepare for an eventual
reopening. Up to $1 million in funding comes from the Shared Spaces Equity Grants Program,
which prioritizes minority-owned businesses and businesses that advance the City’s equity
goals.

San Francisco is also launching the San Francisco Latino Small Business Fund, which
includes $3.2 million to expand the San Francisco Hardship and Emergency Loan Program
(SF HELP) that will provide zero interest loans of up to $50,000 to approximately 80 small
businesses. The funds are intended to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 on Latino-owned
businesses and small businesses in neighborhoods that serve the Latino community. Since the
beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, the City has identified nearly $24.2 million in grants
and loans for more than 1,150 local small businesses and their employees.

“We have been focused from the very beginning of this pandemic on supporting our local
businesses because we know the devastating impact it has had on small business owners and
their employees,” said Mayor Breed. “We’re going to continue to roll out programs like these
to help in every way we can, but what is most needed right now is federal support because
cities and counties throughout the country are facing the same large budget deficits that we
are. Our restaurants, our small businesses, our travel industry—everyone is hurting, and as a
country we should be able to both protect public health and support our businesses and their
employees.”

In March 2020, Mayor Breed extended the deadline for businesses to pay their 2020 Unified
License Fee from April 30, 2020 to March 1, 2021. Given the pandemic’s continued impact on

businesses, today Mayor Breed announced the deferral of the Unified License Fee for 2020
will further extend until October 31, 2021. To provide additional relief and time, the Unified
License Fee for 2021 will also be deferred from March 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021.

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
measures provide some relief to beleaguered businesses and I will keep working with the
Mayor and my colleagues on the Board of Supervisors to provide additional resources
wherever we can.”

“Our small business community is the backbone of our economy, but these local gems have
been among the hardest hit during this difficult time,” said Supervisor Catherine Stefani. “We
owe it to them to provide relief. Deferring fees and providing additional subsidies will be key
lifelines as we continue to combat the virus.”

“We know our small businesses are hurting and measures like these are essential to our small
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businesses and to the City’s ongoing economic recovery and cultural vitality. The investments
for our minority and Latino-owned businesses builds upon our equity work while creating
further pathways for our economic recovery,” said Joaquin Torres, Director of the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development. “We know we need more funds. We’re going to
continue to advocate for more funds with our federal partner and will leave no stone unturned
in identifying new opportunities and financial resources to support our small businesses during
this extremely difficult time.”

The San Francisco Latino Small Business Fund is part of the $28.5 million commitment for

the Latino community, which covers a broad range of support directed to focusing on health,

housing. food access. workforce, and small businesses. Latinos make up 50% percent of
reported cases of COVID-19 in San Francisco, despite the demographic making up just 15%

of the City’s population, according to the Department of Public Health. They have been
disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. For Latino-owned businesses, they’re largely
operating in industries that have taken a hard hit from the pandemic. Based on the latest
census data, there were nearly 400,000 U.S. Latino-owned employer firms in 2017, employing
3.4 million people and generating nearly $500 billion in annual revenue. The lack of cash on
hand can result in the loss of over two million jobs nationally if Latino employer businesses
have to permanently close before the end of the year. According to the Latino
Entrepreneurship Initiative Research Program at Stanford University, only 28% of scaled
Latino-owned businesses have a majority of employees that can work from home compared to
44% among white-owned businesses. Their survey data also showed that Latino-Owned
Businesses had their Paycheck Protection Program loans approved at nearly half the rate of
White-Owned Businesses.

The $3.2 million expansion of SF HELP will focus on private, for-profit low-income to
moderate-income small businesses. The loans can be used to pay for payroll, rent, inventory,
equipment, and other operating expenses businesses have as they re-open and recover. They
are zero interest loans up to $50,000, with a repayment term of up to six years. There are no
loan fees, personal guarantees, or collateral requirements for the borrower.

The Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA) will conduct a lottery to identify the
businesses invited to formally apply for the loan. Priority will be built into the lottery to small
business located in neighborhoods with a large Latino population. Outreach will be conducted
in multiple languages including in Spanish to businesses in partnership with community
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
financial support to reimburse business owners for costs associated with building and
operating Shared Spaces location. This support will also help business owners in the process
of opening a Shared Spaces location in anticipation of future re-openings once this current
COVID-19 surge is better controlled.

Priority for the Shared Spaces Equity Grants is given to locally-owned, minority-owned
businesses that advance the City’s equity goals, including women-owned businesses,
immigrant-owned businesses, legacy businesses, and businesses in established cultural
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districts or that serve a largely minority clientele. Applications are now open and there is no
deadline to apply. Grants will be issued on a rolling basis with applicants notified every two
weeks about the status of their applications. Interested businesses can apply at sf.gov/get-help-

paying-your-shared-space-improvements.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);
JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)

Subject: CPC Calendars for December 10, 2020

Date: Friday, December 04, 2020 4:06:31 PM

Attachments: 20201210 cal.docx

20201210 cal.pdf
CPC Hearing Results 2020.docx
Advance Calendar - 20201210.xIsx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for December 10, 2020.

Cheers,

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
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Agenda





Remote Hearing

via video and teleconferencing



Thursday, December 10, 2020

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department

49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://sfgovtv.org/planning 

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.




Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





Remote Access to Information and Participation 



In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 



Public Comment call-in: Toll-free number: (415) 655-0001 / Access code:  	146 248 1397



The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.




ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

			Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2019-015984CUA	(A. LINDSAY: (628) 652- 7360)

590 2ND AVENUE – on east side of 2nd Avenue between Anza Street and Balboa Street, Lot 026 of Assessor’s Block 1544 (District 1) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 209.2, to install a new AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility at rooftop consisting of installation of ten (10) panel antennas, and ancillary equipment as part of the AT&T Mobility Telecommunications Network. Antennas and ancillary equipment will be screened within two (2) FRP enclosures. The subject property is located within a RM-2 (Residential-Mixed, Moderate Density) and 40-X Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

[bookmark: _Hlk49433425]Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 19, 2020)

Note: On September 17, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to November 19, 2020 by a vote of +6 -0. On November 19, 2020, without hearing, continued to December 10, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Continuance to January 28, 2021)



2.	2016-012135CUA	(G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)

2214 CAYUGA AVENUE AND 3101 ALEMANY BOULEVARD – between Sickles Avenue and Regent Street; Lots 001 and 034 in Assessor’s Block 7146 (District 11) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 317, and 710 for the demolition of an existing two-story, single family residence and the construction of four new four-story, 40-foot, residential buildings containing a total of seven dwelling units, approximately 15,196 square feet in area, and seven Class 1 bicycle parking spaces within a NC-1 (Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

	Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 12, 2020)

(Proposed for Continuance to February 25, 2021)




B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



3.	2018-009545CUA	(A. LINDSAY: (628) 652-7360)

1-91 EXECUTIVE PARK BOULEVARD – on west side of Executive Park Bl between Alanna Rd and Blanken Ave, Lot 066 of Assessor’s Block 4991 (District 10) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 210.1, and 211.2, to install a new AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility on a new 70’ tall faux-eucalyptus tree consisting of installation of nine (9) panel antennas, and ancillary equipment as part of the AT&T Mobility Telecommunications Network. Ancillary equipment will be screened within FRP paneling enclosure with faux CMU finish at ground level. Three new trees are to be planted around proposed facility to facilitate additional site screening. The subject property is located within a C-2 (Community Business), P (Public) and OS Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



4.	2018-014950DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

492 45TH AVENUE – at the corner of Geary Boulevard; Lot 001D in Assessor’s Block 1491   (District 1) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no. 2018.1022.3827 for the construction of a second story vertical addition to an existing 1-story, single family residence within a RH-1 (Residential House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Take Discretionary Review and Approve as Modified



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



5.	Consideration of Adoption:

· 2021 Hearing Schedule



6.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.







D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



7.	Director’s Announcements



8.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



9.	2020-009054PCA	(V. FLORES: (628) 652-7525)

TEMPORARY USE OF HOTELS AND MOTELS FOR PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING [BF 201218] – Planning and Administrative Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code and Administrative Code to allow certain hotels and motels to be used for Permanent Supportive Housing purposes without thereby abandoning or discontinuing the hotel use; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve

(Continued from Regular hearing on December 3, 2020)



10.	2017-004557ENV	(J. MCKELLAR: (628) 652-7563)

550 O’FARRELL STREET – north side of O’Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) – Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report. The final EIR evaluates a proposed project and a project variant. The proposed project would demolish all but the façade of the existing two-story-over-basement parking garage and construct a 13-story-over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units, 1,300 square feet (sf) of ground-floor retail or residential amenity space, and 156 bicycle parking spaces. The project variant would demolish the existing garage and construct a 13-story-over-basement residential tower with 116 dwelling units, 1,300 sf of ground-floor retail or residential amenity space, and 156 bicycle parking spaces.  The proposed project and project variant do not propose any vehicle parking. The project site is within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1).

Please Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for the draft EIR ended on July 7, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is called during the hearing; however, comments submitted may not be included in the Final EIR. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Certify



11a.	2017-004557ENV	(S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)

550 O’FARRELL STREET – north side of O’Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) – Request for Adoption of CEQA Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations, and a Mitigation and Monitoring Reporting Program under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project would demolish all but the façade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt



11b.	2017-004557CUA	(S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)

550 O’FARRELL STREET – north side of O’Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 253, 263.7, 271, and 303 to allow a structure over 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of street frontage in an RC Zoning District, a structure above the 80-foot base height in the North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1),  and Bulk Limit Exceptions. The project would demolish all but the facade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



11c.	2017-004557VAR	(S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)

550 O’FARRELL STREET – north side of O’Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) – Request for a Variance, pursuant Planning Code Section 305, from the requirements for a Rear Yard (Section 134) and Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140). The project would demolish all but the façade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units.



12.	2020-007023CUA	(G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)

1649 DIVISADERO STREET – between Sutter and Post Streets, Lot 001A in Assessor’s Block 1076 (District 5) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2(a), 303, and 712 for the establishment of a Cannabis Retail Use (d.b.a. “Nicer Co.”) at an approximately 1,270 square-foot tenant space located at the ground floor of an existing two-story, mixed-use building within a NC-3 (Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



13.	2019-013951CUA	(X. LIANG: (628) 652-7316)

224-228 CLARA STREET – north side of Clara Street between 5th and 6th Streets; Lots 062 and 063 in Assessor’s Block 3753 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to demolish a single-family residential building at 228 Clara Street and construct a five-story residential building (measuring approximately 13,265 gross square feet) with nine dwelling units and nine Class 1 bicycle parking spaces at 224 and 228 Clara Streets within a MUR (Mixed Use Residential) Zoning District, SoMa Youth and Family Special Use District, Central SoMa Special Use District, and 45-X Height and Bulk District. The Project also proposes the merger of Lots 062 and 063. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 12, 2020)

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

[bookmark: _GoBack]

14.	2020-006608CUA	(C. FEENEY: (628) 652-7313)

[bookmark: _Hlk55809104]3407 GEARY BOULEVARD – south side of Geary Boulevard between Beaumont Avenue and Stanyan Street, Lot 031 of Assessor’s Block 1085 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 739, to establish an approximately 1,219 square-foot Cannabis Retail Use (d.b.a. CannaClub) within the Geary Boulevard NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



15.	2018-009883DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

573 DIAMOND STREET – between Alvarado and 23rd Streets; Lot 021 in Assessor’s Block 2803 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no. 2019.0829.0257 

for the construction of a 445-square-foot 4th-story vertical addition and a horizontal rear addition to the 2nd and 3rd stories. The project would include approximately 8 feet of excavation below ground surface, resulting in 146 cubic yards of soil disturbance to an existing three-story, single family building within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Take DR and Approve with Modifications



16.	2019-005907DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

1151 WASHINGTON STREET – between Taylor  and Mason Streets; Lot 025 in Assessor’s Block 0213 (District 3) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no. 2019.0419.8530 for the construction of a rear horizontal and fourth story vertical addition  to an existing 3-story, single family residence within a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City
operations are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415)
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may
inspect or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist

Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415)
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisién de Planificacién. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato
para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: ¥ #| 2% 5 &g e . Bups e L an i 258 5 W Bh ek B Rl B i, 55205 (628) 652-7589. & (EHE R & BRAT Z AT 1
/D48 /INREE H B R

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: MoBecTka aHa Komuccum no nnaHnpoBaHuto. 3a NomMoLLbio NepeBoa4YmKa U 3a BcromoraternbHbIM CIyXOBbIM
YCTPOMCTBOM Ha BpeMsl CryLLaHuWii obpallanTecs rno Homepy (628) 652-7589. 3anpockl AOIMKHbI AenaTbCA MUHUMYM 3a 48
YacoB /10 Hayana cryLlaHus.
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Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive
diirectives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.

On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through
the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be
held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly
encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to
commissions.secretary@sfgov.orqg. Visit the SFGovIV website (https./sfqovtv.org/planning) to stream
the live meetings or watch on a local television station.

Public Comment call-in: Toll-free number: (415) 655-0001 / Access code: 146 248 1397

The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage
www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.

As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.
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mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

https://sfgovtv.org/planning

http://www.sfplanning.org/



San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, December 10, 2020

ROLL CALL:

President: Joel Koppel
Vice-President: Kathrin Moore
Commissioners: Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner

A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or
to hear the item on this calendar.

1.

2019-015984CUA (A. LINDSAY: (628) 652- 7360)
590 2Nd AVENUE — on east side of 2"d Avenue between Anza Street and Balboa Street, Lot
026 of Assessor’s Block 1544 (District 1) — Request for a Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 209.2, to install a new AT&T Mobility Macro
Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility at rooftop consisting of installation of ten
(10) panel antennas, and ancillary equipment as part of the AT&T Mobility
Telecommunications Network. Antennas and ancillary equipment will be screened within
two (2) FRP enclosures. The subject property is located within a RM-2 (Residential-Mixed,
Moderate Density) and 40-X Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval
Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative
Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 19, 2020)

Note: On September 17, 2020, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to
November 19, 2020 by a vote of +6 -0. On November 19, 2020, without hearing, continued
to December 10, 2020 by a vote of +7 -0.

(Proposed for Continuance to January 28, 2021)

2016-012135CUA (G.PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)
2214 CAYUGA AVENUE AND 3101 ALEMANY BOULEVARD - between Sickles Avenue and
Regent Street; Lots 001 and 034 in Assessor’s Block 7146 (District 11) — Request for a
Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 317, and 710 for
the demolition of an existing two-story, single family residence and the construction of
four new four-story, 40-foot, residential buildings containing a total of seven dwelling
units, approximately 15,196 square feet in area, and seven Class 1 bicycle parking spaces
within a NC-1 (Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant
to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 12, 2020)

(Proposed for Continuance to February 25, 2021)
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B.

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or
staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and
considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing

3.

2018-009545CUA (A. LINDSAY: (628) 652-7360)
1-91 EXECUTIVE PARK BOULEVARD - on west side of Executive Park Bl between Alanna Rd
and Blanken Ave, Lot 066 of Assessor’s Block 4991 (District 10) — Request for a Conditional
Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 210.1, and 211.2, to install a
new AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility on a new 70’ tall
faux-eucalyptus tree consisting of installation of nine (9) panel antennas, and ancillary
equipment as part of the AT&T Mobility Telecommunications Network. Ancillary
equipment will be screened within FRP paneling enclosure with faux CMU finish at ground
level. Three new trees are to be planted around proposed facility to facilitate additional
site screening. The subject property is located within a C-2 (Community Business), P
(Public) and OS Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code
Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2018-014950DRP (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)
492 45™ AVENUE - at the corner of Geary Boulevard; Lot 001D in Assessor’s Block 1491
(District 1) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no. 2018.1022.3827 for
the construction of a second story vertical addition to an existing 1-story, single family
residence within a RH-1 (Residential House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height
and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Approve as Modified

COMMISSION MATTERS

5.

Consideration of Adoption:
e 2021 Hearing Schedule

Commission Comments/Questions

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Planning Commission.
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D.

DEPARTMENT MATTERS
7. Director's Announcements
8. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic

Preservation Commission
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the
item is reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment
may be moved to the end of the Agenda.

REGULAR CALENDAR

The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal. Please be advised that
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors.

9. 2020-009054PCA (V. FLORES: (628) 652-7525)
TEMPORARY USE OF HOTELS AND MOTELS FOR PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING [BF
201218] - Planning and Administrative Code Amendments — Ordinance amending the
Planning Code and Administrative Code to allow certain hotels and motels to be used for
Permanent Supportive Housing purposes without thereby abandoning or discontinuing
the hotel use; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California
Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the
eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public
necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve
(Continued from Regular hearing on December 3, 2020)

10. 2017-004557ENV (J. MCKELLAR: (628) 652-7563)
550 O’FARRELL STREET — north side of O'Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones
Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor's Block 0318 (District 6) — Certification of the Final
Environmental Impact Report. The final EIR evaluates a proposed project and a project
variant. The proposed project would demolish all but the facade of the existing two-story-
over-basement parking garage and construct a 13-story-over-basement residential tower
with 111 dwelling units, 1,300 square feet (sf) of ground-floor retail or residential amenity
space, and 156 bicycle parking spaces. The project variant would demolish the existing
garage and construct a 13-story-over-basement residential tower with 116 dwelling units,
1,300 sf of ground-floor retail or residential amenity space, and 156 bicycle parking spaces.
The proposed project and project variant do not propose any vehicle parking. The project
site is within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T
Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1).

Please Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for
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11a.

11b.

11c.

12.

the draft EIR ended on July 7, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is
called during the hearing; however, comments submitted may not be included in the Final
EIR.

Preliminary Recommendation: Certify

2017-004557ENV (S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)
550 O'FARRELL STREET — north side of O'Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones
Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) — Request for Adoption of CEQA
Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations, and a Mitigation and Monitoring
Reporting Program under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project
would demolish all but the fagade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a
13-story over-basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4
(Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District,
and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased
utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units.
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt

2017-004557CUA (S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)
550 O’FARRELL STREET - north side of O’Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones
Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor's Block 0318 (District 6) — Request for Conditional Use
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 253, 263.7, 271, and 303 to allow a
structure over 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of street frontage in an RC
Zoning District, a structure above the 80-foot base height in the North of Market
Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1), and Bulk Limit Exceptions. The project would demolish all
but the facade of the existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-
basement residential tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial
High Density) Zoning District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market
Residential SUD (Subarea No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code
Section 207(c)1 and providing on-site inclusionary affordable units. This action constitutes
the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2017-004557VAR (S. UPDEGRAVE: (628) 652-7563)
550 O’FARRELL STREET — north side of O'Farrell Street between Leavenworth and Jones
Streets; Lot 009 in Assessor’s Block 0318 (District 6) — Request for a Variance, pursuant
Planning Code Section 305, from the requirements for a Rear Yard (Section 134) and
Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140). The project would demolish all but the facade of the
existing two-story parking garage and construct a 13-story over-basement residential
tower with 111 dwelling units within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial High Density) Zoning
District, 80-T-130-T Height and Bulk District, and North of Market Residential SUD (Subarea
No. 1). Dwelling unit density is increased utilizing Planning Code Section 207(c)1 and
providing on-site inclusionary affordable units.

2020-007023CUA (G.PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)
1649 DIVISADERO STREET — between Sutter and Post Streets, Lot 001A in Assessor’s Block
1076 (District 5) — Request for a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code
Sections 202.2(a), 303, and 712 for the establishment of a Cannabis Retail Use (d.b.a. “Nicer
Co.”) at an approximately 1,270 square-foot tenant space located at the ground floor of an
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13.

14.

existing two-story, mixed-use building within a NC-3 (Neighborhood Commercial,
Moderate Scale) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes
the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2019-013951CUA (X. LIANG: (628) 652-7316)
224-228 CLARA STREET - north side of Clara Street between 5t and 6th Streets; Lots 062
and 063 in Assessor’s Block 3753 (District 6) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization,
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to demolish a single-family residential
building at 228 Clara Street and construct a five-story residential building (measuring
approximately 13,265 gross square feet) with nine dwelling units and nine Class 1 bicycle
parking spaces at 224 and 228 Clara Streets within a MUR (Mixed Use Residential) Zoning
District, SoMa Youth and Family Special Use District, Central SoMa Special Use District, and
45-X Height and Bulk District. The Project also proposes the merger of Lots 062 and 063.
This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA,
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

(Continued from Regular hearing on November 12, 2020)

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2020-006608CUA (C. FEENEY: (628) 652-7313)
3407 GEARY BOULEVARD - south side of Geary Boulevard between Beaumont Avenue and
Stanyan Street, Lot 031 of Assessor’s Block 1085 (District 1) — Request for Conditional Use
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 739, to establish an
approximately 1,219 square-foot Cannabis Retail Use (d.b.a. CannaClub) within the Geary
Boulevard NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR

The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff;
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project. Please be
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.

15.

2018-009883DRP (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)
573 DIAMOND STREET - between Alvarado and 23'd Streets; Lot 021 in Assessor’s Block
2803 (District 8) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no. 2019.0829.0257

for the construction of a 445-square-foot 4th-story vertical addition and a horizontal rear
addition to the 2" and 3rd stories. The project would include approximately 8 feet of
excavation below ground surface, resulting in 146 cubic yards of soil disturbance to an
existing three-story, single family building within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family)
Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval
Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative
Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Take DR and Approve with Modifications
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16. 2019-005907DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)
1151 WASHINGTON STREET - between Taylor and Mason Streets; Lot 025 in Assessor’s
Block 0213 (District 3) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit no.
2019.0419.8530 for the construction of a rear horizontal and fourth story vertical addition
to an existing 3-story, single family residence within a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, High
Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

ADJOURNMENT
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Hearing Procedures
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year

and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.
¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder

sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases (CU’s, PUD's, 309’s, etc...) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects,
engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers. The intent of the 10
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the
organized opposition. The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted. Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three
(3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened
by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or
continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,

expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4, A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

w
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Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

N T

The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under
Discretionary Review. A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.

Hearing Materials
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages must be
delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14t Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part
of the public record for any public hearing.

Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.

Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.

These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49
South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the business day prior
to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission

hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body

Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals**
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit | CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Development

Building Permit Application (Discretionary | DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Review)

EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ(P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals
Large Project Authorization in Eastern | LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Neighborhoods

Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown | DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals
Residential Districts

Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors

* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission
hearing). Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision
letter.

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.

Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda Page 110f 12




mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org



San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, December 10, 2020

For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of supervisors@sfgov.org.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244.
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the

adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4)
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section
31.16. This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project. Typically, an appeal must be filed
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to
CEQA. For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184. If the Department’s Environmental Review
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.

Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in
accordance with Government Code Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development
referencing the challenged fee or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.

The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.

Proposition F
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use

matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been
resolved. For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda Page 120f 12




mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org

http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447



		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.
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To:           Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:           Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20819

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 729

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



   December 3, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009054PCA

		Temporary Use of Hotels and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing [BF 201218]

		Flores

		Continued to December 10, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 21, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511CUA

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006575CUA

		560 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to January 21, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016388CUA

		1760 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to December 17, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for November 12, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for November 19, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Recovery Strategies Framework

		Small

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20815

		2020-009008PCA

		Light Manufacturing and Wholesale Storage Uses in the 24th Street-Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District [BF 201060]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20816

		2012.0640OFA-2

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20817

		2018-008259SHD

		2030 Polk Street/1580 Pacific Avenue

		Perry

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20818

		2018-008259CUA

		2030 Polk Street/1580 Pacific Avenue

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   November 19, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to December 3, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Continued to December 10, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-009964DRP

		526-530 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2017-009964VAR

		526-530 Lombard Street

		Fahey

		Continued to Variance Hearing December 2, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3929 19th  Street

		Winslow

		Continued to December 17, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to January 21, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20813

		2020-006584CUA

		2765 16th Street

		Botn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20814

		2020-008523CUA

		1465 Donner Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for November 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-014033OTH

		Proposition H - Save Our Small Businesses Initiative

		Hicks

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20810

		2018-014357GPR

		Mission Bay South Redevelopment Plan Amendments

		Snyder

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20811

		2018-014357OFA

		1450 Owens Street

		Snyder

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20812

		2015-015950CUA

		955 Post Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-013808CUA

		4300 17th Street

		Horn

		Continued Indefinitely with direction from the Commission

		+7 -0



		

		2019-013808VAR

		4300 17th Street

		Horn

		ZA Closed the PH and Continued Indefinitely

		







   November 12, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2012.0640OFA-2

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to December 3, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-013951CUA

		224-228 Clara Street

		Liang

		Continued to December 10, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued to December 10, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007450DRP-02

		428 Liberty Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2017-014833PRJ

		469 Stevenson Street

		Asbagh

		None-Informational

		



		

		2014.1036E

		447 Battery Street

		Schuett

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20808

		2019-017837CUA

		1812-1816 Green Street

		Wilborn

		After a Motion to Disapprove was made and seconded, a Motion to Continue to February 11, 2021 failed +3 -4 (Chan, Imperial, Moore, Koppel against); the original Motion to Disapprove was adopted.

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Diamond, Fung against)



		M-20809

		2019-017867CUA

		1566 - 1568 Haight Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff including:

1. Limiting amplified music to 10 pm weeknights and to 2 am weekends (Fri and Sat nights); and

1. To continue working with Staff on sound proofing measures.

		+7 -0



		DRA-727

		2020-000056DRP

		695 Rhode Island Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-728

		2016-012745DRP-04

		311 28th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications as amended to include:

1. Overall reduction in height of three feet;

1. Reduction of four feet in depth of lowest level;

1. Elimination of all rear decks;

1. Reduction in fenestration by 36-inches from the bottom;

1. Retention of an unobstructed side setback; and

1. Increased privacy landscaping between structures.

		+7 -0



		

		2016-012745VAR

		311 28th Street

		Cisneros

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant with similar conditions to those of the CPC.

		









   November 5, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-016388CUA

		1760 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to December 3, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to December 17, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003045CUA

		1600 Ocean Avenue

		Lindsay

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-009487DRP

		811 Valencia Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20804

		2019-015642CUA

		201 2nd Street

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 22, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20805

		2020-003248PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 201008]

		Flores

		Approved as amended to include a reference to the Architectural Review Standards

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20806

		2020-005123CUA

		2675 Mission Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20807

		2020-006148CUA

		2843 Geary Boulevard

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







  October 22, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003248PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 201008]

		Flores

		Continued to November 5, 2020

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-014357GPR

		Mission Bay South Redevelopment Plan Amendments

		Snyder

		Continued to November 19, 2020

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



		

		2020-002440DRP

		56 Scenic Way

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 8, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-002900IMP

		1145 Market Street

		Updegrave

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		M-20801

		2017-011878OFA

		420 23rd Street (Potrero Power Station)

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20802

		2017-011878PHA-02

		420 23rd Street (Potrero Power Station)

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20803

		2014.0734CUA

		1950 Page Street

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		DRA-726

		2019-005728DRP

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-005728VAR

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Winslow

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		







  October 15, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-006148CUA

		2843 Geary Boulevard

		Christensen

		Continued to November 5, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2020-003045CUA

		1600 Ocean Avenue

		Lindsay

		Continued to November 5, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2020-000056DRP

		695 Rhode Island Street

		Winslow

		Continued to November 12, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2020-001942CUA

		1699 Van Ness Avenue

		Lindsay

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued to November 12, 2020

		+6 -0



		M-20797

		2019-022108CUA

		1560 Haight Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20798

		2020-003825CUA

		390 Valencia Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 1, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		M-20799

		2019-017022CUA

		2839 24th Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+6 -0



		M-20800

		2019-016595CUA

		1868 Greenwich Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0







  October 8, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-009964DRP

		[bookmark: _Hlk52800933]526-530 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to November 19, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009964VAR

		526-530 Lombard Street

		Fahey

		ZA Continued to November 19, 2020

		



		

		2019-016047DRP

		1350 Hayes Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+6 -0



		

		2019-016047VAR

		1350 Hayes Street

		May

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20793

		2020-004031CUA

		1301 Stockton Street

		Kirby

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 24, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		M-20794

		2017-007063CUA

		518 Brannan Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20795

		2016-004392OFA

		531 Bryant Street

		Sucre

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+6 -0



		M-20796

		2019-023428CUA

		123-127 Collingwood Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to increase Maximum occupancy to 49, at rear area; and allow programing to 9:00 pm.

		+6 -0



		

		2019-023428VAR

		123-127 Collingwood Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2014.0734CUA

		1950 Page Street

		Woods

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 22, 2020

		+6 -0



		DRA-724

		2019-014214DRP

		457 Mariposa Street

		Christensen

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-725

		2019-012663DRP-02

		375-377 Hearst Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications, and limiting the deck over the lower level to a depth of ten feet and conditioning the remainder to be unoccupiable.

		+6 -0







  October 1, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-004031CUA

		1301 Stockton Street

		Kirby

		Continued to October 8, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		

		2016-003164GPA

		Health Care Services Master Plan

		Nickolopoulos

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		

		2020-002118DRP

		1039 Carolina Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Economic Recovery

		Chion

		None-Informational

		



		R-20792

		2020-008009OTH

		Implementation of Proposition E (“Limits on Officed Development”)

		Teague

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		2019-016388CUA

		1760 OCEAN AVENUE

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 5, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2019-016420CND

		424-434 Francisco Street

		Fahey

		After a motion to approve failed +3 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against) and a motion to continue failed +3 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against) and no alternate motion made; Disapproved

		



		DRA-723

		2019-000265DRP

		757 3rd Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused)







  September 24, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-004392OFA

		531 Bryant Street

		Sucre

		Continued to October 8, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to October 29, 2020

		+6 -0



		M-20784

		2020-000817CUA

		3030 Fillmore Street

		Gordon-Jonckheer

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20785

		2020-001911CND

		764 Cole Street

		Dito

		Approved

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 10, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20786

		2011.1356PCA-02

		Central SoMa Clean-Up

		Snyder

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20787

		2019-000494DNX

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20788

		2019-000494CUA

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2019-000494VAR

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20789

		2011.1300ENX-02

		901 16th Street/1200 17th STREET

		Sucre

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20790

		2011.1300CUA

		901 16th Street/1200 17th STREET

		Sucre

		Approved as amended by Staff, with Conditions as amended to include:

Recognizing the existing project is appropriate, encouraging the Sponsor to continue working with Staff and the community to refine the landscaping, color and design, and to explore activating the garage use after hours, explicitly for non-parking uses.

		+6 -0



		M-20791

		2017-009840CUA

		859-861 Baker Street

		Dito

		Disapproved

		+6 -0



		DRA-721

		2019-022758DRP

		24 Rosewood Drive

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-722

		2017-015039DRP

		350-352 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised with Staff modifications, adding a finding recognizing that the existing four units and proposed ADU will be rent controlled.

		+6 -0







  

   September 17, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-000494DNX

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		Continued to Setpember 24, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2019-000494CUA

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		Continued to Setpember 24, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2019-000494VAR

		555 Howard Street

		Foster

		ZA Continued to Setpember 24, 2020

		



		

		2019-016388CUA

		1760 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to October 1, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2019-017022CUA

		2839 24th Street

		Durandet

		Continued to October 15, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2020-002571CUA

		3140 16th Street

		Feeney

		Continued to October 29, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Continued to Novmeber 19, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		2019-016420CND

		424-434 Francisco Street

		Fahey

		Continued to October 1, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 3, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		2011.1356PCA-02

		Central SOMA Clean-Up

		Snyder

		After a Motion to Approve with Staff Modifications as amended without the Tier B fee and to continue that portion for further study; it was rescinded and the matter was Continued to September 24, 2020.

		+6 -0



		

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 19, 2020.

		+6 -0



		DRA-720

		2019-019671DRP

		1463 43rd Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0







   September 10, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		ZA Continued to October 8, 2020

		



		

		2020-006148CUA

		2843 Geary Boulevard

		Ajello

		Continued to October 15, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued to October 22, 2020

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

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 27, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		Overview of Shared Spaces

		Abad Ocubillo

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		DRA-718

		2019-001613DRP

		2100-2102 Jones Street & 998 Filbert Street

		Chandler

		Took DR and Disapproved

		+4 -2 (Diamond, Fung against)



		DRA-719

		2018-004330DRM

		2440 Bayshore Boulevard

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with a Condition the operator provide a Community Liaison.

		+6 -0







   September 3, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-016388CUA

		1760 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to September 17, 2020

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

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

		Acting ZA Continued to September 17, 2020

		



		

		2011.1356PCA-02

		Central Soma Clean-Up

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



		M-20781

		2019-020048CUA

		524 Howard Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2019-016420CND

		424-434 Francisco Street

		Fahey

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to September 17, 2020

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20782

		2020-000620CUA

		5140 Geary Boulevard

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20783

		2018-015652CUA

		1524 Powell Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions as amended restricting amplified music after 12 am.

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)





  

   August 27, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to September 24, 2020

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



		M-20778

		2019-017421CUA

		227 Church Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 23, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 30, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 



		R-20779

		2020-006126PCA

		Conversion of Certain Limited Restaurants to Restaurants - North Beach

		Merlone

		Approved with Conditions and Staff Modifications including a Finding supporting the amendment Citywide.

		+6 -0 



		M-20780

		2020-004023CUA

		2512 Mission Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 



		DRA-716

		2019-022450DRP-02

		326 Winding Way

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 



		DRA-717

		2016-014777DRP-02

		357 Cumberland Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+5 -1 (Moore against)





  

   July 30, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-001613DRP

		2100-2102 Jones Street & 998 Filbert Street

		Chandler

		Continued to September 10, 2020

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued to September 10, 2020

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements – Air Quality

		Standard Environmental Requirements – Air Quality

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		2019-016420CND

		424-434 Francisco Street

		Fahey

		Continued to September 3, 2020

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		M-20771

		2020-006152GPR

		Mission Bay South Redevelopment Plan Amendments

		Snyder

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Imperial  absent)



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20772

		2018-009487SHD

		811 Valencia Street

		Durandet

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20773

		2019-019722CUA

		916 Kearny Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20774

		2019-022627CUA

		1310 Bacon Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20775

		2018-012576CUA

		1769 Lombard Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include the four additional conditions presented by Staff; subject to Staff reducing the number of dogs outside, with consultation of operator; and limiting outdoor use hours to 8 am – 6 pm.

		+7 -0



		M-20776

		2019-023628AHB

		3601 Lawton Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended to work with staff to improve common corridor on ground floor and 4th floor units (31-33).

		+7 -0



		DRA-713

		2019-007159DRP

		145 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-007159VAR

		145 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		ZA Clsoed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant with Staff Modifications

		



		DRA-714

		2018-011065DRP

		3233 16th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications removing front door and replacing with window.

		+7 -0



		DRA-715

		2019-015999DRP

		246 Eureka Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		R-20777

		2011.1356PCA-02

		Central Soma Clean-Up [BF TBD]

		Snyder

		Initiated and Scheduled a Hearing on or after September 3, 2020

		+7 -0





  

   July 23, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20764

		2020-003177CUA

		621-635 Sansome Street

		Hughen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20765

		2020-001294CUA

		2441 Mission Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20766

		2020-002262CUA

		3200 California Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Diamond  recused)



		M-20767

		2020-002615CUA

		2000 Van Ness Avenue

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 9, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016522CWP

		State Housing Legislation

		Nickolopoulos

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Hazardous Materials Impact Analysis

		Sheyner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-016100ENV

		SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project

		Johnston

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20768

		2018-008397CUA

		2005 17th Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2018-008397VAR

		2005 17th Street

		Durandet

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20769

		2018-012648CUA

		2001 37th Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to reflect:

1. 150 total lighted nights;

2. 20 of 150 may be used by affiliates of the School;

3. Dimming at 8:30 pm; and

4. Off at 9:00 pm.

		+6 -1 (Fung  against)



		DRA-709

		2018-015239DRP

		1222 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-710

		2018-012442DRP

		436 Tehama Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -1 (Moore  against)



		DRA-711

		2019-016947DRP

		624 Moultrie Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-712

		2019-012023DRP

		1856 29th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions:

1. Reduce the height of the roof at the area over the stair landing adjacent to the neighbor’s light well; and 

2. Relocate the skylight to remove the need for a fire protective parapet.

		+7 -0



		M-20770

		2019-021795CUA

		650 Frederick Street

		Chandler

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0





  

   July 16, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-015239DRP

		1222 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to July 23, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-007159DRP

		145 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		Continued to July 30, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-007159VAR

		145 Missouri Street

		Westhoff

		ZA Continued to July 30, 2020

		



		

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Continued to July 23, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000634DRP-02

		876 Elizabeth Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000634VAR

		876 Elizabeth Street

		Winslow

		Asst. ZA Continued to July

		



		

		2018-011031DRP-03

		219-223 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+7 -0



		M-20757

		2019-012206CUA

		1430 Van Ness Avenue

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20758

		2019-021084CUA

		355 Bay Shore Boulevard

		Feeney

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		R-20759

		2020-001411PCA

		100% Affordable Housing and Educator Housing Streamlining Program [Board File No. 191249]

		Merlone

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20760

		2020-003036PCA

		100% Affordable Housing and Educator Housing Streamlining Program [BOARD FILE NO. 200213]

		Merlone

		Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		R-20761

		2020-005179PCA

		Continuation of Use For Certain Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District [BOARD FILE NO. 200421]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2018-004047CWP-02

		Housing Inventory Report and Update on Monitoring Reports

		Ambati

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20762

		2019-014033CUA

		800 Market Street

		Kirby

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20763

		2019-005176CUA

		722 Steiner Street

		Ferguson

		Disapproved

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		DRA-708

		2017-002545DRP-03

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Took DR and Approved as Revised with reference to the Mitigation Measure(s)

		+7 -0





  

   July 9, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-008397CUA

		2005 17th Street

		Durandet

		Continued to July 23, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-008397VAR

		2005 17th Street

		Durandet

		ZA Continued to July 23, 2020

		



		

		2020-001294CUA

		2441 Mission Street

		Christensen

		Continued to July 23, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014214DRP

		457 Mariposa Street

		Christensen

		Continued to August 27, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Continued to July 16, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to August 27, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2017-015039DRP

		350-352 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to September 24, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000507DRP

		3537 23rd Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-705

		2019-016969DRM

		4326-4336 Irving Street

		Weissglass

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20754

		2019-000727CUA

		339 Taraval Street

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 18, 2020 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 25, 2020 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 25, 2020 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20755

		2019-002743CRV

		853 Jamestown Avenue

		Liang

		Adopted Findings as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20756

		2019-000013CUA

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		Disapproved

		+4 -3 (Diamond, Fung, Koppel against)



		

		2019-000013VAR

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Deny

		





  

  June 25, 2020 Closed Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionn

		Adopted a Motion to Assert Attorney-Client Privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Reported No Action Taken and Adopted a Motion to Not Disclose

		+7 -0







    June 25, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2017-013272DRP

		3074 Pacific Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 11, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20750

		2020-003039PCA

		Arts Activities and Social Service or Philanthropic Facilities as Temporary Uses  [Board File No. 200215]

		Merlone

		Approved with Staff Modifications and extending the initial duration to two years with a two year extension.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Mckellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20751

		2018-012065CUA

		5500 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012065VAR

		5500 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Clsoed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20752

		2019-007154CUA

		4333 26th Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-007154VAR

		4333 26th Street

		Horn

		ZA Clsoed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20753

		2019-004110CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Koppel Against)



		

		2019-016969DRM

		4326-4336 Irving Street

		Weissglass

		Adopted a Motion of Intent to Approve with Staff Modificiations; Continued to July 9, 2020.

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016969VAR

		4326-4336 Irving Street

		Weissglass

		ZA Clsoed the PH and took the matter under advisement

		



		DRA-706

		2018-013422DRP

		1926 Divisadero Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-707

		2018-001662DRP

		2476 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications, reducing the overall height of the wall and fence; and directing the Sponsor to continue working with Staff on final materials and landscaping.

		+7 -0





  

  June 18, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-015039DRP

		350-352 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to July 9, 2020

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued to July 30, 2020

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		2019-022295DRP

		600 Indiana Street

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

		Asst. ZA Continued to September 10, 2020

		



		M-20745

		2019-007111CUA

		1400 17th Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		DRA-703

		2019-014433DRP-03

		3640 21st Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 4, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		M-20746

		2014.1441GPR

		Mission Bay South Redevelopment Plan Amendments

		Snyder

		Adopted GP Findings

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		M-20747

		2019-017309CUA

		1700-1702 Lombard Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		M-20748

		2020-001158CUA

		899 Columbus Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		M-20749

		2020-004439CUA

		764 Stanyan Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung  Against; Chan, Johnson Absent)



		DRA-704

		2018-015993DRP-02

		762 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications as amended to reduce the five-foot setback to three-feet.

		+4 -1 (Fung  Against; Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		2019-000634DRP-02

		876 Elizabeth Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 16, 2020 with direction from the Commission.

		+5 -0 (Chan, Johnson Absent)



		

		2019-000634VAR

		876 Elizabeth Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Asst. ZA Continued to July 16, 2020 with direction from the Commission.

		





  

   June 11, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-012065CUA

		5500 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to June 25, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012065VAR

		5500 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Continued to June 25, 2020

		



		

		2019-021084CUA

		355 Bay Shore Boulevard

		Feeney

		Continued to July 16, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011031DRP-03

		219-223 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		Continued to July 16, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-003900DRP

		1526 Masonic Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000013CUA

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		Continued to July 9, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000013VAR

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		ZA Continued to July 9, 2020

		



		

		2018-012648CUA

		2001 37th Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to July 23, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-000528DRP-04

		440 and 446-48 Waller Street  

		Gordon-Jonckheer

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2015-008247VAR

		440 and 446-48 Waller Street  

		Gordon-Jonckheer

		ZA Continued to June 24, 2020

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 28, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20738

		2016-003351CWP

		Resolution Centering the Planning Department’s Work Program and Resource Allocation on Racial and Social Equity

		Chion

		Adopted with Amendments

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Budget Update

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20739

		2010.0515CWP

		Potrero Hope SF Development

		Snyder

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 9, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-20740

		2019-001455CUA

		1750 Wawona Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-001455VAR

		1750 Wawona Street

		Campbell

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20741

		2015-004568ENV

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20742

		2015-004568SHD

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore Against)



		M-20743

		2015-004568DNX

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20744

		2015-004568CUA

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		

		2015-004568VAR

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-700

		2020-000909DRP

		3591 20th Street

		Giacomucci

		Did NOT Take DR, Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		DRA-701

		2017-013959DRP

		178 Seacliff Avenue

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR, Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		DRA-702

		2020-001090DRP

		3627 Ortega Street

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR, Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0





  

  June 4, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-004568ENV

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		Continued to June 11, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

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

		ZA Continued to June 11, 2020

		



		

		2019-000634DRP

		876 Elizabeth Street

		Winslow

		Continued to June 18, 2020

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

		



		M-20736

		2019-017877CUA

		2 Geneva Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 21, 2020 – Regular Planning

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 21, 2020 – Joint Rec and Park

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		2020-002347CWP

		UCSF Comprehensive Parnassus Heights Plan

		Switzky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20737

		2018-015790CUA

		342 22nd Avenue

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		DRA-696

		2019-014211DRP

		667 Mississippi Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions amended by Staff

		+5 -0 (Imperial recused; Johnson Absent)



		DRA-697

		2019-014251DRP-02

		2001 Chestnut Street

		Dito

		Took DR and Approved with a condition for a Community Liaison

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Johnson Absent)



		DRA-698

		2019-020151DRP-02

		486 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		2019-016969DRM

		4326-4336 Irving Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 25, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		2019-016969VAR

		4326-4336 Irving Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to June 25, 2020

		



		DRA-699

		2017-009796DRP

		1088 Howard Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a one-foot separation.

		+6 -0 (Johnson Absent)



		

		2017-009796VAR

		1088 Howard Street

		Winslow

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		





  

  May 28, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20722

		2019-020527CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20723

		2019-020831CUA

		1117 Irving Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20724

		2020-000200CUA

		1240 09th Avenue

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 14, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20725

		2020-003041PCA

		Conditional Use Review and Approval Process

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20726

		2016-014802ENV

		98 Franklin Street

		Alexander

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20727

		2016-014802SHD

		98 Franklin Street

		Alexander

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20728

		2016-014802DNX

		98 Franklin Street

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions including minor corrections and cross-references to comply with the HUB Plan

		+7 -0



		M-20729

		2019-019985CUA

		755 Stanyan Street/670 Kezar Drive

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		M-20730

		2018-007883ENV

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Poling

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20731

		2018-007883ENV

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Adopted Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

		+7 -0



		R-20732

		2018-007883GPA

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as Amended

		+7 -0



		R-20733

		2018-007883PCAMAP

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20734

		2017-016313CWP

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20735

		2018-007883DVA

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016230CWP

		Housing Element 2022 Update

		Haddadan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-004110CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 25, 2020

		+4 -3 (Diamond, Fung, Koppel against)





  

  May 21, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003041PCA

		Conditional Use Review And Approval Process

		Sanchez

		Continued to May 28, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2019-014211DRP

		667 Mississippi Street

		Christensen

		Continued to June 4, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009796DRP

		1088 Howard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to June 4, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009796VAR

		1088 Howard Street

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to June 4, 2020

		



		

		2019-020151DRP-03

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

		Acting ZA Continued to July 9, 2020

		



		

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

		Pollak

		Continued to July 30, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-011214CUA

		9 Apollo Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		M-20703

		2018-016668CUA

		585 Howard Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20704

		2019-013418CUA

		526 Columbus Avenue

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20705

		2020-001384CUA

		1650 Polk Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20706

		2020-003090CUA

		1299 Sanchez Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 7, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		M-20707

		2015-000940ENV, 2017-008051ENV, 2016-014802ENV

		The Hub Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and Hub Housing Sustainability District

		Callagy

		Certified

		+6 -0



		M-20708

		2015-000940ENV

		Market Octavia Area Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Adopted Findings with Corrections noted by Staff

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		R-20709

		2015-000940GPA

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of Amendments to the General Plan

		Langlois

		Approved with Corrections noted by Staff

		+5 -1 (Imperial against)



		R-20710

		2015-000940PCA-01

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of Amendments to the  Planning Code

		Langlois

		Approved with Corrections noted by Staff, as amended to include a recommendation to pursue a nexus study for Community Facility Fees.

		+6 -0



		R-20711

		2015-000940MAP

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of Amendments to the Zoning Map

		Langlois

		Approved with Corrections noted by Staff

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		R-20712

		2015-000940PCA-02

		Hub Housing Sustainability District – Adoption of Amendments to the Business and Tax Regulations Code and the Planning Code

		Langlois

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with Corrections noted by Staff

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		R-20713

		2015-000940CWP-02

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of the Implementation Program

		Langlois

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with Corrections noted by Staff

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		May 21, 2020 Special Joint Hearing Results:



		M-20714

		2017-008051ENV

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0



		R-20715

		2017-008051SHD

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Raised Cumulative Shadow Limit

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against) +6-0, Low recused



		

		2017-008051SHD

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Perez

		Adopted a Recommendation of no adverse impact

		RP: +6-0, Low recused



		M-20716

		2017-008051SHD

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Adopted Shadow Findings

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20717

		2017-008051DNX

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20718

		2017-008051CUA

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20719

		2017-008051OFA

		30 Van Ness Avenue

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		   May 21, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:



		M-20720

		2015-004568ENV

		10 South Van Ness Avenue Mixed-Use Project

		Schuett

		Certified

		+6 -0



		M-20721

		2020-000215CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

A new survey with a legal description of the property, provided to staff and neighbors prior to BPA issuance.

		+6 -0





     

   May 14, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-000528DRP-04

		440-448 Waller Street

		Gordon-Jonckheer

		Continued to June 4, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2018-012648CUA

		2001 37th Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to June 11, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2020-003039PCA

		Arts Activities and Social Service or Philanthropic Facilities as Temporary Uses [Board File No. 200215]

		Merlone

		Continued to June 25, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2015-000940ENV, 2017-008051ENV, 2016-014802ENV

		The HUB Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and HUB Housing Sustainability District

		Callagy

		Continued to May 21, 2020

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

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of Amendments to the Zoning Map –

		Langlois

		Continued to May 21, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2015-000940PCA-02

		Hub Housing Sustainability District – Adoption of Amendments to the Business and Tax Regulations Code and the Planning Code –

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



		M-20701

		2020-001318CUA

		3813 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20702

		2015-002604ENX-02

		667 Folsom Street, 120 Hawthorne Street, 126 Hawthorne Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 30, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		DRA-695

		2018-005918DRP-02

		254 Roosevelt Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0





  

  May 7, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20699

		2019-022072CUA

		855 Brannan Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 23, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20700

		2018-014766CUA

		1043-1045 Clayton Street

		Jimenez

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended, to provide three-foot setbacks from southern property lines for second floor balcony decks.

		+6 -0



		DRA-693

		2015-014170DRP

		804 22nd Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a five-foot reduction in depth at the rear ground level.

		+6 -0



		

DRA-694

		2018-017375DRP-02

		3627 Divisadero Street

		Winslow

		Did Not Take DR, Approved as proposed

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)





  

   April 30, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-014170DRP

		804 22nd Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 7, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2015-000940ENV

		The HUB Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and HUB Housing Sustainability District

		Callagy

		Continued to May 14, 2020

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

		HUB Housing Sustainability District – Adoption of Amendments to the Business and Tax Regulations Code and the Planning Code 

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

		Acting ZA Continued to June 11, 2020

		



		

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



		

		

		Hazardous Materials Management Procedures

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

		



		M-20691

		2019-020999CUA

		150 Waverly Place

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20692

		2020-002490CUA

		333 Valencia Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20693

		2019-021940CUA

		545 Francisco Street

		Hughen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20694

		2019-019628CUA

		1888 Clement Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20695

		2019-021378CUA

		4092 18th Street

		Hughen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		M-20696

		2019-004021CUA

		1331-1335 Grant Avenue

		Hicks

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended, prohibiting any expansion to the adjacent space and no cross-use between operators.

		+6 -0



		M-20697

		2018-008661ENX

		701 Harrison Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended, mandating the Project Sponsor to work with neighborhood organizations to incorporate the Cultural Heritage District into the program of the development.

		+6 -0



		M-20698

		2018-008661OFA

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





  

   April 23, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-009964DRP

		526 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to June 18, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009964VAR

		526 Lombard Street

		Fahey

		Acting ZA Continued to June 18, 2020

		



		

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 9, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20687

		2018-001443MAP

		M-1 and M-2 Rezoning

		Sanchez

		Approved as amended by Staff

		+6 -0



		R-20688

		2020-002487PCA

		Urban Mixed-Use District - Office Uses

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff modifications, including a grandfathering clause establishing the effective date as the date of introduction.

		+6 -0



		R-20689

		2020-003035PCA

		Conditional Use Authorizations Demonstrably Unaffordable Housing [Board File No. 200142]

		Merlone

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+5 -1 (Fung against)



		M-20690

		2019-021215CUA

		3751A 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2020-000215CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Hicks

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 21, 2020

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		DRA-691

		2017-010281DRP-02

		236 El Camino Del Mar

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions:

1. Provide a similar setback on east side of third floor as proposed for the west; and

2. Provide a planted privacy screen no higher than four to five feet.

		+6 -0



		DRA-692

		2018-013511DRP

		350 Liberty Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions, to provide a 13’ setback (increased from 10’).

		+6 -0





  

  April 16, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002487PCA

		Urban Mixed-Use District - Office Uses

		Sanchez

		Continued to April 23, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2019-014214DRP

		457 Mariposa Street

		Christensen

		Continued to April 23, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2020-001318CUA

		3813 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to April 30, 2020

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

		Acting ZA Continued to May 21, 2020

		+6 -0



		R-20682

		2020-002054PCA

		Reauthorization and Extension of Fee Waiver - Legalization of Unauthorized Dwelling Units [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Approved

		+6 -0



		M-20683

		2018-011717CUA

		1369 Sanchez Street

		Cisneros

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended reducing the roof deck 50% and modifying the spiral stair, per Com. Moore.

		+6 -0



		M-20684

		2015-004827ENV

		Alameda Creek Recapture Project

		Kern

		Certified

		+6 -0



		

		2017-014833ENV

		469 Stevenson Street Project

		Delumo

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20685

		2018-011991CUA

		93-97 Leland Avenue

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Adding a finding related to rent stabilization and existing tenant option to re-occupy;

2.  Recognizing ground floor flexibility of retail or ADU or expansion of existing residential units; and 

3. Compliance with ground floor design guidelines.

		+6 -0



		M-20686

		2016-004478CUA

		589 Texas Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended allowing a third unit, by adding an ADU.

		+6 -0







  April 9, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2016-008561CWP

		Housing Affordability Strategies

		Pappas

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



		M-20678

		2018-006299CUA

		378 8th Avenue

		Ajello

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 27, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		2018-007883CWP

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

M-20679

		2018-007883GPA

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Hong

		Initiated and Scheduled a Hearing on or after April 30, 2020

		+6 -0



		M-20680

		2016-006860IKA

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Flores

		Approved

		+6 -0



		





M-20681

		2018-011441CUA

		1846 Grove Street

		Dito

		As amended to include a Fire Safety Condition, for any significant change to return to the CPC.

		+6 -0



		

		2018-011441VAR

		1846 Grove Street

		Dito

		Acting ZA, Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2018-011717CUA

		1369 Sanchez Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 16, 2020

		+6 -0



		

		2017-015039DRP

		350-352 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to April 16, 2020

		+6 -0







  April 2, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004582CUA

		2817 Pine Street

		Ajello

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-006860IKA

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to April 9, 2020

		



		

		2015-000940E

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

		The HUB Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, And HUB Housing Sustainability District

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

		







March 26, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002243DRP

		439 Hill Street

		Winslow

		WITHDRAWN

		



		

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

		







March 19, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-020999CUA

		150 Waverly Place

		Lindsay

		Without hearing, continued to March 26, 2020

		



		

		2018-001443MAP

		M-1 And M-2 Rezoning

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

		







  March 12, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-000940GPA

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment – Adoption of Amendments to the General Plan

		Langlois

		Without hearing, continued to April 2, 2020

		



		

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

		Without hearing, continued to April 23, 2020

		



		

		2017-009964VAR

		526 Lombard Street

		Fahey

		Without hearing, continued to April 23, 2020

		



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Without hearing, continued to May 7, 2020

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 27, 2020

		Ionin

		Without hearing, continued to March 19, 2020

		



		

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

		







March 5, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2019-017837PRJ

		1812-1816 Green Street

		Wilborn

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 



		

		2015-004109CUA-02

		333 12th Street

		Jardines

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Hazardous Materials Management Procedures

		Sheyner

		Continued to March 19,2020

		+6 -0 



		

		2019-000013CUA

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		Continued to April 30, 2020

		+6 -0 



		

		2019-000013VAR

		552-554 Hill Street

		Campbell

		ZA Continued to April 30, 2020

		



		

		2018-002825DRP

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-002825VAR

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to March 25, 2020

		



		M-20675

		2019-015579CUA

		99 Missouri Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 



		M-20676

		2019-022530CUA

		2 West Portal Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 20, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		49 South Van Ness Avenue – Permit Center Project

		Whitehouse/ Silva

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-012576CUA

		1769 Lombard Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing PC; Continued to April 23, 2020 for the Sponsor to adhere to original conditions of approval.

		+6 -0



		DRA-689

		2019-013012DRP-02

		621 11th Avenue

		               Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-690

		2017-007931DRP-02

		2630 Divisadero Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications:

1. Reduce the roof deck as diagramed by Staff; and 

2. Notch the third floor as recommended by Staff.

		+6 -0







February 27, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Conditions of Approval

		Flores

		Continued to March 19,2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		

		2018-002825DRP

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 5, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-002825VAR

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to March 5, 2020

		



		

		2018-014949DRP

		4428 23rd Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 13, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20670

		2019-023636CUA

		888 Post Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions as Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20671

		2017-003559ENV

		3700 California Street

		Poling

		Certified

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20677

		2017-003559ENV

		3700 California Street

		May

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20672

		2017-003559CUA

		3700 California Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20673

		2017-002964CUA

		1714 Grant Avenue

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20674

		2019-014842CUA

		1905 Union Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-688

		2017-012887DRP

		265 Oak Street

		Winslow

		No DR Approved as proposed

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Richards absent)



		

		2017-012887VAR

		265 Oak Street

		Winslow

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2017-010670DRP

		421 Walnut Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		







February 20, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to April 2, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-000503DRP-03

		2452 Green Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-020682CUA

		2087 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20659

		2019-004211CUA

		3859 24th Street

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 6, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20660

		2020-000083PCA

		Ocean Avenue Lot Mergers, Neighborhood Notice and Zoning Controls

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications as amended to include flexible retail and having considered notification.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20661

		2020-000084PCAMAP

		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning Update

		Tong

		Approved recommending consideration for the Bayview Plaza site.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20662

		2020-000585PCAMAP

		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning Cannabis Restricted Use District

		Tong

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20663

		2007.0168CUA-02

		Hunters View Hope SF Development Project

		Snyder

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20664

		2007.0168SHD-03

		Hunters View Hope SF Development Project

		Snyder

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20665

		2012.1384ENX

		One Vassar

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions with corrections submitted by Staff

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20666

		2012.1384OFA

		One Vassar

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions with corrections submitted by Staff

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20667

		2012.1384CUA

		One Vassar

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions with corrections submitted by Staff

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2012.1384VAR

		One Vassar

		Jardines

		ZA closed public comment and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2009.3461CWP

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20668

		2017-005154CUA

		1300 Columbus Avenue

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20669

		2019-014039CUA

		1735 Polk Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions to include a prohibition of on-site consumption (C license).

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		DRA-685

		2018-010655DRP-03

		2169 26th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications to include:

1. Match the lightwell by 75%; and

2. No roof deck on front unoccupied portion.

		+5 -1 (Koppel against; Richards absent)



		DRA-686

		2019-000650DRP-02

		617 Sanchez Street

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as proposed

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Richards absent)



		DRA-687

		2018-007763DRP-05

		66 Mountain Spring Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications to include:

1. Eliminate west property line windows at the upper two floors;

2. Notch the building on the northwest side at the upper two floors; and

3. Reduce the roof deck (ten feet from side walls and an additional five feet from the front).

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







February 13, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004211CUA

		3829 24th Street

		Fahey

		Continued to February 20, 2020

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

		Continued to March 12, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20650

		2019-020852CUA

		1100 Taraval Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 30, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20651

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20652

		2018-001443PCAMAP

		M-1 And M-2 Rezoning

		Sánchez

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after March 12, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20653

		2015-000940GPA

		Market and Octavia Area Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after March 12, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Richards absent)



		R-20654

		2015-000940PCA

		Market and Octavia Area Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after March 12, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Richards absent)



		R-20655

		2015-000940PCA

		Market and Octavia Area Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after March 12, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Richards absent)



		R-20656

		2015-000940MAP

		Market and Octavia Area Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after March 12, 2020

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Richards absent)



		M-20657

		2018-011249CUA

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20658

		2019-015067CUA

		968 Valencia Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-014251DRP-02

		2001 Chestnut Street

		Dito

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 12, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-684

		2018-007012DRP

		134 Hearst Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications:

1. Work with staff on creating the rear most portion of the ADU habitable; and

2. Provide a three-foot setback on the east side.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







February 6, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-001455CUA

		1750 Wawona Street

		Campbell

		Continued to March 5, 2020

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued to March 12, 2020

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-011717CUA

		1369 Sanchez Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to March 19, 2020

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-006446CUA

		428 27th Street

		Pantoja

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-011031DRP-03

		219-223 Missouri Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 19, 2020

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20647

		2019-016911CUA

		855 Brannan Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 23, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20648

		2014-001272DVA-02

		Pier 70 Mixed Use Development

		Christensen

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20649

		2018-013139CUA

		271 Granada Avenue

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-014039CUA

		1735 Polk Street

		Hicks

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to February 20, 2020 with direction from the Commission.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-682

		2019-014893DRP-02

		152 Geary Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions, including an update presentation one-year from date of operation.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-014211DRP

		667 Mississippi Street

		Christensen

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 19, 2020 with direction from the Commission.

		+4 -1 (Koppel against; Richards absent)



		DRA-683

		2018-011022DRP

		2651 Octavia Street

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR and Approved

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)







January 30, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-010655DRP-03

		2169 26th Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to February 20, 2020

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3931 19th Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2015-004109CUA-02

		333 12th Street

		Jardines

		Continued to February 13, 2020

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20629

		2019-013168CUA

		153 Kearny Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20630

		2019-017349CUA

		2266 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20631

		2019-017082CUA

		1610 Post Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20632

		2019-006316CUA

		645 Irving Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20633

		2019-020940PCA

		Residential Occupancy – Intermediate Length Occupancy

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications as amended to include excluding Non-profits, 501(c)3, and C4 organizations to the Planning Code Amendment for clarity.

		+4 -0 (Diamond recused; Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20634

		2019-017311CND

		901-911 Union Street

		Fahey

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20635

		2017-011878ENV

		Potrero Power Station

		Schuett

		Certified

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20636

		2017-011878ENV

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Adopted Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20637

		2017-011878GPA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20638

		2017-011878PCA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Approved as Amended

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20639

		2017-011878MAP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Approved as Amended

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20640

		2017-011878DVA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Approved as Amended

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20641

		2013.0689CUA

		2 Henry Adams Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20642

		2013.1593B

		2 Henry Adams Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2012.1384

		One Vassar Avenue

		Jardines

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20643

		2018-011904CUA

		1420 Taraval Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include an overall height reduction of two and a half feet (six inches from each residential level and one-foot from the commercial).

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20644

		2018-015058CUA

		2555 Diamond Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended for Staff and Sponsor to work with BUF regarding preserving the street tree.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20645

		2019-016568CUA

		2255 Judah Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended and corrected.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		M-20646

		2019-001694CUA

		1500 Mission Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions as amended with conditions volunteered by the Sponsor.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		DRA-680

		2018-014127DRP

		2643 31st Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications:

1. Reduce the mass at the rear; and

2. Review of the parapet at the front

with guidance from Staff.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)



		DRA-681

		2019-013041DRP

		41 Kronquist Court

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications:

1. Relocate side stair to the rear; and 

2. Provide a privacy planter outside the railing.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson, Richards absent)







January 23, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-004109CUA-02

		333 12th Street

		Jardines

		Continued to January 30, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-017311CND

		901 Union Street

		Fahey

		Continued to January 30, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-002825DRP

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 27, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-002825VAR

		780 Kansas Street

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to February 27, 2020

		



		

		2019-000650DRP-02

		617 Sanchez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 20, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20624

		2019-016849CND

		1630 Clay Street

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Diamond, Moore recused; Richards absent)



		M-20625

		2019-006042CUA

		1560 Wallace Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 9, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as amended

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20626

		2019-017957PCA

		Geary-Masonic Special Use District [BF 191002]

		Flores

		Approved as proposed, encouraging the Supervisor to pursue additional legislation to earmark the fees within the District or immediate vicinity.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-011214CUA

		9 Apollo Street

		Kwiatkowska

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 2, 2020, with direction from the CPC.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20627

		2019-015062CUA

		500 Laguna Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as amended to require a new hearing for on-site consumption.

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Richards absent)



		M-20628

		2019-016523CUA

		313 Ivy Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-679

		2019-005361DRM

		49 Kearny Street

		Hicks

		No DR, Approved as proposed

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-003900DRP

		1526 Masonic Avenue

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 5, 2020, with direction from the CPC.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 16, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-002124CUA

		54 04th Street

		Alexander

		Continued to February 6, 2020

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



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President

Moore - Vice

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20621

		2009.0159DNX-02

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20622

		2009.0159CUA-02

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2019-022891VAR

		1540 Market Street (aka “One Oak”)

		Perry

		After being pulled off Consent; ZA Closed public comment and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2019-020940PCA

		Residential Occupancy – Intermediate Length Occupancy

		Sanchez

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to January 30, 2020

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Richards absent)



		M-20623

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Conditions of Approval

		Bintliff

		Initiated and scheduled a hearing on or after February 27, 2020

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003614OTH

		Office of Cannabis

		Christensen

		None - Informational

		



		

		1996.0016CWP

		Commerce and Industry Inventory 2018

		Qi

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-001694CUA

		1500 Mission Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to January 30, 2020

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		DRA-677

		2018-010941DRP

		2028-2030 Leavenworth Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-010941VAR

		2028-2030 Leavenworth Street

		Winslow

		ZA Closed public comment and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-678

		2019-005400DRP-02

		166 Parker Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications and to continue working with Staff on roof deck designs to mitigate privacy impacts.

		+4 -0 (Diamond recused; Johnson, Richards absent)







January 9, 2020 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0689CUA

		2 Henry Adams

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

		



		M-20609

		2019-014257CUA

		401 Potrero Avenue

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 12, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 19, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 19, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20610

		2019-012131CUA

		1099 Dolores Street

		Campbell

		After being pulled off Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20611

		2019-022569PCAMAP

		Establishing Geary Blvd Neighborhood Commercial District [Board File No. 191260]

		Merlone

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Richards absent)



		R-20612

		2019-022569PCAMAP

		Establishing Remaining Eleven Named Neighborhood Commercial Districts [Board File No. 191260]

		Merlone

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-023145CWP

		Sustainable City Framework

		Fisher

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-004827ENV

		SFPUC Alameda Creek Recapture Project

		Kern

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20613

		2016-013312GPA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20614

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20615

		2016-013312SHD

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		M-20616

		2016-013312DNX

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20617

		2016-013312OFA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20618

		2016-013312CUA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20619

		2019-020070CUA

		2100 Market Street

		Horn

		Approved with standard Conditions and findings read into the record.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20620

		2017-002545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Upheld PMND

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		

		2017-002545DRP-03

		2417 Green Street

		May

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 16, 2020 with direction:

1. Redesign with sensitivity to the adjacent historic resource;

2. Limit excavation to the extent that the additional parking and ADU may be eliminated; and 

3. Adhere to the Cow Hollow Design Guidelines.

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003023DRP-02

		2727 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-676

		2017-014666DRP

		743 Vermont Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Melgar, Richards absent)
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				December 10, 2020 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-015984CUA		590 2nd Ave				fr: 9/17; 11/19		Lindsay

						AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility		to: 1/28

		2016-012135CUA		2214 Cayuga Ave				fr: 9/10; 10/15; 11/12		Pantoja

						demolition of existing SFH and construction of four new residential buildings, 7 dus		to: 2/25

		2018-009545CUA		1-91 Executive Park Blvd				CONSENT		Lindsay

						AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility

		2018-014950DRP		492 45th Avenue				CONSENT		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				2021 Hearing Schedule				Commission Affairs		Ionin

						Adoption

		2020-009054PCA		Allowing Temporary use of Hotels and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2017-004557PRJ		550 O'Farrell Street 						Updegrave

						Conditional Use and Final EIR

		2019-013951CUA		224-228 Clara Street				fr: 11/12		Liang

						Residential demolision and new construction of 9 units

		2020-006608CUA		3407 Geary Blvd						Feeney

						Cannabis retail sales within Geary Blvd NCD. No on-site consumption.

		2020-007023CUA		1649 Divisadero St						Pantoja

						Cannabis Retail

		2019-005907DRP-02		1151 Washington Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-009883DRP		573 Diamond Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 17, 2020 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-006165CUAVAR		292 Eureka Street				to: Indefinite		Cisneros

						317 demolition, rear addition, addition of second unit

		2020-002347CWP		UCSF Parnassus MOU						Switzky

						Informational

		2019-020938CUA		1 Montgomery Street						Vimr

						change in use from retail to office at the ground floor and basement level

		2019-021182CUA		478-27th Ave & 6210 Geary Blvd						Woods

						Demo SFD; 5-unit senior housing at 27th Ave, and 2-story parking structure at 6210 Geary

		2020-003003CUA		1455 &1459 Underwood						Wu

						Lot split to create two substandard lots and construct two single-family dwelling units

		2018-014795ENX		1560 Folsom Street						Christensen

						New construction of 85’ tall, 244 unit residential building

		2019-016388CUA 		1760 Ocean Avenue				fr: 5/7; 6/25; 7/23; 9/3; 9/17; 10/1; 11/5; 12/3		Horn

						New health service (Dialysis Center)

		2013.0846DRP		140-142 Jasper Place				fr: 11/5		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-000302DRP		460 Vallejo Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-008598DRP		3340-3342 Geary Boulevard						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 24, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				December 31, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				January 7, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-005945CUA		2265 McKinnon Ave				CONSENT		Feeney

						CUA for Volatile Chemical Storage

		2020-008417CWP		Impacts to Neighborhood Life						Small

						Informational

		2013.1535CUA-02		450-474 O'Farrell, 532 Jones						Boudreaux

						CUA - Amends original project

		2020-001286CUA		576 27th Ave						Dito

						demo SFD and construct 2FD

		2019-014461CUA		1324-1326 Powell Street						Updegrave

						new 6-story building with ground floor commercial, 17 residential dwelling units

		2020-007488CUA		1095 Columbus Ave						Feeney

						Cannabis Retail CUA within a vacant retail store front, does not include a consumption lounge

		2020-007461CUA		1057 Howard Street						Christensen

						New cannabis retailer

		2018-017283DRP		476 Lombard Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-011977DRP-02		3145-3147 Jackson Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 14, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-009361CUA		801 Phelps Street 				CONSENT		Liang

						Lot subdivision in PDR Districts

		2007.0604		1145 Mission Street				fr: 6/11; 7/9; 8/27; 11/19		Hoagland

						New 25 DU building

		2018-015815AHB		1055 Texas St						Liang

						New construction of 25 units under HOME-SF

		2015-009955CUA		1525 Pine Street						Updegrave

						Demo and new construction of an 8-story mixed-use building

		2019-014316CUA		2243-2247 Mission St.						Westhoff

						non-residential use will exceed 6,000 square feet, and outdoor activity area.

		2019-006959CUA		656 Andover Street						Durandet

						Removal of an unauthorized dwelling unit

		2019-020049CUA		1201 Sutter Street						Guy

						Conditional Use Authorization to establish a Restaurant

		2017-013728CRVDRP		1021 Valencia Street				fr: 10/29		Christensen

						State Density Bonus to permit new 24 unit building

		2019-012567DRP		36 Delano Av						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-011977DRP		3145-3147 Jackson Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 21, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-010132CUA		150 7th Street				CB3P		Christensen

						Change of use to Social Service / Philanthropic Facility

		2020-008417CWP		Small Business Recovery						Small

						Informational

		2020-006803PCA		Code Corrections 2020						Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment; Initiation Hearing

		2019-022661CUA		628 Shotwell Street				fr: 11/19		Feeney

						Residential Care Facility to residential

		2018-015786CUA		2750 Geary Boulevard						Dito

						use size greater than 6k square feet and expansion of a building on a lot greater than 10k square feet

		2016-008743CUAVAR		446-448 Ralston Avenue						Hicks

						demo, new construction to create 2 homes, on two lots, each with ADUs

		2019-018013CUA		2027 20th Ave						Pantoja

						demolition of an existing SFH and construction of new SFH with ADU

		2020-006575CUA		560 Valencia Street				fr: 12/3		Christensen

						new cannabis retailer

		2020-002743DRP		1555 Oak Street				fr: 11/19; 12/3		Winslow

						three new ADUs to an existing 4-story 12-unit residential building

		2019-021369DRP		468 Jersey Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-010342DRP		3543 Pierce Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 28, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-009163CUA		77 Geary Street						Guy

						establish office uses at third floor

		2020-006948CUA		587 Castro Street						Cisneros

						Change of use to real estate services office (service, retail professional)

		2018-016808ENX		321 Florida Street						Christensen 

						State Density Bonus new construction of 10-story, 169 unit mixed use building

		2019-015984CUA		590 2nd Ave				fr: 9/17; 11/19; 12/10		Lindsay

						AT&T Mobility Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility

		2020-010373DRP		330 Rutledge Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-006863DRP		1263 - 1265 Clay Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 4, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-008417CWP		Changing Nature of Work						Small

						Informational

		2019-021010CUA		717 California Street				fr: 9/3; 9/17; 11/19		Foster

						CUA to establish non-retail use + use size

		2020-001229DRP		73 Fountain Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011022DRP		2651-2653 Octavia Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 11, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-008388CUA		235 Clement Street						Christensen 

						Cannabis Retail

		2020-006747CUA		3109 Fillmore Street						Christensen 

						Cannabis Retail

				February 18, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				February 25, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2020-006803PCA		Code Corrections 2020						Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment; Adoption Hearing

		2016-012135CUA		2214 Cayuga Ave				fr: 9/10; 10/15; 11/12; 12/10		Pantoja

						demolition of existing SFH and construction of four new residential buildings, 7 dus

		2013.0614ENX-02		600 South Van Ness						Christensen

						Change in Section 415 compliance from on-site to fee

		2018-012222CUA		1385 Carroll Avenue						Christensen

						Industrial Agriculture (cannabis cultivation)

				March 4, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2013.0511CUADNX		1125 Market St				fr: 9/10; 10/22; 12/3		Alexander

						TBD

				March 11, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				March 18, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				March 25, 2021

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE ***SAN FRANCISCO TO JOIN BAY AREA COUNTIES TO PREEMPTIVELY ADOPT
CALIFORNIA'S REGIONAL STAY AT HOME ORDER IN AN EFFORT TO CONTAIN COVID-19 SURGE

Date: Friday, December 04, 2020 1:26:59 PM

Attachments: 12.4.20 COVID-19 Update.pdf

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

Date: Friday, December 4, 2020 at 1:26 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE ***SAN FRANCISCO TO JOIN BAY AREA COUNTIES
TO PREEMPTIVELY ADOPT CALIFORNIA’S REGIONAL STAY AT HOME ORDER IN
AN EFFORT TO CONTAIN COVID-19 SURGE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, December 4, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

##% PRESS RELEASE ***

SAN FRANCISCO TO JOIN BAY AREA COUNTIES TO
PREEMPTIVELY ADOPT CALIFORNIA’S REGIONAL STAY
AT HOME ORDER IN AN EFFORT TO CONTAIN COVID-19

SURGE

Due to the aggressive increase in COVID-19 cases and continuing rise in hospitalizations
across the city and region, Bay Area counties will voluntarily implement the State’s Regional
Stay at Home order to significantly reduce gatherings and additional activities in an effort to

stabilize COVID-19 cases and preserve region-wide hospital capacity.

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced San Francisco will join counties across the Bay Area to impose significant
restrictions across the region in an effort to mitigate the current surge in COVID-19 cases. The
City’s case rate and hospitalizations continue to increase unabated since late October and are
now prompting San Francisco to take further action.

San Francisco and the other Bay Area Counties are opting into the Regional Stay at Home

Order that Governor Newsom announced Thursday, December 3™ for regions with less than
15% capacity in ICU beds. Although San Francisco and the Bay Area have not yet met that
threshold, the City in partnership with Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Santa Clara and City of
Berkeley, is preemptively implementing these restrictions in an effort to flatten the curve of


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:dempress@sfgov.org

LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, December 4, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***

SAN FRANCISCO TO JOIN BAY AREA COUNTIES TO
PREEMPTIVELY ADOPT CALIFORNIA’S REGIONAL STAY
AT HOME ORDER IN AN EFFORT TO CONTAIN COVID-19

SURGE

Due to the aggressive increase in COVID-19 cases and continuing rise in hospitalizations across
the city and region, Bay Area counties will voluntarily implement the State’s Regional Stay at
Home order to significantly reduce gatherings and additional activities in an effort to stabilize
COVID-19 cases and preserve region-wide hospital capacity.

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today
announced San Francisco will join counties across the Bay Area to impose significant
restrictions across the region in an effort to mitigate the current surge in COVID-19 cases. The
City’s case rate and hospitalizations continue to increase unabated since late October and are
now prompting San Francisco to take further action.

San Francisco and the other Bay Area Counties are opting into the Regional Stay at Home Order
that Governor Newsom announced Thursday, December 3™ for regions with less than 15%
capacity in ICU beds. Although San Francisco and the Bay Area have not yet met that threshold,
the City in partnership with Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Santa Clara and City of Berkeley, is
preemptively implementing these restrictions in an effort to flatten the curve of COVID-19 cases,
which continue to surge, and prevent hospitals from being overrun across the region.

As of 10 p.m. on Sunday, December 6, San Francisco will close all personal services, outdoor
dining, public outdoor playgrounds, outdoor museums, zoos and aquariums, drive-in theaters,
and open-air tour busses and boats. Additionally, San Francisco will halt indoor limited personal
training in gyms and limit outdoor gyms and outdoor fitness classes to a maximum group size of
12 people at a time, including instructors and participants. Low contact retail such as pet
grooming, electronics or shoe repair services, may only operate in a curbside drop-off context.
All other retail, including grocery stores must reduce capacity to 20%, and all indoor businesses
that are open to the public, such as retail stores, must create a metering system to manage and
enforce indoor customer capacity. This metering system must be in place no later 10 p.m. on
Sunday December 6, when other amended order becomes operative.

Hotels may remain open for essential workers and critical infrastructure support, including
isolation and quarantine. Out of town visitors who are not essential workers or here for critical
infrastructure support must stay in the hotel for the full amount of time required to quarantine.
Real Estate viewings must take place virtually. The City will limit any outdoor gatherings to
members of the same household up to 12 people.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

“Given the steep increase in COVID-19 cases in San Francisco, we must do whatever is
necessary in order to get the virus under control,” said Mayor Breed. “This is about protecting
people’s lives. We see how quickly it moves and how devastating the effects. We need to do
everything we can to prevent our hospital system from becoming overwhelmed and to save lives.
We know that the faster we flatten the curve, the less time it takes us to move out of the danger
zone. We are taking these actions now in order to contain the spread in our communities, and I
urge everyone to take this very seriously.”

San Francisco, along with California and the United Sates, is experiencing a surge in COVID-19
more aggressive than what the City has experienced to date. Local COVID-19 cases have
quadrupled during the last month. San Francisco is currently averaging 142 new COVID-19
positive cases per day compared to the 34 per day that it averaged in late October. Moreover, the
City currently has approximately 900 COVID-19 cases diagnosed per week and hospitalizations
have tripled over the last month. As a result, the City’s hospital capacity will be under
considerable stress. At its current rate of COVID hospitalizations, the City would run out of
hospital beds by December 26. Unlike in previous surges, the rest of the State’s hospital capacity
is strained and reaching patient limits and it is unlikely there will be additional hospital capacity
in other counties if San Francisco’s is compromised.

"We are in our worst surge yet of COVID-19. It is stressing health care systems across the state
of California and taxing our health care workers," said Dr. Colfax. "We need urgent intervention
now if we want to be able to care for the sick in mid-to-late December. We do not want your
parent, your spouse, your child, your grandparent or any loved one to be in need of help and our
hospitals too overwhelmed to properly care for them."

San Francisco’s Health Order is expected to be in effect through January 4, 2021. If, after a week
of this order being in effect, the City’s indicators show a consistent reduction in case rates and
hospitalizations for three additional weeks (for a total of 4 weeks) and ICU capacity is holding at
25% availability or more, San Francisco will lift this health order. If however, the Bay Area
continues on its current trajectory and reaches the 15% ICU capacity threshold, it would trigger
the State’s Regional Stay at Home Order and mandate that the region continue these restrictions
for at least 3 weeks from that time and until ICU capacity exceeds 15% and forward-looking
indicators would allow easing the restrictions. In either scenario, once this order is lifted, San
Francisco would be returned to the State’s blueprint tier system.

In addition to the measures the City is taking in order to reduce close interactions by people from
different households, the City is increasing its focus on compliance and enforcement activities.
In an effort to promote responsible behavior in higher risk contexts, such as high traffic areas in
neighborhoods experiencing increasing case rates, the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development has funded the Creative Corps, a pilot program to deploy community health
ambassadors to street closure locations. Additionally, the City’s Community Education and
Response Team (CERT) is addressing complaints regarding Health Order violations to ensure
that business owners and operators are fully aware of and adhere to health orders and directives.
Further, with expanding contact tracing capabilities and infection monitoring efforts, CERT is

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, RoOoM 200
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strategically focusing its proactive outreach and education efforts to business corridors in areas
of the City with high infection rates, low compliance, and/or elevated risks.

The following activities will be required to suspend operations until further notice:

Personal services. Establishments offering personal care services including hair and nail
salons, barbers, tattoo, piercing, estheticians and massage must cease operations,
including both indoor and outdoor operations.

Outdoor dining. Restaurants and any other establishments offering meal service, may
only operate for delivery or take-out. Eating and drinking on the premises is prohibited.
Outdoor museums, aquariums, and zoos. Outdoor installations or exhibits associated with
museums, aquariums, or zoos may not allow entrance to visitors. Outdoor botanical
gardens and historic sites may remain open.

Indoor gyms. Limited 1:1 personal training within gyms and fitness centers that was
allowed under the previous health order must cease, but may take place outdoors (see
below).

Drive-in gatherings. Drive in theaters and other performances delivered in a drive in
context must cease.

Outdoor playgrounds. Public playgrounds including climbing structures and walls, slides
swings, sand pits, etc. must close.

Outdoor family entertainment centers. Outdoor family entertainment centers including
skate parks, roller and ice skating rinks, batting cages, go kart racing and miniature golf
must close.

Open-air bus and boat operators. Operators of open-air busses offering sight seeing and
other tour services and open-air boat excursions, including leisure and fishing
expeditions, must cease operations.

The following activities will be required to restrict their operations:

Low Contact Retail. Service oriented retail such as dog groomers, electronics repair
services and shoe repair services can operate in a curbside drop off context only.

Retail. All retail establishments such as shopping centers, hardware stores, convenience
stores, equipment rental, and specialty shops, and including standalone grocery stores,
must reduce capacity to 20% (down from 25% and 50% in the case of grocery stores) and
implement a metering system (see below).

The following activities will be required to proceed with modifications in place:

Hotels and lodging. Hotels may only accept reservations from essential workers
travelling for work purposes or to support critical infrastructure including
accommodations for isolation and quarantine purposes. If an individual who is not
travelling for essential purposes makes a reservation, it must be at least for the number of
days required for quarantine. The persons identified in the reservation must quarantine in
the hotel or lodging facility for the entirety of the time required.

Small gatherings. Small outdoor gatherings, must limit themselves to members of 1
household with a maximum number of 12 people (down from up to three households or
no more than 25 people). Face coverings must remain on at all times and no eating or
drinking is allowed.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141






LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

e Outdoor gyms. Outdoor gym or fitness center activities as well as outdoor fitness in-
person group classes (such as boot camps, dance, yoga, tai-chi, etc.) are limited to groups
of 12 people, including personnel, and must maintain strict distance and face covering
requirements. Running groups are prohibited.

e Youth sports. Youth sports activities affiliated with a childcare program, Out of School
Time program, or other organized and supervised youth sports program may continue
operating outdoors only without competitions or spectators and with strict social
distancing and face covering requirements in place.

o Indoor activities open to public. Any establishment allowing members of the public to
access indoor areas, including shopping centers, grocery stores, corner stores, financial
services, hardware stores, pharmacies, etc. must establish a metering system to monitor
capacity thresholds and ensure capacity does not exceed limits. In effect, a business will
need to assign a specific staff person to monitor the number of people in the
establishment and ensure that the 20% capacity threshold is maintained at all times. This
system must be in place as soon as possible and no later than Sunday, December 6 at 10
p.m. when the amended order becomes operative. Additionally, special hours should be
instituted for seniors and others with chronic conditions or compromised immune
systems.

e Adult Recreation. No/low contact adult recreational activities such as golf, tennis, pickle
ball, and bocce ball may continue outdoors but must be limited to participants within the
same household.

Additional information about which businesses and activities can operate in San Francisco and
what modifications are required at this time is available at sf.gov/step-by-step/reopening-san-
francisco.

HiHH
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COVID-19 cases, which continue to surge, and prevent hospitals from being overrun across
the region.

As of 10 p.m. on Sunday, December 6, San Francisco will close all personal services, outdoor
dining, public outdoor playgrounds, outdoor museums, zoos and aquariums, drive-in theaters,
and open-air tour busses and boats. Additionally, San Francisco will halt indoor limited
personal training in gyms and limit outdoor gyms and outdoor fitness classes to a maximum
group size of 12 people at a time, including instructors and participants. Low contact retail
such as pet grooming, electronics or shoe repair services, may only operate in a curbside drop-
off context. All other retail, including grocery stores must reduce capacity to 20%, and all
indoor businesses that are open to the public, such as retail stores, must create a metering
system to manage and enforce indoor customer capacity. This metering system must be in
place no later 10 p.m. on Sunday December 6, when other amended order becomes operative.

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
everything we can to prevent our hospital system from becoming overwhelmed and to save
lives. We know that the faster we flatten the curve, the less time it takes us to move out of the
danger zone. We are taking these actions now in order to contain the spread in our
communities, and I urge everyone to take this very seriously.”

San Francisco, along with California and the United Sates, is experiencing a surge in COVID-
19 more aggressive than what the City has experienced to date. Local COVID-19 cases have
quadrupled during the last month. San Francisco is currently averaging 142 new COVID-19
positive cases per day compared to the 34 per day that it averaged in late October. Moreover,
the City currently has approximately 900 COVID-19 cases diagnosed per week and
hospitalizations have tripled over the last month. As a result, the City’s hospital capacity will
be under considerable stress. At its current rate of COVID hospitalizations, the City would run
out of hospital beds by December 26. Unlike in previous surges, the rest of the State’s hospital
capacity is strained and reaching patient limits and it is unlikely there will be additional
hospital capacity in other counties if San Francisco’s is compromised.

"We are in our worst surge yet of COVID-19. It is stressing health care systems across the
state of California and taxing our health care workers," said Dr. Colfax. "We need urgent
intervention now if we want to be able to care for the sick in mid-to-late December. We do
not want your parent, your spouse, your child, your grandparent or any loved one to be in
need of help and our hospitals too overwhelmed to properly care for them."

San Francisco’s Health Order is expected to be in effect through January 4, 2021. If, after a
week of this order being in effect, the City’s indicators show a consistent reduction in case
rates and hospitalizations for three additional weeks (for a total of 4 weeks) and ICU capacity
is holding at 25% availability or more, San Francisco will lift this health order. If however, the
Bay Area continues on its current trajectory and reaches the 15% ICU capacity threshold, it



would trigger the State’s Regional Stay at Home Order and mandate that the region continue
these restrictions for at least 3 weeks from that time and until ICU capacity exceeds 15% and
forward-looking indicators would allow easing the restrictions. In either scenario, once this
order is lifted, San Francisco would be returned to the State’s blueprint tier system.

In addition to the measures the City is taking in order to reduce close interactions by people
from different households, the City is increasing its focus on compliance and enforcement
activities. In an effort to promote responsible behavior in higher risk contexts, such as high
traffic areas in neighborhoods experiencing increasing case rates, the Office of Economic and
Workforce Development has funded the Creative Corps, a pilot program to deploy community
health ambassadors to street closure locations. Additionally, the City’s Community Education
and Response Team (CERT) is addressing complaints regarding Health Order violations to
ensure that business owners and operators are fully aware of and adhere to health orders and
directives. Further, with expanding contact tracing capabilities and infection monitoring
efforts, CERT is strategically focusing its proactive outreach and education efforts to business
corridors in areas of the City with high infection rates, low compliance, and/or elevated risks.

The following activities will be required to suspend operations until further notice:

o Personal services. Establishments offering personal care services including hair and nail
salons, barbers, tattoo, piercing, estheticians and massage must cease operations,
including both indoor and outdoor operations.

e Outdoor dining. Restaurants and any other establishments offering meal service, may
only operate for delivery or take-out. Eating and drinking on the premises is prohibited.

e Outdoor museums, aquariums, and zoos. Outdoor installations or exhibits associated
with museums, aquariums, or zoos may not allow entrance to visitors. Outdoor botanical
gardens and historic sites may remain open.

e Indoor gyms. Limited 1:1 personal training within gyms and fitness centers that was
allowed under the previous health order must cease, but may take place outdoors (see
below).

e Drive-in gatherings. Drive in theaters and other performances delivered in a drive in
context must cease.

¢ Outdoor playgrounds. Public playgrounds including climbing structures and walls,
slides swings, sand pits, etc. must close.

o Outdoor family entertainment centers. Outdoor family entertainment centers including
skate parks, roller and ice skating rinks, batting cages, go kart racing and miniature golf
must close.

o Open-air bus and boat operators. Operators of open-air busses offering sight seeing and
other tour services and open-air boat excursions, including leisure and fishing
expeditions, must cease operations.

The following activities will be required to restrict their operations:

o Low Contact Retail. Service oriented retail such as dog groomers, electronics repair
services and shoe repair services can operate in a curbside drop off context only.

o Retail. All retail establishments such as shopping centers, hardware stores, convenience
stores, equipment rental, and specialty shops, and including standalone grocery stores,
must reduce capacity to 20% (down from 25% and 50% in the case of grocery stores)
and implement a metering system (see below).

The following activities will be required to proceed with modifications in place:
o Hotels and lodging. Hotels may only accept reservations from essential workers



travelling for work purposes or to support critical infrastructure including
accommodations for isolation and quarantine purposes. If an individual who is not
travelling for essential purposes makes a reservation, it must be at least for the number
of days required for quarantine. The persons identified in the reservation must
quarantine in the hotel or lodging facility for the entirety of the time required.

o Small gatherings. Small outdoor gatherings, must limit themselves to members of 1
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
person group classes (such as boot camps, dance, yoga, tai-chi, etc.) are limited to
groups of 12 people, including personnel, and must maintain strict distance and face
covering requirements. Running groups are prohibited.

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

e Indoor activities open to public. Any establishment allowing members of the public to
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

system must be in place as soon as possible and no later than Sunday, December 6! at
10 p.m. when the amended order becomes operative. Additionally, special hours should
be instituted for seniors and others with chronic conditions or compromised immune
systems.

o Adult Recreation. No/low contact adult recreational activities such as golf, tennis, pickle
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

Subject: FW: Required Cybersecurity Training

Date: Friday, December 04, 2020 11:11:35 AM

Attachments: Instructions-for-Cybersecurity-classes FINAL 070920.pdf

Apologies for the late notice, but I've just been advised that this requirement applies to
Commissioners as well. You have till the end of the year.

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

From: Thomas DiSanto <thomas.disanto@sfgov.org>

Date: Friday, October 23, 2020 at 7:59 AM

To: CTYPLN - CITY PLANNING EVERYONE <CPC.CityPlanningEveryone@sfgov.org>
Subject: Required Cybersecurity Training

Hi Everyone,

Per the Cybersecurity policy mandated by Committee on Information Technology (COIT), all City
employees are required to complete Cybersecurity training annually by December 31. In the current
climate, many City employees are accessing their emails, paycheck information, and other important
data remotely. In order to protect our City's IT infrastructure and data, it is particularly important

that all employees complete this Cybersecurity training.

This year, the Cybersecurity training is available to City employees on SF Learning, accessible through
the SF Employee Portal. All employees have been enrolled in specific training courses aligned to their

respective roles. Every City and County employee is required to complete the 45-minute

foundational Cybersecurity training course. Additionally, managers, supervisors, IT professionals, and
employees of specific departments are required to complete additional courses corresponding to

their additional responsibilities.

Once you complete the training, SF Learning will maintain a record of training completion.

If you have difficulty accessing or navigating within SF Learning, please submit a request for

assistance through the Question about course(s) in SF Learning form linked here

If you have questions regarding the Cybersecurity guidance included in the courses or the City’s

Cybersecurity policy, please email dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org.

If you have any questions, please contact me or Michael Eng.

Thanks.


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfcoit.org/sites/default/files/2019-11/CCSF%20Cybersecurity%20Training%20%20Awareness%20Standard%20Final.pdf
https://sfemployeeportalsupport.sfgov.org/support/catalog/items/177
mailto:dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org

How to access the Cybersecurity classes on SF Learning

1. Open a new browser window in Chrome (SF Learning will not work in Internet Explorer).
Go to https://sfgov.org/sfc/employee-gateway and click on the “SF Employee Portal” tile.

Citywide Enterprise Applicatioy

SF Employee Portal SF User Support
Employee Login SF Employee Portal

N

MyApps Portal
City Apps and Password Reset

2. Loginto the SF Employee Portal with your DSW number and Password
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&
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DS or POI# [or USERNAME

Password

Agree 8 Sign In

3. Click on the “My Learning” tab.
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4. On the “My Learning” rollout, find the “Cybersecurity” training, and click the launch button.

l MY INFORMATION

MY PAY

PLANNED LEARNING (10Jl COMPLETED LEARNING (10)
® MY TIME TITLE TYPE STATUS  LAUNCH

€ MY BENEFITS

‘ MY LEARNING

Cybersecurity Training Web-based Training Enrolled
(TIS)

Note: You may have more than one Cybersecurity training listed. All are required.

5. Now you can begin the training! If you have any difficulty accessing a course or navigating within SF
Learning, please submit a request via the Question about course(s) in SF Learning form linked here.

If you have questions regarding the Cybersecurity guidance included in these courses or the City’s
Cybersecurity policy, please email dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org.

Page 2 of4
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Frequently Asked Questions:

> The first thing to do, if you are having trouble with SF Learning, is try clearing your cache. For instructions on clearing
your cache, click here.

> What if | don’t have the Cybersecurity classes in the “My Learning” menu?
1. You can enroll yourself in many of the classes. Follow the directions below to enroll.
1. Logon to SF Learning.
2. Onthe “My Learning” tab, scroll down until you see the SF Learning button. Click on it.

& MY INFORMATION

MY PAY

FLANNED LEARNING [s W compLeTep Learning (1:]

@ rormme me e

€
3
g
2

€ MY BENEFITS

@ v LEarNNG

® 0 0 @

@ @

® ®

¥ Leamning

3 2

Learning Catalog My Learning User Support

4. On the right side, scroll down to the “Category” menu.
5. Click on “TIS-Cybersecurity” and you will see a list of available Cybersecurity courses.

Learning Catalog

180 saarch rasulls "
~ Category
Ma Category 2019 PeopleScft Update: GL WorkCenter
B £ course
GONS-PeopleSoft Update
1 Offoring avallabis

SGUPG e This is a femiiarization and cemensiration of the GL VorkSerters.
HRD-Professional Devslopment

(PropQ) Delegated Departmental Purchasing Online Training

£ vourse
HRD-Supervisory and
Management 1 Offring availabis
el ity & PLiposs ol P10 © DGAPallcy Rogulorons AUlierizar Purchasos Rostictsd Purthases Supslior Gompance Agdiional
Comsdaralions & Resources Do's & Dot Sxam Plaase a7l bya Curliicare Wi courss must ba 1anaie svary 3 yoars
GONP-Emergency Management
N s Whistieblower Protections—Supervisor Duties
5 £ cowse
CONAAOSD

1 Offering availsble
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> What if | have finished the class, but it still says “In-progress”?

1. Re-open the class, and click either on “exit the course” or the “X” to complete the course. If this doesn’t

work, please contact dtis.helpdesk@sfgov.org.

PLLLE
e iy,

@

Derenst

Home

Congratulations! You have completed the course. You may review the modules § |

p

Browsing Safely Email and Phishing Passwords Data Security Social Networks Conclusion

Thank you all for your vital work keeping CCSF safe from cyberattack. Please get in touch with your depariment IT team and Security Officer if you ever think
information security has been breached, in the office or outside it. Together, we are well defended.

» If you continue to have issues, please submit a ticket to SF Employee Portal Support. You can access portal support

in three ways:
1. Click on this link to submit a question about a course in SF Learning:
https://sfemployeeportalsupport.sfgov.org/support/catalog/items/177

2. Click on the “User Support” button on the SF Learning home page.

|' Learning ‘

Learning Catalog My Learning User Support

3. Click on the “SF User Support” button on the SF Employee Gateway.

Citywide Enterprise Applications

iii | iii
SF Employee Portal SF User Support MyApps Portal
Employee Login SF Employee Portal City Apps and Password Reset
City Job Opportunities, Benefits, and Programs \
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Tom

Thomas DiSanto
Director, Administration
San Francisco Planning Department

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7575

www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail,
and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening
remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on
our services here.
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https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC
Subject: FW: Board Report

Date: Friday, December 04, 2020 9:24:08 AM
Attachments: 2020 12 03.pdf
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

From: Starr, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, December 03, 2020 3:46 PM

To: Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>

Subject: Board Report

Please see attached

Aaron Starr, Manager of Legislative Affairs

Legislative Affairs

San Francisco Planning

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS OF AUGUST 17, 2020:

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: +1628-652-7533| sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

IN ORDER FOR US TO MOVE, OUR OFFICE WILL BE CLOSED WITH NO ACCESS TO PHONES OR E-MAIL ON THURSDAY, AUGUST 13 and FRIDAY, AUGUST 14, 2020. WE APPRECIATE YOUR
PATIENCE.

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail,
and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on
our services here.
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Weekly Board of Supervisors Report
11/30/20-12/04/20

Good afternoon, Commissioner’s Aaron Starr Manager of Legislative Affairs

Land Use Committee

201034 Planning Code - Landmark Designation - 4767-4773 Mission Street (aka the Royal
Baking Company Building)

This week the land Use Committee considered the landmark designation for the Royal Baking
Company building at 4767 Mission Street. You may recall that this was already heard at the
Land Use Committee this past September, but due to some clerical issues, it had to come back.
As expected, all went smoothly and quickly for the Royal Baking Co this week. Supervisor
Preston and Peskin joined Supervisor Safai as sponsors and the item and it was quickly
forwarded to the Full Board with a positive recommendation.

Full Board

200825 Hearing - Appeal of Determination of Exemption From Environmental Review -
Proposed 617 Sanchez Street Project

At the Full Board this week, the Board considered the CEQA Appeal for 617 Sanchez Street. The
project proposed the demolition of a two-story single-family home and the construct a 4,200
sq. ft. single-family home. Commissioners, you heard this item in February of this year as a
discretionary review application and approved the project without taking discretionary review.

After public comment, Supervisor Mandelman noted that the proposed plans had been
amended after the Discretionary Review hearing and made a motion to change the project
description based on those changes.

In short, the project size shrunk slightly to 4,028 sq. ft., and instead of one single large unit, the
project now includes one 2,800-square-foot, single-family home and a 1,200-square foot
Accessory Dwelling Unit.

After those changes were accepted Supervisor Mandelman made a motion to deny the appeal
and uphold the project based on the proposed revisions.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 598 Brannan Planning Commission Hearing Public Comment
Date: Thursday, December 03, 2020 4:08:59 PM

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

From: "Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC)" <linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>

Date: Thursday, December 3, 2020 at 12:08 PM

To: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
<CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: 598 Brannan Planning Commission Hearing Public Comment

FYI...

Linda Ajello Hoagland, AICP Senior Planner

Northeast Team, Current Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS OF AUGUST 17, 2020:
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 628.652.7320 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

IN ORDER FOR US TO MOVE, OUR OFFICE WILL BE CLOSED WITH NO ACCESS TO PHONES OR E-
MAIL ON THURSDAY, AUGUST 13 and FRIDAY, AUGUST 14. WE APPRECIATE YOUR PATIENCE.

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

From: robert mellett <rndevmv@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 03, 2020 12:07 PM

To: Ajello Hoagland, Linda (CPC) <linda.ajellohoagland@sfgov.org>

Cc: Bachrach, Jeremy <JBachrac@tishmanspeyer.com>; Dennis Phillips, Sarah
<SPhillip@TishmanSpeyer.com>

Subject: 598 Brannan Planning Commission Hearing Public Comment

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
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https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
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sources.

We appreciate this opportunity to voice public comment of approval of Tishman Speyer's proposed
project at 598 Brannan Street.

As an active business and property owner in the community, we look forward to and we welcome
Tishman Speyer's project as a means of bringing new life into what is now a dormant part of our
City. It will bring a new level of vibrancy, residency and public safety to the SOMA community.

Tiishman Speyer has a 100% proven track record of community involvement with their projects,
reaching out to both residential and business owners to make their concerns and comments heard.
Based on the high levels of residency and tenancy of Tishman Speyer's other properties, this project
will boost the tax base of our City and will help to secure the City's future as a growing and vibrant
hub for tech companies, start ups, entrepreneurs and local businesses.

We approve and look forward to Tishman Speyer and this proposed project in our neighborhood..
Sincerely,

Robert Mellett
Property Owner



